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Corporate Profile

1> 5 i 7r

HOPSON DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED (“Hopson” or “Hopson
Development” or the “Company”, and together with its subsidiaries, the
“Group”) was founded in 1992, and its shares have been listed on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited since 1998
(Stock code: 00754). Hopson Development is a major property group
that specializes in the development of medium-to-high-end large-scale
residential properties. In terms of land bank, it is one of the largest
property developers in The People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”).

Since 1995, Hopson Development has started to establish its brand on a
nationwide scale through deploying appropriate corporate strategy and
business model. The principal focus is on three Core Economic Zones,
namely Pearl River Delta, Huanbohai area and Yangtze River Delta, with
Guangzhou, Beijing, Tianjin and Shanghai as the core cities. In
Guangzhou and Beijing, the brands such as “Regal Riviera”, “Gallopade”
and “Fairview” have been established to cover a range of businesses
including product designs, customer services and facilities; and to
accommodate different community cultures and different operating
models. Each property project is featured with a unique theme to
demonstrate the strength of our corporate branding. Strong brand
recognition at project level enhances the positioning and marketability of
the corporate branding.

Major investments were made in the first-tier cities such as Guangzhou,
Beijing, Tianjin and Shanghai over the past few years.
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Corporate and Listing Information

i 3€ K BT & OB

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Board of Directors

Executive Directors

CHU Mang Yee (Chairman)

CHU Kut Yung (Deputy Chairman)

XIE Bao Xin (Chief Financial Officer)

AU Wai Kin

LIAO Ruo Qing

ZHENG Shao Hui (Resigned on 18th November 2014)
BAO Wenge (Appointed on 18th November 2014)

Independent Non-executive Directors

LEE Tsung Hei, David
WONG Shing Kay, Oliver
TAN Leng Cheng, Aaron

Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee

LEE Tsung Hei, David  (Chairman)
WONG Shing Kay, Oliver
TAN Leng Cheng, Aaron

Nomination Committee

CHU Mang Yee

CHU Kut Yung

LEE Tsung Hei, David
WONG Shing Kay, Oliver
TAN Leng Cheng, Aaron

(Chairman)

Company Secretary

MOK Wai Kun, Barbara, solicitor

Authorized Representatives

AU Wai Kin
XIE Bao Xin
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HEE  (WHER)
Bife 12

BEE

BoE R-FE-—mHF+—A+AEE)
WXt (R-E—WE+—A+NBEZE)

BYFHTES

ERRFMEES

SHERREEBERAR

“E-NFEFHK 03



Corporate and Listing Information (continued)
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Independent Auditor

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants
22nd Floor

Prince’s Building

Central

Hong Kong

Legal Advisor

As to Hong Kong Law
Minter Ellison

Level 25, One Pacific Place
88 Queensway

Hong Kong

Principal Bankers

Agricultural Bank of China

Bank of China

Bank of Communications

Bank of East Asia

China CITIC Bank

China Construction Bank

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia)
Standard Chartered Bank

Branch Share Registrars In Hong Kong

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
46th Floor, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong

Registered Office
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street
Hamilton HM11, Bermuda
Principal Office

Suites 3305-09, 33rd Floor, Jardine House
1 Connaught Place

Central

Hong Kong
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Corporate and Listing Information (continued)

Representative Offices

Guangzhou —  16th Floor, South Tower
Zhuijiang Investment Building
421 Zhujiang East Road
Zhuijiang New City, Guangzhou

Beijing — 3rd Floor, Zhujiang Development Centre
23 West Dawang Road
Chaoyang District, Beijing

Shanghai — 19th Floor, Block 3
No. 695 Lingshi Road
Zhabei District, Shanghai

Tianjin —  No. 1 Zhujiang South Road
Jingjin New Town
Baodi District, Tianjin

SHAREHOLDERS’ CALENDAR

Register of Shareholders

Closure of Register
9th June 2015 to 12th June 2015 (both days inclusive)

Annual General Meeting
12th June 2015

LISTING INFORMATION

Shares Listing

The Company’s shares are listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

Stock Code
00754

Guaranteed Senior Notes Listing

The Company’s 11.75% Guaranteed Senior Notes are listed on
The Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited

Guaranteed Senior Notes Listing

The Company’s 9.875% Guaranteed Senior Notes are listed on
The Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited
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Corporate Structure

Hopson Development Holdings Limited
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Beijing Plaza
Royale Hotel
tRHFERREEE

Hopson Regal Riviera

BERIFR

Hopson Citta Eterna
AEREERE

Hopson International Garden

BEERTEE

Hopson No. 8 Royal Park
BEBERSR

Dongfangwenhua
Art Center
R XEETH

Beijing Hopson
Desheng Building
LtREEBBAE

Hopson Kylin Zone

BEBBH

Hopson Dreams World
EEHFEN

Yuhe Project
FAEE

Hopson World Garden
SEHREE

Hopson Regal Park
BEBIFR

Hopson Regal Court
AERRTR

Beijing Miyun Project
TtREEER

Makeyan Project

SRHEE

Beijing Zhujiang
Century Property
Management
Limited

EREHTH LY EESE

ARAR

Huanbohai Economic Zone

RS EAE

(Northern China) (%1t & 1)

Tianjin

RE

Hyatt Regency
Jingjin City
SORE BRI

Jingjin New Town
TR

Hopson Belvedere Bay
AEERS

Tianjin Hopson
International Tower

REGEEHBAE

Tianjin Hopson
International Mansion

RESEEABRLE

Dongli Lake Project
REMER
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Hopson Regal Seashore
BETILFR

Hopson International City
AR

Qinhuangdao

E5

Hopson Seasky Villa
BEREA



Yangtze River Delta Economic Zone & = A& & %&
(Eastern China) (R &)

Shanghai

Hangzhou| Kunshan
i

Hopson Town

BERAH

Hopson Golf
Mansion
BERBEXAR

Hopson Sheshan
Dongziyuan
BERUREE

Hopson Lantern Villa

REHER

Hopson International
Garden
AEEBEE

Hopson Dongjiao Villa _
RERNIE

Hopson Yuting
Garden
BEMER

Hopson International
Plaza
SEERES

Hopson Fortune Plaza
REMERS

Hopson Guangfuhui
REREE

Hopson Times Garden
BREME-%

Hopson Asset
Seascape
Residence

BREMERROHE

Shanghai Tea
Factory Project
LERERER

Hopson The Town of
International -

Garden City

Hopson

Hopson World N
International

Trade Centre  ~
MMEEBEE RO

BEHME

BEERTEE AEERY BB H55

Taicang

~ HangzhouBay -
BEMNE

Corporate Structure (continued)
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Pearl River Delta Economic Zone % = & & & Bl
(Southern China) (/@ & 1)

Guangzhou
B

Guangzhou Regal
- Riviera Hotel

EMBTHRBEE

Hopson
Gallopade Park
SERSTEE
Hopson Pleasant

View Garden

SERRER

Hopson
Huanan New City

BEERHA

Hopson Gallopade
Park — South Court
AEBRSEM

Hopson
Regal Riviera
BELRT

Hopson
Regal Palace

BEFRER

Hopson
Yijing Huayuan
BEERER

Hopson
Zhujiang
International Tower
BERTEBRAE

Hopson
Yunshan Xijing
REZILER

Hopson Regal Villa
BEFRILGE

Hopson
Belvedere Bay
AEERE

Hopson Plaza
P-S =}
=]

Hopson
Sea Block

Hopson Xijing Banshan
& s

ERF¥WL

Zhujiang Technology
Innovation Park

FINEAIRE

Hopson Regal
International

BEFRER

Hopson Hushan
Guoji Vila
AL ER
Qianjin Road
Project

ATEREIE A

Hopson TIT International

Industrial Park

BETTEREXE

TIT Project
(International Park)

TITER (REE)

Guangdong Esteem
- Property
Services Limited

ERESYERE

BRAT

BEAREEERLA

Huizhou

Hopson Yujing Bay
MR
Hopson
Regal Bay o
pson Zhongshan
CEE Regal Court
Hopson BERLFRE
International Zhongshan
New Gity Dongkeng
- REEBFE - Project
i FILRTIER
New Industry Zhongshan
Innovation Park Rainbow
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Financial Highlights

4 5 44 2

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
—T-ZF —E——F —T——F —T—=F —E-QmEF
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FHT FET FET FHT FEx
Revenues g 2% 14,379,253 8,007,537 9,926,605 15,648,207 17,044,862
Profit before taxation 4 B4 AT 55 8,843,109 2,197,184 4,248,851 6,309,673 4,995,193
Taxation | (2,550,097) (788,773) (1,360,748) (2,475,187) (2,067,257)
Profit for the year FERA 6,293,012 1,408,411 2,888,103 3,834,486 2,927,936
Non-controlling interests FEIEHIE R S (403,600) 21,620 94,687 17,587 19,365
Profit attributable to equity holders AR B A JE A5 4 T 5,889,412 1,430,031 2,982,790 3,852,073 2,947,301
Profit attributable to equity holders RAER B A BN
(excluding the effect of revaluation (CRETEMTE
and other non-recurring income) R H A JEAEE M) 3,042,695 1,349,484 1,130,610 2,059,948 2,026,973
Earnings per share BREF
— Basic —HAK HK343 cents 7811l HK82 cents 781l HK172 cents 7811l HK210 cents 7811l HK131 cents &l
— Diluted — H5H HK342 cents 71l HK82 cents j&fll  HK172 cents 1l HK210 cents 1Ll HK131 cents &4l
Dividends per share TR E HK17.15 cents &l — - - -
Net assets value per share BRAEEZRE HK$23.39 7T HK$25.38 7T HK$25.92 7T HK$24.56 #7T HK$25.84 58 5T
Revenues Profit attributable to equity holders
Wz IRERE AR R
(HK$’000) (HK$’000)
FET FiET
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Chairman’s Statement

o

Mr. Chu Mang Yee, Chairman
RBMREE  £E

In 2015, the Group will follow the guidance of the State’s policies while
adjusting itself to the market trends, so as to ensure good performance amid
control measures and market reform. With the maximization of shareholders’
value as the ultimate goal, the Group will keep up an optimistic yet prudent
attitude and fully utilize the advantages of our sound financial and operation
strategy and diversified financing channels. Banking on our core assets, the
Group will continue to promote the transformation of corporate strategy and

create the highest value for the society.

TR AR SR DL S BOSR A A5 o R Y B 0 o W DR A R 9 R
MR T 28R AR o 4 AR & B 4Bl - DL R O AL
A R H AR o T 0 9 S A Y B AR SR KRl IR X ou by S
R WD BB o HE I A SR R BT o % Rk & A0 BEOK R -
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)

F R e (8)

MARKET ENVIRONMENT AND OPERATION
ANALYSIS

National Market
1. Overview of the Economic Environment

In 2014, China’s economy maintained a steady trajectory under the “New
Norm” and presented a positive trend with stable growth, optimized
structure and enhanced quality. The gross domestic product (the “GDP”)
for the year was RMB63,646.3 billion, which grew 7.4% as compared to
that of last year. Of which, the increase in value of the tertiary industry
was RMB30,673.9 billion, representing a year-on-year increase of 8.1%.
Disposable income per capita of urban households was RMB28,844,
representing a growth of 8.0% from the same period last year.

In 2015, “Stabilizing Growth, Adjusting Structure” remains the top priority
for China’s macroeconomic development. The Central Economic Work
Conference has pointed out that China’s economy is evolving into a
stage featuring more complex division of labour and more reasonableness
in structures. Economic development has also entered into the “New
Norm” which marks the transition from high gear growth to medium-to-
high gear growth, from scale and speed-based sprawling growth to
quality and efficiency-based integrated growth, and from volume and
capacity expansion as the main goal to an in-depth adjustment involving
the co-existence of volume adjustment and capacity optimization. In
short, the “New Norm” will remain the overarching principle that guides
China’s economic development at the present moment and the days to
come.

2. Overview of Real Estate Market

In 2014, regulation for the real estate sector shifted from intense policy
intervention to market-oriented adjustment, where policies remain
relatively loose. In the second half of the year, measures such as the
loosening of “Loan Limits” and disproportionate interest reduction have
inspired confidence in the market and accelerated its rebound.

In general, the real estate sector made steady progress during the year.
The investment in real estate development across the country amounted
to RMB9,503.6 billion, representing a year-on-year increase of 10.5%;
the paid-in investment for the year of real estate developers was
RMB12,199.1 billion, representing a year-on-year decrease of 0.1%; the
area of commodity housing sold across the country reached 1,206.49
million sq.m., representing a year-on-year decrease of 7.6%; the sales of
commaodity housing across the country amounted to RMB7,629.2 billion,
representing a year-on-year decrease of 6.3%; the area of land
purchased by real estate developers was 333.83 million sg.m.,
representing a year-on-year decrease of 14.0%. At the end of 2014, the
available-for-sale area of commodity housing across the country was
621.69 million sg.m., representing an increase of 26.1% from last year.
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After nearly three years of in-depth adjustment for the real estate sector,
much had changed in the industry’s market and business landscape. On
the whole, supply and demand for the market was reaching equilibrium
while some cities even withessed excess of supply over demand. A shift
in demographic composition led to a more stable number of main
consumer group. A “New Norm” has likewise come into being for the real
estate sector. Although the industry saw a rebound at the end of 2014, it
is unlikely that the market will experience growth both in quantity and
price as before. We are of the opinion that in 2015, the market will slowly
tread away from the gloom and regain a steady momentum.

We expect that under the general tendency to stabilize economic growth,
the Central Government will continue to implement active fiscal policies
and prudent monetary policies in 2015. Meanwhile, policies regarding the
real estate sector will remain relatively loose and inventory reduction will
be the focal point for the industry’s recovery. With regard to the above,
we remain positive yet prudent in our efforts to analyze the market and
progress steadily forward in the “New Norm” of the real estate sector.

Regional Markets
1. Southern China

For Southern China, the Group positioned Guangzhou as the major value
driver which extended into other regions with rapid economic growth
such as Zhongshan, Huizhou and Foshan. The Group adopted advanced
operating strategies and engaged in land bank and project development
in prime locations of the said regions. In 2014, approximately 39% of the
Group’s results were attributable to Southern China.

Guangzhou could be called the centre of economy, technology and
culture in Guangdong province or even in the whole Southern China. It is
an international metropolis with well-established industrial foundation and
advanced tertiary industry. In 2014, Guangzhou’s regional GDP
amounted to RMB1,670.7 billion, representing a year-on-year increase of
8.6%. Its economy maintained a steady growth and the quality of the
region’s operation efficiency was commendable. All together, Guangzhou
played a crucial role in supporting the development of the real estate
sector.

In 2014, Guangzhou’s economy advanced steadily. “Both Strict and
Lenient” measures were implemented and a number of “Highlights” were
achieved. After undergoing a number of trials involving stabilizing growth,
facilitating reform, adjusting structure, augmenting momentum, tending
to people’s livelihood and averting risks, in the end Guangzhou managed
to attain a series of significant improvements during the year and in turn
created a favorable environment for the development of the real estate
sector. Guangzhou’s economic development proved to be a strong
catalyst in facilitating the integration of the Pearl River Delta and fortifying
the value fusion function of Guangzhou as the centre city of the Delta.

Chairman’s Statement (continued)
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)

F R e (8)

2. Northern China

The Group advanced its strategic layout in Northern China, with Beijing
as the strategic centre, while Beijing and Tianjin as the main value-
generating regions, extending to the Huanbohai area as well as bringing
in other key second-and-third-tier cities in Northern China. Northern
China has become the most important strategic bastion for the Group,
contributing 50% to the Group’s results in 2014,

As the capital of China, not only is Beijing the political, economic and
cultural centre of the country but also a city of great prominence in the
whole Asia and the world. Judging from its recent years of development,
Beijing’s economy has come to influence wider areas with more
penetrating value. Regions such as Heibei, Shanxi and Shandong have
also become more closely coordinated with Beijing in their economic
development. In 2014, Beijing’s economy kept up a rapid pace, with
GDP amounting to RMB2,133.1 billion, representing a year-on-year
increase of 7.3%; disposable income per capita of urban households
grew 8.9% to RMB43,910 as compared with the same period last year.

Tianjian is the sea gate of the capital of China and was historically the
largest city of finance and trading in Northern China. It boasts the largest
sea port in Northern China, connecting Northern China with the
Northwest and Inner Mongolia and covering a population of more than
100 million. As a result, Tianjin holds great prospects in the Group’s
peripheral layout, and its rapid coordinated development with Beijing in
the future will further enhance the market value of our products.

In 2014, the Group with the aid of its developments in Beijing and Tianjin
as a springboard extended its reach deeper into major second-tier cities
such as Dalian, Qinhuangdao and Taiyuan. As the development
prospects in these regions start to take shape, their contribution to the
Group’s future development will be immense.

3. Eastern China

Centering on Shanghai, the strategic layout of the Group in Eastern China
relied heavily on Ningbo, a major city within the Yangtze River Delta
Economic Rim, and extended to prosperous second-and-third-tier cities
such as Cixi and Kunshan. Eastern China will be a prominent region in
terms of the Group’s future results growth. In 2014, approximately 11%
of the Group’s results were attributable to Eastern China.
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For the year of 2014, Shanghai achieved steady economic development,
with regional GDP amounting to RMB2,356.1 billion, representing a year-
on-year increase of 7.0%; disposable income per capita of urban
households was RMB47,710 representing a year-on-year increase of 8.8%.
Shanghai has long been an influential world-class city with commodity
prices, employment rate, economic growth and market sales remaining
stable. Besides, its economic structure has been optimized and its
growth quality was further enhanced. Impacted by industry, real estate
and financial market, Shanghai’s economy faced downward pressure.
Nevertheless, by virtue of the city’s strong adaptability and well-
coordinated economic versatility, it is predicted that the Shanghai market
will maintain its stable and upward momentum in the future.

In 2014, the Group placed Shanghai as its strategic center in Eastern
China and thoroughly explored the real estate markets in surrounding
major second-and-third-tier cities such as Taicang, Kunshan and Cixi.
With the latter cities serving as support to the core city of Shanghai, the
strategic layout for Eastern China, with “One Center Radiating Outward In
Every Direction”, can provide strength and versatility for the Group’s
future endeavors. As these regional projects materialize in the market,
they will be expected to provide greater contributions to the Group’s
future results.

PROSPECTS OF THE PRC REAL ESTATE
SECTOR

Looking ahead to 2015, the world economy will maintain its recovery
trend. The global economic landscape will be favorable on the whole but
a certain degree of risk and uncertainty is to be expected. Domestically,
the projected medium-to-high gear economic growth will likely be under
the impact and constraint of a number of short-term, structural and long-
term factors. In general, although China’s property market will experience
a moderate growth in 2015, in the long run however, demand in the real
estate sector is sure to face downward pressure.

The loosening of monetary policies in 2015 will conduce to a moderate
recovery of the real estate sector. In 2015, real estate enterprises’
transformation remains the subject matter of the industry. In the future,
the real estate sector will tend to branch out into more specific fields such
as commercial real estate, tourist real estate, retirement real estate,
industrial real estate and real estate agency. Real estate enterprises must
pay closer attention to market changes and increase their expertise in
order to prepare for the “Silvery Age” of the real estate sector.

Chairman’s Statement (continued)
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)
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FUTURE PROSPECTS OF THE GROUP

As the Central Government further loosens the regulatory measures
regarding China’s real estate sector, the sector will be more market-
oriented. In response, the Group will follow the guidance of the State’s
policies while adjusting itself to the market trends, so as to ensure good
performance amid a new environment characterized by the “New Norm”
control measures and market reform. With the maximization of
shareholders’ value as the ultimate goal, the Group will keep up an
optimistic yet prudent attitude and fully utilize the advantages of our
sound financial and operation strategy and diversified financing channels.
Banking on our core assets, the Group will continue to improve its
monitoring system, contrive new investment structure, establish brand
equity, promote the transformation of corporate strategy and create the
highest value for the society.

Optimizing the Monitoring System and Fully
Implementing an Informatizationed Corporate
Governance System

The Group has further consolidated and optimized our corporate
structure and management procedures. Through Informatizationed
management, the Group managed to achieve a well-coordinated work
flow among different regions and projects. We seek to establish an
advanced electronic business coordination platform and corporate
information gateway that are based on the Internet and fully incorporated
within the Group, which will serve the Group’s coordinated business
needs across different regions and divisions.

Scrutinizing the Land Bank and Strengthening
Strategic Advantages

The Group will pay close attention to the land market and based on our
conditions and market information, carefully select lands suitable for
development from our massive land bank, while overseeing the balance
among the aggregate development quantity, the ratio between various
types of development and the size of our land bank. The Group will
thoroughly utilize our land assets in the Huanbohai Economic Zone, the
Yangtze River Delta and the Pearl River Delta and explore potential
markets, thereby strengthening our strategic deployment across the
country.
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Creating Premium Quality and Establishing Brand
Equity

The Group will adhere to its commitment to offer premium products and
provide the most comfortable and luxurious living to its clients. We will
continue to put time and effort into creating the quality that our target
clients consider as valuable. The Group will maintain a solid operation
and focus on improving product quality. By ceaselessly enhancing our
service quality, we hope to obtain a substantial boost to our development.

Raising Risk Awareness and Seeking
Opportunities in a Volatile Environment

In 2015, the Group, carrying forward its prudent developmental objective,
will tackle the challenges faced by the real estate sector, including the
reduction of incremental margin as well as the transformation and
adjustment of the sector, in a proactive manner. In the meantime, the
Group will seize favorable opportunities brought forth by China’s growing
economy, increasing consumer demand and progressing urbanization.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

The Group shall persist in employing the spirit of mutualism with integrity
and innovation as its strategic guidelines, act in concert, innovate with
dedication, faithfully provide market and customers with quality products
and services, establish Hopson Development’s living ideology with all-
encompassing facilities, ensure the Group’s healthy and sustainable
development, and achieve the maximization of investors’ interest.

CHU Mang Yee
Chairman

Hong Kong, 31st March 2015
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Deputy Chairman’s Statement
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In 2014, the Group has been committed to optimizing the product structure
and ancillary facilities of residential property business while on the other
hand, actively engaging in the development of commercial and industrial real
estate in a prudent manner in order to gradually develop a versatile
development strategy of the Group which encompasses residential,

commercial and industrial property businesses.
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Deputy Chairman’s Statement (continued)

During the past year, the adjustment of the property industry in China has
escalated gradually and diverging demand emerged between different
cities. On one hand, the state actively introduced policies to cater to the
house-purchasing needs of low consumption group, while on the other
hand, committed to promote the stable development of high-end
residential market and market targeting at users looking for finer living
environment. The Group made a prudent assessment to ride on this
wave of change, in terms of first-tier cities, we stepped up our efforts in
developing high-ended properties and properties targeting at
improvement needs with special focus placed on improving ancillary
facilities and upgrading service quality. For second-tier cities, the Group
centered its effort on the rigid property demand and focused on the
optimization of product structure. The Group also stepped up the
investment and construction of large-scale commercial, office and
industrial park properties to realize a holistic development covering wide-
ranging business segments. In addition, the Group optimized the
establishment of systems and standards, improved the construction of
information system, enhanced production and operation governance and
actively implemented the strategic transformation of refine and
standardized corporate management.

1. RESULTS OVERVIEW OF 2014

2014 major operating results figures:
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1. —E—NEXEHE

TENEEIBRERSR:

Unit 2014 2013 Year-on-Year
Results Figures BEEE B —E-mFE —T—=F 54
Turnover ERBA HK$ million 17,045 15,648 9%
BEETT
Gross floor area (‘GFA”) FANRITREEMME sqm. 1,433,994 1,326,891 8%
completed during (TE%EmEmE]) 5K
the year
EEAREBERAT —E-—NFEFH 17



Deputy Chairman’s Statement (continued)
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2. BUSINESS REVIEW 2. ¥¥MOkEE

In 2014, China’s property market entered into in-depth adjustment
phase. Under the changing business landscape, we saw a gradual
shift of development focus back to first-tier cities in the property
industry. Besides, our operation became more diversified; business
was conducted in a more refined way while management has
become more and more standardized. Based on the development
needs of the market, the Group gradually adjusted its development

—E-mF fEEMELEAREIEN
—¢ FPHETEXERZTEE — KM
CREEBRAZIE ZHBREHAL
mﬁﬁi%+{t SEREMSERS
KB SR ERB %TF%%%*%#W

Bl RABEZRH BRELLAEF:
B REEHE R Dﬂ;ﬂi%lﬁ?ﬂ:?ﬁ

strategy, actively optimized product structure and created greater EHENEYXHME B TEBRRLLE
potential for generating value with a view to realizing our operating e

goals. While anchored in residential real estate, the Group also

actively engaged in the development of commercial and industrial

real estate in a prudent manner, through which the Group’s

operating capacity has been enhanced.

(1) ExX%A
REE D 2 EEWA

(1) Turnover
Turnover by geographical locations:
2014 2013

—E-NE —E—=%F
HK$ million  Ratio (%) HKS$ million Ratio (%)

Region it & BHEABTT Lt 45 (%) AEETT Lt 51 (%)
Southern China E e 6,703 39 7,760 50
Northern China b [& 8,430 50 6,420 41
Eastern China R I 1,912 11 1,468 9
Total &&t 17,045 100 15,648 100

In the reporting period, the Group continued to have its base in the WMEBMAN NEBHEEY E S IR=A
three Core Economic Zones in Pearl River Delta, Huanbohai and RHE REZAZKAKE Bz
Yangtze River Delta, made in-depth development in core cities and W ZREEB W ﬁ F'T @ 1 - 2
explored surrounding potential cities. Southern China, Northern dbEE - EREE D R ER T67.0318 %
China and Eastern China contributed profits of HK$6,703 million, 7T~ 84.30E B T K19.128 B LA -

HK$8,430 million and HK$1,912 million respectively.
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Deputy Chairman’s Statement (continued)
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

(1) Turnover (Continued)

Turnover by business segments:

2. ¥ O E @)
(1) EZ£WA@m

BEBDAE D 2 ERBA

2014 2013
—E-MmF —F=F
HK$ million  Ratio (%) HK$ million Ratio (%)
Business Segment EBoE BEATT Lt 45 (%) BEBTT Lt 51 (%)
Property development MEBR 15,515 1 14,321 91
Property investment MEKE 462 3 416 3
Property management MEEIR 816 5 664 4
Hotel operations G JE &8 252 1 247 2
Total At 17,045 100 15,648 100

During the reporting period, the Group’s strategy to optimize
income structure and balance various sources of income had
proven to be successful. In 2014, income from property
development was HK$15,515 million, income from property

management was HK$816 million, income from property

investment and income from hotel operations were HK$462 million
and HK$252 million respectively.

Turnover by major projects:

BREBHRBEDZEXEA:

BEHR AEREBRECRALEE 9%
T WA BRI 2R i

B —ER.E —FT—NO

FEYMEBLRIABISSASEB T WEE
B A B8I6EE L MERBERANE

LEWADR AL62EHE T R2.52EH
7T|:0

2014 2013

—E-OF —ET-Z=F
HK$ million  Ratio (%) HKS million Ratio (%)
Region it & BEBT Lt 45 (%) AEETT Lt 51 (%)
Guangzhou Hopson Regal Riviera EM& 4 KT T = 3,171 19 30 —
Hopson Regal Park AEEILES 2,858 17 — —
Hopson World Garden A EMRIE 2,100 12 249 2
Hopson Dreams World A A AR 1,611 9 1,725 11
Hopson Regal Bay AHEFEE 1,559 9 1,534 10
Hopson No.8 Royal Park ABEBEKSHR 1,004 6 3,355 21
Hopson Yuting Garden A EE 500 3 424 3
The Town of Hangzhou Bay A UM E BB T 468 3 — —
Hopson International New City A E BB 432 3 546 3
Ningbo Hopson International City 22 7 & 4 B 2 35, 420 2 405 3
Others Hi 2,922 17 7,380 47
17,045 100 15,648 100
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Deputy Chairman’s Statement (continued)
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2. BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

(1) Turnover (Continued)

Contracted sales by major projects:

2. ¥ O @)
(1) EEWAum
BIBEAEDZANME
2014 2013

—E-ImF —F-Z=F
HK$ million  Ratio (%) HK$ million Ratio (%)

Region & BEBT Lt 1l (%) BEBTT Lt 51(9%)
Guangzhou Hopson Regal Riviera EM& 4 KL HE = 1,200 18 1,680 12
Hopson World Garden A EHRIE 538 8 1,637 12
Hopson Dreams World A E R 511 8 475 3
Hopson Belvedere Bay AEESE 476 7 129 1
Hopson International New City A BB T Ik 428 6 501 4
Hopson Regal Park EEEITES 386 6 3,392 24
Hopson Pleasant View Garden EEBRER 369 5 2 —
Hopson Yijing Mingyuan EEBEZE 360 5 — —
Ningbo Hopson International City %2 5 & A= B9 BR 35, 283 4 84 1
Hopson Times Garden & AR — 5 260 4 1,484 11
Others HAi 1,934 29 4,726 32

6,745 100 14,110 100
(2) Project Completion Volume 2 TEXTIE
Completed area in 2014: ZE-NFEANTEIERE:

2014 2013
—ET-mF —E—=F

Area  Ratio (%) Area Ratio (%)

Region ih &= [ Lt 51 (%) [ERE Lt 151 (%)
(sq-m.) (sq.m.)
(75 3K) (FFF2K)

Southern China E ey 335,881 24 657,797 49
Northern China = b [ g 863,304 60 325,355 25
Eastern China TR R I 234,809 16 343,739 26
Total a5t 1,433,994 100 1,326,891 100
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

Deputy Chairman’s Statement (continued)
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(2) Project Completion Volume (Continued)

Property development completed area (projected):

2. ¥ O E @)

2 IExXIEm

W) % B8 e TE A (FRRT) ¢

2015 2016 2017 2018 and after
Completed Area Completed Area Completed Area Completed Area
—ZE-EfF —EB—XREF —E—+tH ZE-NFERU#E
Project Name HE EB TIEE TIEE EIMEE T IMEE
(sa.m.) (sg.m.) (sg.m.) (sg.m.)
(FF 7 K) (75 K) (75 K) (75 %K)
Beijing Hopson Regal Riviera ItREEKITR - - - 248,843
Hopson No. 8 Royal Park AHETEERSH — 53,371 53,442 385,349
Hopson Dreams World aEHE RN 15,222 113,355 - 42,640
Yuhe Project EAIEH - 10,000 - -
Hopson Regal Park EEREITS 168,963 5,979 57,991 —
Hopson Regal Court AERBRTR — - 79,607 58,414
Beijing Miyun Project It EIFR — 12,327 — _
Makeyan Project SEfIEE — — — 615,305
Jingjin New Town TR 92,996 165,444 72,520 3,262,795
Tianjin Hopson Belvedere Bay KEGEBRE 183,862 59,486 - —
Tianjin Hopson International Tower KEAEEBBRKE — — 95,999 101,591
Tianjin Hopson International Mansion RKEEEBBAE — — 158,939 —
Dongli Lake Project REMNEE - — 100,000 1,030,000
Hopson Regal Seashore AETITILFR - 14,999 118,207 221,674
Taiyuan Hopson International City KEAHEBERE 36,882 — 268,169 238,984
Hopson Seasky Villa B EXE M — 38,318 86,646 1,127,403
Hopson Town B £ B 2,742 — — —
Hopson Sheshan Dongziyuan AERILEEK 18,005 - — -
Hopson Yuting Garden A EME 8,649 — — —
Hopson International Plaza AEBEBRES — 345,944 — —
Hopson Guangfuhui EEESE — 101,253 25,102 —
Hopson Asset Seascape Residence AEMEEE AR - - 12,964 133,783
Shanghai Tea Factory Project EBRERIER - - - 37,366
Kunshan Hopson International Garden BELAERBETE 100,103 18,659 144,284 208,483
The Town of Hangzhou Bay & HE UM 2 B BRIk 46,126 115,087 190,749 2,455,503
Hopson Sea Block BEMNE — — — 223,353
Hopson Gallopade Park AEBRIIER - - - 439,529
Hopson Pleasant View Garden AERER — 34,242 — 30,047
Hopson Huanan New City A HEFEFW — — 43,915 129,590
Hopson Gallopade Park-South Court EEBEmPL 52,517 - 46,945 —
Guangzhou Hopson Regal Riviera BEMAEKRITS — 74,217 90,557 432,828
Hopson Regal Villa aEFRLE 20,214 40,358 23,290 -
Guangzhou Hopson Belvedere Bay EMEEERE - 30,000 244,518 122,797
Hopson Plaza EEES 118,402 9,066 50,728 -
Hopson Xijing Banshan AEESFIU — — 103,000 1,091,880
Zhujiang Technology Innovation Park IR Al E — - — 193,513
Hopson Hushan Guoji Villa & ORI B - 143,756 291,387 821,325
Qianjin Road Project AR IE B - - - 244,300
Hopson Yijing Mingyuan EEBESED 48,042 - - 1,303,709
Hopson TIT International Industrial Park & A4 TIT B B 7= % — 19,322 30,112 325,899
TIT Project (International Park) TTER (RZEE) — — 132,078 656,347
Hopson Yujing Bay BERMEE 64,379 140,400 247,683 1,417,348
Hopson Regal Bay AEFRE — — — 146,063
SEAREEBRAR —ZT-—NEFHR 21




Deputy Chairman’s Statement (continued)
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2. BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

(2) Project Completion Volume (continued)

Property development completed area (projected): (Continued)

2. ¥ O E @)

2 IBEIE®@m

WEMETTEEGER) : (B)

2015 2016 2017 2018 and after

Completed Area Completed Area Completed Area Completed Area

—E-1F —E—-KREF ZE—tHF ZE-NERNUE

Project Name HEER T IEE 5% L& % L& % IHEH&

(sg.m.) (sg.m.) (sg.m.) (sg.m.)

(FF 7 K) (FF 7 2K) (FF 7 K) (FF75K)

Hopson International New City A 4 BB ET 112,692 128,895 438,860 45,000

Zhujiang New Industry Innovation Park WIFEZERE — — - 1,383,667

Shidai City Project B R 3 78 B — 56,730 85,730 1,328,970

Hopson Xiaogui Bay AHENESE 131,702 207,966 25,007 1,607,184

Hopson Zhongshan Regal Court AEEFRILFTRD — 51,235 13,583 -

Zhongshan Dongkeng Project L ERTIEE — 51,000 51,000 259,520

Zhongshan Rainbow Project PR UTIEB 19,230 - 53,000 373,455

Total A&t 1,240,728 2,041,409 3,436,012 22,834,457
(3) Land Bank (8) LT Huf#ME

The Group possesses adequate land banks in the first-tier cities,
such as Beijing, Shanghai and Guangzhou, with excellent quality
while at lower costs. This is also one of the Group’s core
competitive strengths to sustain persistent growth. The Group
palanced the need of long-term and current development and
acquired new lands pursuant to a prudent and orderly principle. As
at 31st December 2014, the land bank of the Group was 32.69
million sg.m., which is sufficient for the rapid development of the

Group in the future.
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Deputy Chairman’s Statement (continued)
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2. BUSINESS REVIEW (continued) 2. %i‘% o] EE (&)
(3) Land Bank (Continued) (8) L ibfEME @
Usage and Location AEEitE

Saleable Area (million sg.m.)

AHEEER (BB FHEXK)
Guangzhou  Huizhou Beijing Tianjin Shanghai Ningbo Total
BN =M = RE b= BR Bt

Residential = 5.24 6.40 3.36 512 3.85 0.21 24.18
Shopping arcade 7 47 1.12 0.23 0.38 0.17 0.19 0.02 2.11
Office YN 0.71 — 0.43 0.20 0.15 — 1.49
Car parks E=a#is 1.62 1.01 0.59 0.24 0.48 — 3.94
Hotels BE 0.22 0.22 0.20 0.16 0.17 - 0.97
Total st 8.91 7.86 4.96 5.89 4.84 0.23 32.69
Development Status and Location BREMARME

Saleable Area (million sg.m.)
AHEEER (BB FHXK)
Guangzhou Huizhou Beijing Tianjin Shanghai  Ningbo Total

& M =M ik = X#E Lt =2 st
Completed BN E 0.60 0.29 0.89 0.56 0.57 0.23 3.14
properties
Properties under BRAPYE 1.30 1.14 1.55 1.00 1.67 — 6.66
development
Properties to be HERME 7.01 6.43 2.52 4.33 2.60 — 22.89
developed
Total 5t 8.91 7.86 4.96 5.89 4.84 0.23 32.69
Development Status and Usage BRMRE AR
Saleable Area (million sq.m.)
AHEEEE(EBTEAK)
Shopping
Residential arcade Office Car parks Hotels Total
F= [k WAE FHEiE BIE et
Completed properties BEER 1.46 0.51 0.35 0.53 0.29 3.14
Properties under BERPYE 4.64 0.50 0.35 0.97 0.20 6.66
development
Properties to be FERME 18.08 1.10 0.79 2.44 0.48 22.89
developed
Total et 24.18 2.11 1.49 3.94 0.97 32.69
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Deputy Chairman’s Statement (continued)

A 32 % ol (4)
2. BUSINESS REVIEW (continued) 2. % i‘% @] EE (&)
(3) Land Bank (Continued) (8) L ivfEE @
Title Status and Location FrEER I EE
Saleable Area (million sg.m.)
AHEEER(BEEF LK)
Guangzhou Huizhou Beijing Tianjin Shanghai  Ningbo Total
B M =M = P= tB BK st
Land use rights EEE i 3.50 1.10 2.29 0.61 1.85 0.23 9.58
certificates and B E MR
construction works T#ERE
planning permits TR
obtained
Land use rights [ 3.83 5.38 2.08 2.10 1.66 — 15.05

certificates obtained FRFEBARE
but without construction 3 5% T 12 17 ZI
works planning permits ~ £F 7] &

Construction land EMERER - - 0.35 - - - 0.35
use planning AR &
permits obtained BRI ERS
but without land S i
use rights FHAE
certificates

Grant of major BETFTEH#H X 1.68 1.38 0.24 3.18 1.33 - 7.
approvals and REZHH

certificates pending

Total HEt 8.91 7.86 4.96 5.89 4.84 0.23 32.69
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Deputy Chairman’s Statement (continued)

PRINCIPAL OPERATING STRATEGIES
AND ARRANGEMENTS OF THE
COMPANY IN 2015

(1) Adapting to market development and
making diversified strategic
transformation

During the past year, the property market went through in-depth
adjustment. Stepping into 2015, the Group will capture the trend of
market demand to crank up development in first-tier cities with
Beijing, Shanghai and Guangzhou as core areas while gearing up
efforts in developing neighboring markets. The Group will also carry
out product positioning in accordance with the market-oriented
principle, optimize product structure, improve value and accelerate
sales. Meanwhile, the Group actively engaged in the development
of commercial and industrial real estate in a prudent manner.
Strenuous efforts will be made to foster the smooth construction
and opening of large-scale commercial properties in core cities
such as Beijing, Shanghai and Guangzhou. Another focal point is
the development of industrial projects with a target of launching
large-scale industrial properties to the market at the earliest
possible time.

(2) Improving quality and service together
with property value

The Group has always focused on deluxe properties with high
quality and value. In 2015, on top of the traditional premium
properties, the Group will ramp up the construction of ancillary
facilities such as educational, food and beverage, hotel and medical
facilities to give extra convenience to residents and improve their
living experience. On the basis of hardware improvement, the
Group will proactively promote the improvement and enhancement
of service quality, strengthen property management and increase
service awareness to realize property value through our services.

(3) Strengthening the operating capability
and realizing the operating goal

The Group will continue to focus on residential business and
improve the profitability of residential products. For high-end
properties, great emphasis will be placed on maintaining the
exceptional quality and value in order to generate handsome profit.
With respect to properties targeting at improvement needs, the
Group will proactively increase the added value of products and
attract more consumers. In terms of products targeting at rigid
demand, we will put more effort on development and accelerating
sales to achieve the operating goals. On the commercial front, the
Group will devote to maintain the high occupancy rate of offices
and shops and increase its efforts in business solicitation in order
to improve the overall commercial operating results.
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Deputy Chairman’s Statement (continued)

Rl 3 R e ()

PRINCIPAL OPERATING STRATEGIES
AND ARRANGEMENTS OF THE
COMPANY IN 2015 (Continued)

(4) Maintaining land bank and improving the
competitiveness

In the increasingly competitive market, land bank is the foundation
of corporate development. The Group has always maintained a
healthy land bank and particularly focused on high-quality lands in
first-tier cities such as Beijing, Shanghai and Guangzhou, which
enhanced our market competitiveness. Meanwhile, with the said
three cities as key focuses and radiating outward to surrounding
cities such as Tianjin, Ningbo and Huizhou, the Group will actively
acquire land bank with promising potential and pursue coordinated
and multi-structural development which covers various business
sectors.

(5) Enhancing standardized construction and
implementing refined management

During the course of strategic transformation and gradual
enlargement of scale, the Group attaches great importance to
modern management concept and proactively promotes the reform
of standardized management. To enhance management, the Group
will formulate and improve various standardized system and
management and control measures to ward off potential risks and
loopholes in management. In terms of production and operation,
the Group will strenuously promote informatizationed construction,
realize management and supervision on production and operation
through informatizationed platform and formulate refined standards
for production and operation. Besides, a comprehensive
management method will be adopted to improve management,
production and operational efficiency through all-encompassing
standardization and informatizationed initiatives.

(6) Strengthening team building and
fostering enterprise culture

An excellent team plays a more pivotal role in the increasingly
competitive market environment. In order to improve teamwork in
the workplaces and build up an elite team of high caliber, the
Group spared no effort in the team building of elite employees and
reserve cadre as well as strengthening the business and
management training system. At the same time, the Group will
continue to pay attention to the cultivation of corporate culture.
Through carrying out a series of projects including youth
foundation, the Group will promote positive value and foster a vivid
and lively corporate culture.
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Deputy Chairman’s Statement (continued)

Rl 3 R e ()

4. AWARDS 4, HKE
In 2014, Hopson Development received various awards as follows: 014FEE ARG HEEATE
Hopson Development was on the list of “11th Blue-chip Real Estate AEHEBREEBE(EEBRB)2E+—E
Enterprise in China” of The Economic Observer [FRESHENEIEFES
Beijing Hopson Fortune Plaza received the title of “China IR E LT ESLE20149 B 7 E i
Commercial Property Golden Standard Award — Best Investment EEFXtEg 2 PEBENESER
Value Benchmark Project Award for Commercial Property in China” R HENERAREEEEZERER]

in China Commercial Real Estate Industrial Summit 2014

Hopson Kylin Xintiandi won the title of “China Commercial Property B A BB R R HE AR 2014 R B B ¥ b EE
Golden Standard Award — Most Outstanding and Innovative EFXtEgz[PEEEHESERE—
Operating Project of Commercial Property in China” in China FEEEMERTDAINELSER]

Commercial Real Estate Industrial Summit 2014

Hopson Development was awarded the title of “Most Socially EHEARLETBRREBSIFERAEL
Responsible Corporate Award for the Year” by the Chinese Press eETNEHE]
Association
“The Golden Brick Award of the China Property Industry” in the 014FBENH L FHMERBEI14EF
14th Annual Meeting of 21st Century’s Boao Real Estate Forum 2hEMESER] 2
2014:
—  “2014 Most Attractive Listed Property Companies for — [o04EHEAKREBEME LT AR
Investment”
—  “2014 Comprehensive Quality Award — Hopson No. 8 Royal — [204FEREHKAERE—GLESE
Park” ¥ 855
—  “2014 Role Model of Park Property Award — Hopson Regal — [204FELREHMEMRESE KRE—F 4
Park” BIwE]
5. APPRECIATION 5. R
| would like to express my heartfelt gratitude to our management AAZUBEERBERSMEIAMNEA
and all staff members for their commitments and dedications to the 13 )R 3R R o
Group.
CHU Kut Yung B E
Deputy Chairman KER
Hong Kong, 31st March 2015 BEAE —_E-—HF=A=+—H
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Property Profile
ES Iy

Beijing it

1.

Hopson Regal Riviera
BEKRITR

Hopson Citta Eterna
BEESEE

Hopson International Garden

A ERRIEE

Hopson No. 8 Royal Park

AT K8
Dongfangwenhua Art Center

R SEEEAM L

Beijing Hopson Desheng Building
IREEEBRE

Hopson Kylin Zone

BB

Hopson Dreams World

At A
Yuhe Project
FIAER

Shanghai L&

23.

24.

25.

26.

27.

28.

29.

30.

Hopson Town

A E B

Hopson Golf Mansion
EERRELE

Hopson Sheshan Dongziyuan
BERURERER

Hopson Lantern Villa

A ERAER

Hopson International Garden
a4 BIRIEE

Hopson Dongjiao Villa
AERMBHIZE

Hopson Yuting Garden

A EER

Hopson International Plaza
& EBIRES

10. Hopson World Garden
EEHRIEE

11.  Hopson Regal Park
AEBITES

12.  Hopson Regal Court
BERRTER

13. Beijing Miyun Project
JEREEIEA

14. Makeyan Project
SRR R

Tianjin XE

15.  Jingjin New Town
ORI

16. Hopson Belvedere Bay
aEERE

17. Tianjin Hopson International
Tower

REAEEBAE

31. Hopson Fortune Plaza
EEMEES

32. Hopson Guangfuhui
EEREEE

33. Hopson Times Garden
EERE—R

34. Hopson Asset Seascape
Residence
EEVMEBRDE

35. Shanghai Tea Factory Project

EERERER

Hangzhou #i /M
36. Hopson World Trade Centre
M EEBRZH O

Kunshan £
37. Hopson International Garden
A ERRIER
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18. Tianjin Hopson
International Mansion
REGEBBRAS

19. Dongli Lake Project
REMEE

Dalian K&

20. Hopson Regal Seashore

EHETIIFR

Taiyuan XJ&

21. Hopson International City
& 4B

Qinhuangdao ££ 5
22. Hopson Seasky Villa
G ERE

Ningbo 2§

38. Hopson International City
& E B

Cixi &%

39. The Town of Hangzhou Bay
B HERME BRI

Taicang X &

40. Hopson Sea Block
HEHE




Guangzhou E /N

41. Hopson Gallopade Park 45. Hopson Regal Riviera
GEERIEE BERIFR

42. Hopson Pleasant View Garden 46. Hopson Regal Palace
BERREE BETBREN

43. Hopson Huanan New City 47. Hopson Yijing Huayuan
B HEERETIN AEERER

44. Hopson Gallopade Park 48. Hopson Zhujiang
— South Court International Tower
e Sl BERIBBRAE

P

Huanbohai economic zone
R S anm

Qinhuangdao

B
Beijing §aﬁ Dalian
= RE
9 ©
()
Tiar]jin

Taiyuan e

KR
©
l Yangtze River Delta economic zone
RI=AManm
Taicang
Kunshan A2 _Shanghai
j Bl ©©9 5

e

Pearl River Delta economic zone

BI=AMenn F

Hangzhou &) &) __Ningbo
BN oD PR

2

Guangzhou
M Huizhou
© © =N
Zhongshan (&)
il

%

&

49.

50.

51.

52.

53.

54.

57.

58.

59.

Hopson Yunshan Xijing
BEELER

Hopson Regal Villa
BEBRILG

Hopson Belvedere Bay
BHEARE

Hopson Plaza

& E B

Hopson Xijing Banshan
aHEERFL

Zhujiang Technology Innovation
Park

IR KEIRE

Hopson Regal International
& ETHRER

Hopson Hushan Guoiji Villa

& L B

Qianjin Road Project
AI#ERRIA B

Hopson TIT International Industrial
Park

BHETIT AREZR

TIT Project (International Park)
TTIEE (RHEE)

Huizhou = M|

60.

61.

62.

63.

64.

65.

Hopson Yujing Bay
BEMSE

Hopson Regal Bay
BETFRE

Hopson International New City
B HE BB

Zhujiang New Industry Innovation
Park

I EREIER

Shidai City Project

R E B

Hopson Xiaogui Bay
B

Zhongshan 1L

66.

67.

68.

Hopson Zhongshan Regal Court
BERITFRL

Zhongshan Dongkeng Project
FILIERSTIER

Zhongshan Rainbow Project
FILATIER
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4
E

Dongsishitiao

L +
R+ & 3
1]
=
Chaoivg;ibn%n ft?treet E Chaoyang Park
o | 8 2 15 2
-E N. Chaoyang Road
=
Ritan Park E ] Chaoyang Road
REA g B 5
a

Beijing Youyi Shop Chaoyang District
RAEREE G E

Jianguomenwaida St. Jianguo Road

ZEPI I KA EE K
Tonghui Riveri& 2 5

Guangqumenwaida St.

SE
3875 5 A Guangqu Road [& 3£
Jingsong Road Nan Mofang Road 7 & =
LGRS

Hopson Regal Riviera ¢ §4 ¥ I%F =

it R EAR5 & 78 K 2 352357 (A 100% # 25)

23, West Dawang Road, Chaoyang District, Beijing (100% owned)

Hopson Regal Riviera

BEWIFSR

2. Hopson Citta Eterna
BEESEE

3. Hopson International Garden
REERTEE

4. Hopson No. 8 Royal Park
BEBERSH

5. Dongfangwenhua Art Center
RAXFEEM PO

6. Beijing Hopson Desheng Building
TREEEBRE

7. Hopson Kylin Zone
SEBBi

8. Hopson Dreams World
EEHRN

9. Yuhe Project
EAEE

10. Hopson World Garden
EEHREE

11. Hopson Regal Park
REEIFS

12. Hopson Regal Court
BERRTR

13. Beijing Miyun Project
EtREEER

14. Makeyan Project
BRFER

Sg.m.
B5xT Construction completed 97,166
NN S Construction to be completed
- ZE-N\FE&PIE in 2018 and after 248,843
R-Z—mME+=-A Land bank as at
=+—B2EEE 31st December 2014 346,009
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[

Hopson Citta Eterna e 84 & EEE
107, Chaoyang North Road, Chaoyang District, Beijing (100% owned)
3t A 5 1R 88 F5 b 5% 107 9% (% A 100% #E 7))
Sqg.m.

(
b

T Construction completed 18,849

—E-mNE+-A Land bank as at
TRz E 31st December 2014 18,849

%

Hopson International Garden ¢ &4 BBt E

31, Guanggumenwai Street, Chaoyang District, Beijing (100% owned)

L RS & R PIHMRET31 5% (B 100% 1 &
7K
Sg.m.

]
ol

T Construction completed 3,025
T —MFE+ A Land bank as at

Q

TRz TR 31st December 2014 3,025

8, Xiaoyun Road, Chaoyang District, Beijing (80% owned)
LRGSR E E K8 (HEH80% )
K
Sg.m.
BExT Construction completed 115,918
BRATEBTET Construction to be completed
- TE—X in 2016 53,371

in 2017 53,442
in 2018 and after 385,349

—E-ME+_-A Land bank as at
=t+—BzLIHE 31st December 2014 608,080

Dongfangwenhua Art Center 3 J5 i/
West Side of the East Second Ring Road, Dongcheng District, Beiing (97 % owned)
JIERRMIER IR A (EE 7% E )
K
Sg.m.

(o
ol

Construction completed 141,343

A

A H

T—NFE+= A Land bank as at
A2z T fE e 31st December 2014 141,343

[ %
—‘H\

Hopson No. 8 Royal Park &4 EERK8E
4
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Beijing Hopson Desheng Building * it &4 & KB

No. 11 Deshengmenwai Street, Xicheng District, Beijing (100% owned) “ '” 1“ !
36 R P [ 1 R FT A K11 5% (8 100% ¢ #5) H | | ”F I -1 | 1 |
F 7K 1 AN
Sg.m. s
i s "'i'. '! § i
25T Construction completed 53,542 SiEald
RZZT—ME+A Land bank as at
S+—B2 ke 31st December 2014 53,542 1 1l
Hopson Kylin Zone ¢ &4 i1t
Interchange of Wangjing Futong West Street and Wangjing Street,
Chaoyang District, Beijing (100% owned)
I RHGEEERBBARNETMNERERIER (B 100%E )
IR
Sag.m.
BT Construction completed 47,801
RZZT—MNFE+=A Land bank as at
=t+—HZ iR E 31st December 2014 47,801

Hopson Dreams World © & 4 tt 524

500 metres south of the bridge, No. 1, Majugiao, Majugiao Town,
Liangshui River South, Yizhuang, Tongzhou District, Beijing (100% owned)

16 7B N R 758 3R KA 7 S 5045 SR 55 5048 1 5% 48 9 600K (B 100% # 51)

F 3K
Sqg.m.
BT Construction completed 134,899
B TER T Construction to be completed
—:2 hF in 2015 15,222
-—E—REF in 2016 113,355
-= ; — N\F R LAR in 2018 and after 42,640
RZZT—MNFE+=A Land bank as at
—t+—HZ LR E 31st December 2014 306,116

Yuhe Project ® EJA[IE B

Plot 11, Southern District of Yuhe Wenbao Area, Dongcheng District,
Beijing (100% owned)

LR R £ 0 SR8 E AR R 11 5% 30 48 (BB 100% #E 25)

BRATEETL Construction to be completed
—E—RF in 2016
RZEBE—ME+ZA Land bank as at

—t+—BzIHHE 31st December 2014
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Hopson World Garden ¢ &4ttt R 1EE

500 metres south of the bridge, No. 1 Majugiao, Yizhuang, Tongzhou District,
Beijing (100% owned)

b RUE N R IR B RS 1 9548 R 500 K (A 100% #E 4 )

Sg.m.
[ Construction completed 144,167
RZZT—WME+=A Land bank as at
—t+t—BztiEE 31st December 2014 144167

Hopson Regal Park « 4 & 1% S
Qiaozhuang Village, Yongshun Town, Tongzhou District, Beijing (100% owned)
16 FUB M R oK IR SEAS TR (B 100% 1 &%)

Sqg.m.
2% Construction completed 14,282
MR TRETIT Construction to be completed
:25 AF in 2015 168,963
-—E—RXF in 2016 5,979
-ZE—tF in 2017 57,991
RZZT—WMNE+=A Land bank as at
=+—Hz1ikEE 31st December 2014 247,215

Hopson Regal Court e 4TS

Xin Tian Jia Yuan South Zone, No. 21, West Dawang Road, Chaoyang District,
Beijing (100% owned)

FRBHREAKNEE2IRI AR EMEE (A 100%#5)

Sg.m.
ERUATEMTT Construction to be completed
-ZT—tF in 2017 79,607
B NERE in 2018 and after 58,414
RZZE—MNE+ZA Land bank as at
=t+t—BztiRFEE 31st December 2014 138,021
Beijing Miyun Project ¢ 1t ZZ2E 18 B
East of Shanzi Reservoir, Bulaotun Vilage Miyun County (100% owned)
BEGAEEHA L FKERB (FH100% =)
7K
Sg.m.
BRATEBETT Construction to be completed
-ZE—RF in 2016 12,327
RZZT—MFE+=A Land bank as at
=+ —HBzZIMFEE 31st December 2014 12,327
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Makeyan Project » ERIfIEH

Plot A (Southern Region) and Plot D (Southern Region) of Scientific Research
Site of National Environmental Protection Industrial Park, Tongzhou District,
Beijing (100% owned)

ItRAMNEBRRRREXRRETAMAREE XD IREE
(HEB 100% 1 25)

Sg.m.
R TRBETT Construction to be completed
- —E-N\FE KB in 2018 and after 615,305
R-ZZT—WNE+=A Land bank as at
—t+—BZzLIMEHE 31st December 2014 615,305
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Tianjin

Rt

Baodi District
.

Tianjin
K2

Heping District
AFE

=z

ankai District
HHEE

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

Jingjin New Town o ZUZH

No. 1, Zhujiang South Road, Zhouliangzhuang Town, Baodi District, Tianjin

(92.3% owned)

KEEREBRFHEKTIEE - (HEH2.3% )

Jingjin New Town
TURFE

Hopson Belvedere Bay
BEERHE

Tianjin Hopson International
Tower

REEEEBRKE

Tianjin Hopson International
Mansion
REEGHEBLAE

Dongli Lake Project
REMIER

Sg.m.
BxEL Construction completed 394,206
BRI TERMETIT Construction to be completed
-—E—HF in 2015 92,996
= in 2016 165,444
-—E—+tF in 2017 72,520
S ZE - N\ERE in 2018 and after 3,262,795
AZE—MFE+ A Land bank as at
=t+—Bz:MEE 31st December 2014 3,987,961

ERIRE
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Hopson Belvedere Bay » &4 & S

Interchange of Donghai Road and No. 1 Shipcanal, Tanggu Development Zone,
Tianjin (90% owned)

REBOAEEME BEFEERIA (HEIO%ER)

Sg.m.
B AN e T Construction to be completed
-—T—01%F in 2015 183,862
- T —R#F in 2016 59,486
RZZT—WNFE+=A Land bank as at
=+t—HzTMfFEE 31st December 2014 243,348

Tianjin Hopson International Tower  XZ& £ B KE

Interchange of Fuan Main Street and Xingan Road, Heping District,
Tianjin (at Beian Bridge) (98.9% owned)

RKEMFERBRLAFAALZERIA (UL LERBHE) (HEH8.9%ER)

oK
Sqg.m.
BRI TRETT Construction to be completed
- —EF—+F in 2017 95,999
-ZE-N\FRNE in 2018 and after 101,591
RZE—WNE+ZR Land bank as at
—t+—BzIHEHE 31st December 2014 197,590

Tianjin Hopson International Mansion » X;Z2&4£ BB AE

Interchange of Weijin South Road and Shuishang North Road, Nankai District,
Tianjin (100% owned)

REmMFEEZREE MK EIERAZ O (BEA100% %)

Sqg.m.
5B A T B 8 52 T Construction to be completed
- T —+F in 2017 158,939
RZZT—WMNE+=A Land bank as at
=+ —HZ LR E 31st December 2014 158,939

Dongli Lake Project » 3REE;HH1EH

East Chitu of Chitu Town, Dongli Avenue North, Dongli Lake West, Dongli District,
Tianjin (100% owned)

RERBERTHEFTNE RERBEAL - KRBT (EE100%E %)

K
Sg.m.
BRATEMTL Construction to be completed
-ZT—+tF in 2017 100,000
-—E-NFERE in 2018 and after 1,030,000
RZZT—ME+A Land bank as at
=+ —HzZ LR E 31st December 2014 1,130,000
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International Airport

REAKFEBES

{

\
A\
{
1
0

Lushunkou Station)

=2

Huang Hai

=5

20. Hopson Regal Seashore
BEILFS

Hopson Regal Seashore e 54T ILF S
808, Yanbei Road, Tieshan Town, Lushunkou District, Dalian (100% owned)
R R JIE O [ 8511 $E B8 4 BX 808 5% (#E B 100% ## %)

Sg.m.

d 5wl Construction completed 72,842
at 7% B LA T B ) 52 T Construction to be completed

H e A in 2016 14,999

af - Tt fF in 2017 118,207

1 -ZE-N\FENUE in 2018 and after 221,674

A-—ZE—NF+_—A Land bank as at
=t+—BzLiEHE 31st December 2014 427,722
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— Yingpan Street
- s

[
§' Provincial Government g‘
2 Municipal G e LEmﬁt 2 %
<" Municipal Government =’
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o Ry
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B

wB
Gt

peoy nA

Changfeng Street & & #if

Shanxi University
_ ]
Xuefu Street £ fF #7 WExER

Hopson International City ® & 4 Bl 5,
West of Bingzhou Road, East of Tiyu Road and North of Eryingpan Street,
Taiyuan, Shanxi (100% owned)

IWFEARIFMEE AT - BEBIAR - — &8I (BB 100%E )

Sqg.m.
BRATEMBTEL Construction to be completed
-—T—hEF in 2015 36,882
— B+ in 2017 268,169
-ZE-N\FRMNE in 2018 and after 238,984
R_Z—NF+=A Land bank as at
=+—HBztikEE 31st December 2014 544,035
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21. Hopson International City
EHEEB




Qinhuangdao

REE

Jiujiang River 22. Hopson Seasky Villa
JUSIoA
SEXRET

Mengjiang Town
=

Hopson Seasky Villa ® &4 X &1

Intersection of Hebei and Liaoning Provinces, Northwestern coast of
Liaodong Bay (51% owned)

FEREFILLE EEMNAXAR (HEBES1%ER)

Sg.m.
BExELT Construction completed 19,467
MR TEMETIT Construction to be completed
-ZE—RF in 2016 38,318
-—E—+tF in 2017 86,646
-ZE-N\FRUE in 2018 and after 1,127,403
RN_ZE—NE+—A Land bank as at
=t+—BZLIEHEE 31st December 2014 1,271,834
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Hongkou District “

33|
%
¢ Shanghai Civil Aviation Airport
S RAEERS
aced 8%
B =
2|
Sheshan
PN

]
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23.

24,

25.

26.

27.

28.

29.

30.

31.

32.

33.

34.

35.

Hopson Town
BEH B

Hopson Golf Mansion
BESHEARAE

Hopson Sheshan Dongziyuan
BERURERE

Hopson Lantern Villa

SEMEER

Hopson International Garden
EEBERIEE

Hopson Dongjiao Villa

BERMAEIE

Hopson Yuting Garden
BEMNER

Hopson International Plaza

SEBERES

Hopson Fortune Plaza
BEEMEES

Hopson Guangfuhui

BEEEE

Hopson Times Garden
BERE

Hopson Asset Seascape Residence

BEVEBRNE

Shanghai Tea Factory Project
EBEERIER



518, Anning Road, Minhang District, Shanghai (100% owned)
FERTTIR 251855 (M H 100% # &)

7oK
Sg.m.
BExELT Construction completed 33,016
BRATHERT Construction to be completed
-ZT—HRF in 2015 2,742
RZZT—ME+=A Land bank as at

=+—Bzti#EE 31st December 2014

35,758

Hopson Golf Mansion e S84 S A A E
1095, Jiangpu Road, Yangpu District, Shanghai (100% owned)
IS E TR 10955 (B 100% 4 25 )

2% |

+—BZt+EE 31st December 2014

7K

Sg.m.

L Construction completed 892
T—mFE+=A Land bank as at

892

Hopson Sheshan Dongziyuan ¢ S4£ R ILEREKE
1189, Linhu Road, Shanghai Sheshan National Hohday Resort,
Shanghai (100% owned)
AL B R R 5 R @ MOH B 118957 (& 100% ## 7% )

75K
Sqg.m.
[ Construction completed 74,427
15 58 LA T B ) 52 T Construction to be completed
-—ZE—ARF in 2015 18,005
RZZE—MNE+ZA Land bank as at

—t+t—BztiREE 31st December 2014

92,432

Hopson Lantern Villa ¢ &4 Bi#ZE

199 Nong, Zhenle Road, Zhaoxiang New City, Qingpu District,
Shanghai (100% owned)

FESHEMES ALK 1995 (B 100% #E m=)

+—B 2 E 31st December 2014

T3 K

Sg.m.
[ Construction completed 4,154
RZZ—ME+=H Land bank as at

4,154
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Hopson International Garden ¢ &£ BB 1E

1290, Changxing East Road, Dongjing, Songjiang District,
Shanghai (94% owned)

EIBHNT (& ORE & BR 51290 5% (ME B 94% &)

Sqg.m.
[RE Construction completed 6,272
RZZT—MNE+=A Land bank as at
=+ —HZz:HEE 31st December 2014 6,272
Hopson Dongjiao Villa ® &4 R %85I 2
7,699 Nong, Cuibai Road, Pudong New Area, Shanghai (100% owned)
EIEH R E B 6007 75k (B 100% 1 245
R
Sg.m.
2L Construction completed 36,682
RZE—NMNFE+=A Land bank as at
=t+—BztHEE 31st December 2014 36,682

Hopson Yuting Garden ¢ &£ H5EE
99, Xiangju Road, Zhaoxiang Town, Qingpu District, Shanghai (100% owned)
LB HEREEHEBEKM (MHE100% )

Sa.m.
2L Construction completed 10,879
BRATEETL Construction to be completed
-ZE—hF in 2015 8,649
RZZT—WNFE+=A Land bank as at
=+ —HzZ:HEE 31st December 2014 19,5628
Hopson International Plaza ¢ &4+ Bl &5
292 Jiefang, Yangpu District, Shanghai (100% owned)
EIE15 7 E 29247 7 (B 100% H )
K
Sg.m.
N Construction to be completed
-ZE—XF in 2016 345,944
RZZT—MNFE+=A Land bank as at
=+—B2 T EEE 31st December 2014 345,944
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Hopson Fortune Plaza e 848 EEH
483, Feihong Road, Hongkou District, Shanghai (100% owned)
G AT O R AR AT 3% 483 5% (HE A 100% # %5

Sqg.m.
B25xL Construction completed 51,200
RZZE—WMNFE+=A Land bank as at
—t+—BztiREE 31st December 2014 51,200

Hopson Guangfuhui e 84 E=E

| Lot Nos. 2-5, Guang Fu Lin, Songjiang District, Shanghai (100% owned)

EERNTREEEMNE2E55 (A 100%# %5)

F K
Sg.m.
R AT R T T Construction to be completed
-ZE—RF in 2016 101,253
-ZE—tF in 2017 25,102
RZZT—ME+=HA Land bank as at
=t+t—BztiR#EE 31st December 2014 126,355

Hopson Times Garden o &4 B —9%

Lot A14-1, Sanlin Ji Zhen, Sanlin Zhen, Pudong New District,
Shanghai (100% owned)

FBER SR =ME = MERA14-1 (FEF100% # &)

Sqg.m.
BxT Construction completed 99,459
RZZT—MFE+=A Land bank as at
—t+— Bz E 31st December 2014 99,459

Hopson Asset Seascape Residence * &4 81 =82 At
Lot E25, Hangzhou Bay Avenue, Longsheng Road, Jinshan New Dlstrlot,
Shanghai (100% owned)

% LB R BE WU B K58 37 [ E25 (¥ B 100% 1 %) K
Sa.m.

B5xT Construction completed 102,044

ERATERRTI Construction to be completed

-—E—+tF in 2017 12,964

- —E-N\FEKE in 2018 and after 133,783

RZE—NFE+=A Land bank as at

—t+—BzIEE 31st December 2014 248,791
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Shanghai Tea Factory Project /8 E%1EH
No. 1300 Jungong Road, Yangpu District, Shanghai (100% owned)
TS E F I # 13005 (¥ A 100% # %)

Sg.m.
35 BRAUATEBTT Construction to be completed
- ZE-N\FRNE in 2018 and after 37,366
RZE—NFE+ZA Lank bank as at
—t+—HBztiEE 31st December 2014 37,366
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Hangzhou

\N T
o . = A
w5 mg B \

. S
Y :%; % %\\ r’ Municipal Governme 36. Hopson World Trade Centre
E¥ AL ST WA AMNE EEE D
“’ \
o
\ A )
\- —
S—- / ite & —= Provincial Government }
S g
oa
- / os\‘a“ ¢ \
— ,‘-\a(\“\ \
E Zhejiang University \
DA
wHE
yard road

Xi Lake
i

Hopson World Trade Centre ® #i /& 4B E H /0
No. 327, Tianmushan Road, Xihu District, Hangzhou (95% owned)
FUMNFERRIE K B 1L FE 327 5% (B 95% 1 )

Sqg.m.
BExT Construction completed 87,456
RZZE—WNFE+=A Land bank as at
—t+—BzLIHHE 31st December 2014 87,456
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Hopson International Garden ¢ &4 BB EE

Yingzhou Road and south of Xintang River Zhoushi Town, Kunshan City

(100% owned)
B2 1L 7 JB) T 8 0 R B& P 55 B R O] LA R (¥ B 100% 1 #5) )
I 5K
Sag.m.
2%l Construction completed 15,203
MR TRETT Construction to be completed
-—E—HF in 2015 100,103
- —EF—RF in 2016 18,659
- —E—+F in 2017 144,284
-—E-N\FERKE in 2018 and after 298,483
R-ZE—WNFE+_A4 Land bank as at
=t+—B2zt+ifEE 31st December 2014 576,732
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37. Hopson International Garden

BEBERIEE
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38. Hopson International City
BHEBRR

Hopson International City ¢ & 4 BB
No. 1, Zhongbao Road, Zhenhai New City, Ningbo (100% owned)
EOREE M ESR 19 (M A 100% &)

e 38
BExT Construction completed 225,733
R-ZZTE—mE+—A Land bank as at
—t+—Bz:MEE 31st December 2014 225,733

SHERREBERAR —ZT-HFEFR 47



Hangzhou Bay Bridge The East Sea
M E R RS
Hangzhou Bay
AN Hangzhou Bay New District
HNEHE

Ci Dong Industrial Zone
ZRIXEE

Cixi City
ZEm

The Town of Hangzhou Bay ¢ & 4 #iu /N B PR #7356

FEOR AN 3 % 7a 4L 5B (BB 100% HE 25)

Northwestern region of Hangzhou Bay New District, Cixi (100% owned)

7K
Sag.m.
BExT Construction completed 51,475
A NSRS e T Construction to be completed
—E—FE in 2015 46,126
-ZE-RF in 2016 115,087 |
T4 in 2017 190,749
- N\FRUNE in 2018 and after 2,455,508

N-E—ME+—F Land bank as at
=+t—Bz1FEE 31st December 2014

2,858,940
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39. The Town of Hangzhou Bay
PRI

BEHM

=




& 5. %
S, 7
%ﬁr?%o

&
Liujiagang Town

BxRBHE

40. Hopson Sea Block
BEMEE

No. 588, Longjiang Road, Taicang (100% owned)
KB #E /L B 58855 ( #EH 100% 1 )

Sg.m.

B AT B 72 T
-—E-N\FRAR

Construction to be completed
in 2018 and after

223,353

RZE—NFE+=A
“t+—AztREE

Land bank as at
31st December 2014

223,353
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Guangzhou

&g N

Guangzhou

BN

Guangzhou

BEMNm
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41. Hopson Gallopade Park
EERRTE

42. Hopson Pleasant View Garden
EERSEER

43. Hopson Huanan New City
BEEEHE

44. Hopson Gallopade Park — South
Court
BEREERE

45. Hopson Regal Riviera
BEBRIFR

46. Hopson Regal Palace
BEFRER

47. Hopson Yijing Huayuan
BEESER

48. Hopson Zhujiang International Tower
BEWHIBKRKRE

49. Hopson Yunshan Xijing

BEELESR

50. Hopson Regal Villa
BEFRILH

51. Hopson Belvedere Bay
EEERE

52. Hopson Plaza
BEES

53. Hopson Xijing Banshan
BEES¥

54. Zhujiang Technology Innovation Park
BIBFKAEE

55. Hopson Regal International
BEFRER

56. Hopson Hushan Guoji Villa
BE LB

57. Qianjin Road Project
AR IE B

58. Hopson TIT International Industrial
Park
EETTEIREXE

59. TIT Project (International Park)
TITEE (BER)



=4+

Hopson Gallopade Park « 54 %S 7EE

No. 190, Zhongshan Avenue, Tianhe District, Guangzhou (95% owned)
190%% (¥ 95% 1 &5

&M R & o 1L K58

75K
Sqg.m.

BExT
R AT B 52 T
-—E-N\FERR

Construction completed
Construction to be completed
in 2018 and after

2,004

439,529

RZE—MNFE+=A
=t+—AztikE

Land bank as at
31st December 2014

441,633

Hopson Pleasant View Garden ¢« &4 %2 52 E
No. 1028 Guangzhou Avenue South, Haizhu District,
Guangzhou (94.98% owned)
BN ER[E BN KB 102857 (H B 94.98% #E #5)

Sqg.m.
[ Construction completed 19,585
TR AT R 5T T Construction to be completed
- T -RE in 2016
- T N\FERAE in 2018 and after
WoZT—ME+ A Land bank as at
=t+—HAzTEE 31st December 2014

Hopson Huanan New City ¢ &4 R H7HH

Xingnan Avenue, Panyu District, Guangzhou (100% owned)

BEMERREREAE

(FEB100% %)

Tk
Sqg.m.
B2xl Construction completed 75,962
1R LA TR 52 T Construction to be completed
-—ZE—tF in2017 43,915
*ﬁ—/\i&tx?éz in 2018 and after 129,590
RZE—NFE+=A Land bank as at

£+ B>+

31st December 2014

249,467

Hopson Gallopade Park - South Court « S4B 550
No. 190, Zhongshan Avenue, Tianhe District, Guangzhou (95% owned)
19055 (¥ 5 95% 1 7= )

N RO & LK

Sa.m.
BxEL Construction completed 13,130
SR A TR ET T Construction to be completed
-—ZET—ARF in 2015 52,517
—tF in 2017 46,945
RZZT—MFE+=A Land bank as at
—t+t—BztiREE 31st December 2014 112,592
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Hopson Regal Riviera e 84 ¥ IF S
No. 1, Haojing Street, Yizhou Road, Haizhu District,
Guangzhou (99.5% owned)

BB R E MR 2158 (FEH99.5% #a)

K
Sg.m.

BRET Construction completed
BRATEETL Construction to be completed
- T -RF in 2016

-ZE—tF in 2017

_CE-NERE in 2018 and after

117,486

74,217
90,557
432,828

Land bank as at
31st December 2014

RZE—NMNFE+=A
=+ —BztiHEE

715,088

Hopson Regal Palace ® &4 % S350

[ M 78 TR & 7 el JEE N K8 (BE B 100% #E &5)

Guangzhou Avenue, Chigang, Haizhu District, Guangzhou (100% owned)

K
Sg.m.
2L Construction completed 4,707
RZE—ME+=A Land bank as at
=+—HzTEE 31st December 2014 4,707
Hopson Yijing Huayuan ¢ &4 FES 5
Dongxiao South Road, Haizhu District, Guangzhou (100% owned)
JE M8 TR = R BT B% (ME B 100% HE2s)
F oK b
Sg.m. #
25T Construction completed 21,321 E ;l
RoZ—mE+— A Land bank as at | E
S t—BztiEE  31st December 2014 21,321 i n!

= H
Hopson Zhujiang International Tower o &4 BT KB =1
No. 114-116 Yuehua Road, Yuexiu District, Guangzhou (100% owned) =
BEM BT R MERK 1141165 (HEH 100% #2) et | |
F oK - i
Sq.m. ekl |
BRI Construction completed 95,746 - i '
R-ZE—mFE+_A Land bank as at ; . =
—t+—BztHEE 31st December 2014 05,746
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Hopson Yunshan Xijing e 84 ELE%

Guangzhou Avenue North, Baiyun District, Guangzhou (70% owned)

EMBEREMKBI (FEE70%Es)

K
Sqg.m.
BxT Construction completed 8,403
RZE—WNE+=A Land bank as at
=t+—BzLIHE 31st December 2014 8,403

Hopson Regal Villa ¢ &4 F S 1L4T
Aoti Road, Tianhe District, Guangzhou (100% owned)
JE M KA [ R ES R (B 100% HE %)

TR
Sqg.m.
2L Construction completed 10,370
BRATERTET Construction to be completed
-—E—FF in 2015 20,214
- T —R#F in 2016 40,358
- —ZE—+tF in 2017 23,290
RZE—NE+=A Land bank as at
—t+t—BztiREE 31st December 2014 94,232
Hopson Belvedere Bay * &4 &5

Huangai Beicun Avenue, Dali, Nanhai District, Foshan,
Guangzhou (100% owned)
BN 6 1L R OB [ KO & I 3 A K38 (B 100% 1 )

7K

Sa.m.

[RE;EE Construction completed 61,687
R TREZT Construction to be completed

—E—RF in 2016 30,000

—:2 +F in 2017 244,518

- T N\FRA% in 2018 and after 122,797

R-®—m&ET— A
St—az iR

Land bank as at
31st December 2014

459,002

Hopson Plaza ® &4 &5

Interchange of Guangzhou Avenue South and Diejing Road (opposite to the
governmental office of Haizhu District), Haizhu District, Guangzhou

(100% owned)

BMNEBRERMAEEEEREER CBREBUTHE) (HEH100%Ew=) .
Sq.rﬁ\.

BEET Construction completed 40,035

PR A TR T T Construction to be completed

-—E—AfF in 2015 118,402

-ZE—RF in 2016 9,066

- B —+F in 2017 50,728

RZE—NFE+=A Land bank as at

=t+—Bzt+if#EE 31st December 2014 218,231
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Hopson Xijing Banshan ¢« &4 =S¥ (1

Hongbenggang Reservoir, Shiling Town, Huadu District, Guangzhou
(95.5% owned)

BN TEED M 28 S AT A i 7K B (ME B 95.5% #E %)

5K
Sa.m.
A A T B 8 52 T Construction to be completed
—ZE—+ & in 2017 103,000
-ZE-NFERLE in 2018 and after 1,091,880
RZE—NFE+ZA Land bank as at
—t+— Bz E 31st December 2014 1,194,880

Zhujiang Technology Innovation Park * BIRHS BIEE
Jiufo Machao Industry Town, Guangzhou (55% owned)
BEM LR EE TS T (A 55% %)

K
Sg.m.
BRI TERBTEI Construction to be completed
- E-NFERUE in 2018 and after 193,513
RZZT—MNFE+=A Land bank as at
Zt—Bz e 31st December 2014 193,513

Hopson Regal International ¢ & 4% S B
No. 188, Changgang Mid Road, Haizhu District, Guangzhou (100% owned)
B8 2R & & i R 2K 18855 (A 100% 1 45

Sqg.m.
2%l Construction completed 32,259
RZE—NE+ZA Land bank as at
—t+—BZLIMHE 31st December 2014 32,259
Hopson Hushan Guoji Villa ® &4 55 1L B
Yuanzhang Avenue, Xintang Town, Zengcheng City (100% owned)
2% T BT IR SRR & K8 (HE A 100% 4 %)

Sg.m.
ExT Construction completed 1,182
NN S Construction to be completed
-—E—XHF in 2016 143,756
- T —tF in 2017 291,387
- N\FE&IE in 2018 and after 821,325
RZE—WNE+ZA Land bank as at
=+—HBztikEE 31st December 2014 1,257,650
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Qianjin Road Project * Al IEH

South of Qianjin Road, Haizhu District, Guangzhou (100% owned)

JE& M8 TR [ A E B LA B (BB 100% &5

Sqg.m.
AT ML Construction to be completed
- —E-N\EFERNE in 2018 and after 244,300
R_TE—HFE+H Land bank as at
=+ —Hz:HHEE 31st December 2014 244,300

Hopson TIT International Industrial Park ¢ &4 TITEIPR EX£E
Dawo Village, Tanbu Village, Huadu District, Guangzhou (65% owned)

BN TEE R ) 1 AR (%A 66% 1 4

Sqg.m.
BT BRI T Construction to be completed
-ZE-RF in 2016 19,322
-ZE—+F in 2017 30,112
- ZE-NEFERINE in 2018 and after 325,899
R-Z—WFE+—F Land bank as at
=t+—HZzTHEE 31st December 2014 375,333

TIT Project (International Park) e TITIE B (¥ & &)
No. 489 Xingang Mid Road, Haizhu District, Guangzhou (65% owned)

& NI T 8 TR 3 ¥ 8 h BK 48955 (FE B 65% HE &5)

Sqg.m.
BRATERBTI Construction to be completed
- ZE—+tF in 2017 132,078
- ZE-N\FRUE in 2018 and after 656,347
ET—mE+—-A Land bank as at

w=
=+—BztiFEE 31st December 2014

788,425
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Huizhou

M

Dongjiang
Industrial

Hopson Yujing Bay &4 1S
No. 1, Longhe East Road, Shuikou Town, Huizhou (100% owned)
BN KO BER B 5 1 5% (B 100% 7 25)
SR
Sqg.m.
BRI Construction completed 112,400
R A TR 78 T Construction to be completed
-—E—F1F in 2015 64,379
- T RF in 2016 140,400
- T —tF in 2017 247,683
- T N\FERMNUE in 2018 and after 1,417,348
R-ZZT—MNE+_-A Land bank as at
=+—Bz -G 31st December 2014 1,982,210
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64.

g

65.

. Hopson Yujing Bay
aEMRE

. Hopson Regal Bay
EEFRE

. Hopson International New City

B BT

. Zhujiang New Industry Innovation Park

KIHMBEEXAZE

Shidai City Project
B £ 360 18 B

Hopson Xiaogui Bay
EHENEE




| Hopson Regal Bay » &4 %5 &
No 2, Wenchangyi Road, Jiangbei District, Huizhou (100% owned)
BT LR XA — 25 (A 100% 1 25 )

7K
Sqg.m.
BxEL Construction completed 80,566
ERIATEBST Construction to be completed
- —E-NERKE in 2018 and after 146,063
RZZT—ME+_A Land bank as at
=t+—BzZtHEE 31st December 2014 226,629

' Hopson International New City o & 4 Bl FR #1 ¥
The Corner of Sanhuan East Road, Shuikou Town, Huizhou (100% owned)
FBMKORSHEZIRREE (BEH100%E %)

Sqg.m.
g2xT Construction completed 45,589
BRI TR T Construction to be completed
—m g in 2015 112,692
-—E—XF in 2016 128,895
-—T—+tF in 2017 438,860
- T N\FERMNE in 2018 and after 45,000
R-—ZFE—NF+=A Land bank as at
=+—Bzti#EE 31st December 2014 771,036

Zhujiang New Industry Innovation Park ¢ BT # R E X AIZE
Taipingxu, Taiping Village, Licheng Street, Zengcheng City (100% owned)
T 3 W R T RS 4 (BE B 100% 1 %)

50K
Sg.m.
AR A TR T Construction to be completed
-ZZE-N\FRMNE in 2018 and after 1,383,667
RZZT—WME+=A Land bank as at
—t+—BztiHEE 31st December 2014 1,383,667
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Shidai City Project » i IE B
Xiangshuihe South, West side of Daya Bay (100% owned)
K 28 2 7 [ KA R P BR (B B 100% i 25)

oK
Sg.m.
BRI TRBTI Construction to be completed
-ZZ—RF in 2016 56,730
- —EF—+F in 2017 85,730
- ZE-N\FEKE in 2018 and after 1,328,970
RZZT—ME+=A Land bank as at
—t+—BzLIHEHE 31st December 2014 1,471,430

Hopson Xiaogui Bay ® &4 /ME&
The West of Holiday Inn, Anhui Avenue, Aotou, Daya Bay Area (100% owned)
AEEERRELZENERBEE AR (HEA100%E %)

Sqg.m.
BREI Construction completed 53,786
BRATEETL Construction to be completed
-—Z—hF in 2015 131,702
-ZT—RF in 2016 207,966
-—F—+tF in 2017 25,007
T - N\FERU% in 2018 and after 1,607,184
RZZT—ME+_A Land bank as at
—t+—HBztiREE 31st December 2014 2,025,645
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Zhongshan

Hr )

o B
€ 66. Hopson Zhongshan Regal Court
Rainbow Bridge o EEPLTFSR
AL NG %,
Yixian Lake Park ‘99,56 67. Zhongshan Dongkeng Project
o SN B S
BAEAE e‘““\e(\’ﬁ 6_\{_0 L EBIE R
ooV ‘S
Y 5
N ““\e\"a ﬁﬁﬁ @%& 68. Zhongshan Rainbow Project
. e B LU TE B
ZhongshanPark
NN

Zhongshan
Al

Hopson Zhongshan Regal Court e &4 /1LFE =5
Linggang District, Huoju Development Zone, Zhongshan (100% owned)
oL T OB B 8 R P e [ (BB 100% HE &)

Sg.m.
%L Construction completed 19,044
BRI TS T Construction to be completed
- - RF in 2016 51,235
e — — T — 4 in 2017 13,583
W mEt+-# Land bank as at
—t+—HzLIHFHE 31st December 2014 83,862
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Zhongshan Dongkeng Project  #1|L|ER 178 B
Dongkeng, South District, Zhongshan (95% owned)
LT R R R (B A 95% i)

K
Sg.m.

AT B R 72 T
- -RE
-T2 —tF
-—F-N\FRNE

Construction to be completed
in 2016

in 2017

in 2018 and after

51,000
51,000
259,620

R-_ZE—MNFE+_A
=t—Bz LTS

Land bank as at
31st December 2014

361,520

Zhongshan Rainbow Project #1248 B
Caihong Planning Zone, West District, Zhongshan (95% owned)
Fh LT P [ R UL AR B = (VB 6 95% 1 2

TR
Sqg.m.

# 2 LA T B ) 52 T
- —E—FHF
-TE—+F
-ZE-N\FENUE

Construction to be completed
in 2015

in 2017

in 2018 and after

19,230
53,000
373,455

RZE—NFE+=A
—t—HB2z LS

Land bank as at
31st December 2014

445,685
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Investment Property Factsheet

BREME—BER

Details of the investment properties of the Group as at 31st December WR-ZET—ME+-_A=+—H E£EBIELEYWE
2014 are as follows: EX N NNE
Approximate
Group’s interest Existing use  gross floor area
Location & EEfEER BalA® BHEEEE
(sq-m.)
(F 7 3K)
Beijing Hopson Desheng Building R B K P 100% Office/ 58,116
No. 11 Deshengmenwai Strest b retail and Carparklng
Xicheng District g ViNE
Beijing mRBPIINARE 1158 TEREER
Mainland China tmaERBARE
Hopson Kylin Xintiandi B K B 100% Commercial/ 48,694
Interchange of Wangjing Futong West it = shop and carparking
Avenue and Wangjing Strest 25 @ SEYS
Chaoyang District PR BEAAEHHE SRS
Beijing ERERER
Mainland China B HEBBT R
Makeyan Project B K R 100% Commercial/ 625,006
Plot A (Southern Region) and it = office and carparking
Plot D (Southern Region) of BN R SE VA
Scientific Research Site of ERBREXEREFR PRERFES
National Environmental Protection R AR & &
Industrial Park Dith 3% Fe [&
Tongzhou District ERWIER
Beijing
Mainland China
Hopson International Plaza R oK B 100% Commercial/office/ 313,161
292 Jiefang iap= retail and carparking
Yangpu District 158 & BE/MRE/
Shanghai 20244 TERIFES
Mainland China & HEBEES
Hopson Fortune Plaza B K R 100% Commercial/office/ 52,315
483, Feihong Road 8 retail and carparkmg
Hongkou District gl e N-V4
Shanghai R UL K 483 5% i’i Riz&Ei%
Mainland China EEMEES
Hangzhou Hopson World Trade Centre K B 95% Commercial/office/ 92,418
327, Tianmushan Road WILA retail and oarparklng
Xihu District M NE/
Hangzhou gl = E &T Bi5
Zhejiang Province X B L3275
Mainland China MM & EBE F oL
Hopson Zhujiang International Tower AR oK R 100% Commercial/office/ 95,378
No. 114-116 Yuehua Road BERA retail and carparking
Yuexiu District BEM V4 /N
Guangzhou WS E T EREES
Guangdong Province WEEK114 = 11655
Mainland China BERIEBAE
Hopson Plaza B K B 100% Commercial/office/ 163,336
Guangzhou Avenue South BERE retail and carparking
Haizhu District = SMANES
Guangzhou s N T EREES
Guangdong Province BN KB
Mainland China BHEEY
Hopson Regal International AR oK R 100% Commercial/ 18,338
No. 188 Changgang Mid Road BERAE retail and carparking
Haizhu District =0 SE4
Guangzhou NisBoN ZEREFEES
Guangdong Province & i P B 1885k
Mainland China & EH R
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Directors’ Profile

# R

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
HITES

CHU Mang Yee, aged 54, has been a director of the
Company (the “Director”) since 1997. He is the Chairman of
the Company and one of the founders of the Group. Mr. Chu
has over twenty years’ experience in trading, construction,
property investment and development. He is also an Honoured
Citizen of Meizhou of Guangdong Province and the Vice
Chairman of Guangdong Research Institute for the
Development of Corporate Strategy. Mr. Chu is the sole
director of Sounda Properties Limited. Sounda Properties
Limited is a substantial shareholder of the Company within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance.
He is also the Chairman of the Nomination Committee of the
Company. Mr. Chu is the father of Ms. Chu Kut Yung, an
executive Director and Deputy Chairman of the Board of
Directors of the Company.

KB 545 B NMNEFHEXRRRNEF(EF]D -
BRARARAEFERASENES —AIHA - RELEE
B B2E VERBERBRITEBFEEA_T5&8%-
BHRERAEMNTEREBETRMERCXERRBEHE
BlER -REERTMEEXARAACE—EZSF R
BESMMERMIEXVE  HEEXERARBART
ZEBEBRR - BRIARARFRBZEEEF - KRELESR
ARARIATESTREFT SR EIRFABRLLZIRH -
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CHU Kut Yung, aged 27, graduated from the Renmin
University of China, majoring in Finance with solid knowledge
in finance principles and comprehensive investment skills. She
has been appointed as the Executive Vice President of the
Company since March 2012 and was appointed as an
executive Director of the Company in November 2011. She is
also a director of a subsidiary of the Company. She was an
intern of the Group in 2007 and 2008, and held the position
as Assistant to President from 2009 to 2011. She has worked
in areas relating to financial and human resource management
of the Company, and thus accumulated extensive and
professional experience in such areas. She is also a member
of the Nomination Committee of the Company. Ms. Chu has
been appointed as Deputy Chairman of the Company since
11th July 2013. Ms. Chu is the daughter of Mr. Chu Mang
Yee, the Chairman of the Board of Directors of the Company.
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AU Wai Kin, aged 58, has been an executive Director since
1997. Mr. Au joined the Group in 1995. He is also a director of
our other member companies. Mr. Au graduated from Sun
Yat-Sen University in Guangzhou and has over twenty years’
experience in construction of buildings, town planning, real
estate investment and property development.
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LIAO Ruo Qing, aged 50, has been an executive Director
since 21st January 2010. He is also a Vice President of the
Group and director of certain subsidiaries of the Company.
Mr. Liao graduated from Sun Yat-Sen University in Guangzhou
and obtained a Master degree from the University of Western
Sydney of Australia. Mr. Liao joined the Group in 2003. He
worked in government department and engaged in real estate
investment and business management for over ten years and

has extensive experience in working with government
departments, legal affairs and investment development.
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Directors’ Profile (continued)
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ZHENG Shao Hui (resigned on 18th November 2014), aged
50, has been the Executive Vice President of the Group since
2012. He is an engineer. Mr. Zheng served as the general
manager of the Beijing regional office of Guangdong Hanjiang
Construction Installation Project Limited, and then joined the
Group as the Director of the Project Management Department
in 2011. He is also the managing director of Guangzhou
Hechuang Construction Company Limited and Guangdong
Zhujiang Construction Decoration Engineering Co., Ltd. Mr.
Zheng graduated from Guangdong University of Technology
with a Bachelor degree in Civil Engineering. He has over 20
years’ experience in real estate development and
management. Mr. Zheng has been appointed as an executive

Director of the Company since 28th March 2013.
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XIE Bao Xin, aged 34, joined the Group in July 2002 and was
the General Manager of Finance and Investment Management
Centre of the Group and the members of the Group
established in the Guangzhou District. He graduated from the
Sun Yat-Sen University Lingnan (University) College and
obtained a Bachelor degree in Economics. He has over 11
years’ experience in real estate development and finance
management. Mr. Xie has been appointed as executive
Director and Chief Financial Officer of the Company since 11th
July 2013. He is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the
Company.
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BAO Wenge, aged 37, is a Vice President of the Group and
General Manager of business investment department. He is
also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. He
graduated from the Tianjin University of Commerce and
obtained a Bachelor degree in Economics. Mr. Bao joined the
Group in 2000. He has worked in the real estate industry for
over 14 years and successfully carried out several large-scale
real estates projects. He is familiar with the operation of
commercial properties, office buildings, residential projects,
and hotel and property management. He has over 14 years of
experience in real estate operation and management,
marketing and operation management. Mr. Bao has been
appointed as an executive Director since 18th November
2014.
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Directors’ Profile (continued)
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
BYUFHTES

LEE Tsung Hei David, Chris, BBS, JP, aged 65, is an independent non-executive
Director. David C Lee is the Chairman and Managing Director of DH Group Investment
Ltd, DH Capital (HK) Ltd, DS Capital Group Co Ltd, DS Transport Interchange
Development Ltd and Guangzhou DHC Investment Advisory Ltd. He is also the Chairman
of the Investment Committee of Cheever Real Estate Master Fund SPC, Chief
Development Officer of Hong Kong Shanghai Medical Development Ltd. He qualified as a
Chartered Valuation Surveyor in 1973 and was registered as an Authorized Person in
1977. He is a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors, a Registered Professional
Surveyor, a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors, an associate of the
Incorporated Society of Valuers and Auctioneers, and an associate of the Chartered
Institute of Arbitrators. Mr. Lee is a former member of the Central Policy Unit, which is
known as the Government “Think Tank”, a past Chairman of the Hong Kong Housing
Society, a former member of the Supervisory Board of the Hong Kong Housing Society,
a former director of Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited, a former
Council member of Hong Kong Polytechnic University and a former member of the Land
and Building Advisory Committee, and the Steering Committee on review of the Urban
Renewal Strategy. He is currently a Visiting Professor of the Guangzhou Urban Mass
Transit Training Institute, a member of the Salvation Army Advisory Board and Chairman
of the Property Advisory Committee of the Salvation Army. Mr. Lee has been a member
of the board of Directors (the “Board”) since 1998. He is also the Chairman of the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Connected Transactions/Related Party
Transactions Committee; and a member of the Nomination Committee of the Company.
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WONG Shing Kay, Oliver, aged 63, is an independent non-
executive Director. Mr. Wong obtained his professional accounting
qualifications in both Hong Kong and Canada. Mr. Wong is an
associate member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in
England and Wales and a fellow member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants of the United Kingdom. Mr.
Wong is also a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, an ordinary member of The Society
of Chinese Accountants and Auditors and an associate member
of the Certified General Accountants of Canada. Mr. Wong had
worked in various renowned auditing firms in Hong Kong with
over 20 years of experience in handling auditing, financial
accounting and taxation matters. Mr. Wong is currently appointed
as a non-executive director of a listed company in Hong Kong. He
has also assumed the duty of financial controller for several listed
companies in both Hong Kong and Canada for over ten years.
Mr. Wong is presently practicing as a Certified Public Accountant
in Hong Kong. He is knowledgeable with expertise in financial
accounting, taxation, system development, internal control and
company management. Mr. Wong has been a member of our
Board since 1998. He is also a member of the Audit Committee,
the Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee and the
Connected Transactions/Related Party Transactions Committee
of the Company.
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TAN Leng Cheng, Aaron, aged 59, has been an independent
non-executive Director since 2nd July 2010. Mr. Tan currently
serves as Senior Advisor to a global financial services firm. Prior to
this, Mr. Tan was the managing director and head of the Hong
Kong investment banking business of Barclays Capital. Mr. Tan
holds a Bachelor of Commerce degree from the University of
Alberta and has obtained a Master of Business Administration
degree from City University in the United States of America. He is
an Associate Member of the Canadian Certified General
Accountants and a Fellow Member of the Institute of Canadian
Bankers. Mr. Tan has over 25 years of experience in the banking
industry in both Canada and Hong Kong. Mr. Tan had held senior
positions in several major and international financial institutions
including Citicorp, JP Morgan Chase and HSBC. Mr. Tan has a
wide breadth of experience in corporate and investment banking
as well as capital markets. Mr. Tan was formerly the Vice
Chairman of the Hong Kong Capital Markets Association. He is
also a member of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Connected
Transactions/Related Party Transactions Committee of the
Company.
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Senior Management’s Profile
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WANG Wen Guang, aged 49, Vice President of the Group and General Manger of Residential Investment and Development
Department. Mr. Wang graduated from Wuhan University with a Bachelor degree. He is a first-class constructor and a senior
engineer. He has served as the Project Manager of Guangdong Province Water Conservancy and Hydropower Machinery
Construction Company, the Project Director of Guangzhou Dongxun Real Estate Development Company Limited, the Deputy
Executive General Manager of Guangzhou Meilin Jiye Group Construction Corporation (F&JNZEME ¥ EEEEANT]), the
General Manager of the Shanghai regional company of Guangzhou R&F Properties Group, and the Chairman and General
Manager of Sunshine City Ming Zhu Holding Industrial Group Company Limited (B3 3¢3iiE 2 5 E # =B HRAF]), since
1989. He joined the Group as Vice President in 2014. Mr. Wang has extensive experience in real estate management.
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LANG Fan, aged 41, Assistant President and Chief Human Resources Officer of the Group. Ms. Lang graduated from Capital
University of Economics and Business with a Master degree. She has served as the Human Resources Officer of the Beijing
branch (Northern District) of Swarovski (Shanghai) Trading Co., Ltd. and the General Manager of Human Resources of
Capitaland Retail (Shanghai) Management & Consulting Co., Ltd., since 1998. She joined our Group as Assistant President in
2014. Ms. Lang has wide experience in human resources management.
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LIU Jian, aged 47, Chairman of the Tianjing regional office of the Group. Mr. Liu graduated from Chongging Institute of
Architectural Engineering with a Bachelor degree. He is a certified state-level first-class architect and a professor-level senior
engineer. He has served as the Vice President of China Institute of Aerospace Construction and Design, the Deputy General
Manager of Beijing Zhujiang Real Estate Development Limited and the Deputy General Manager of Beijing Hopson Beifang Real
Estate Development Limited, since 1989. He joined the Group as Vice President in 2002. Mr. Liu has wide exposure in real
estate planning, design and engineering management and extensive practical experience in operations.
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TURNOVER

(i)

(ii)

Recognised Sales

The Group recognised a turnover of HK$17,045 million in 2014, up 9%
comparing to HK$15,648 million of 2013. The overall GFA delivered
by the Group in 2014 was 735,234 square metres (2013: 653,507
square metres), which mainly included Hopson Regal Park (& 4 /&
;I3 8), Hopson World Garden (& 4tRIEE) and Hopson
Dreams World (& 4t 524%1) in Beijing, Hopson Regal Riviera (&4
PRI E) in Guangzhou and Hopson Regal Bay (&4 SE) in
Huizhou.

The overall average selling price in respect of delivered and
completed properties decreased by 4% to RMB16,521 (2013:
RMB17,222) per square metre. The decrease in average selling
price was mainly due to the decrease in the proportion of the
recognised sales of high-end projects such as Hopson No. 8 Royal
Park (&4 EZZK89%) and the increase in proportion of projects
with a lower selling price such as Hopson World Garden (& 4t 57
TEE).

Contracted Sales

In 2014, China’s property market entered into in-depth adjustment
phase. The market did not experience growth both in quantity and
price as before. During the year, the Group recorded a total of
RMB5,312 million contracted sales (2013: RMB11,267 million),
down 53%. The average contracted selling price decreased 27% to
RMB12,636 per square metre (2013: RMB17,205 per square
metre).

Sixteen property projects were on sale in Guangdong and the
contracted sales were RMB2,872 million in 2014, representing 54%
of the total contracted sales of the Group. The major projects in
Guangdong were Hopson Regal Riviera (& 4T &), Hopson
Belvedere Bay (& 4 & &) and Hopson International New City (&

E BIFRET ).

The combined contracted sales of Beijing and Tianjin were
RMB1,630 million, representing 31% of the total contracted sales
of the Group in 2014. Ten projects were on sale in Beijing and
Tianjin, of which Hopson Dreams World (& 4ttt $47) and Hopson
World Garden (& 4 tit SR IEE]) were the major sales contributors.

There were eight property projects on sale in Shanghai, mainly
comprising Hopson Times Garden (& 4 RBi#—5%), Hopson
International Garden (& 4 BIFR{E[&]) and Hopson International City (&
H B ). Contracted sales of Shanghai amounted to RMB810
million, representing 15% of the total contracted sales of the Group.
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Financial Review (continued)
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COST OF SALES

Cost of sales included land and construction costs, decoration and
design costs, and capitalised interest. Due to the increase in turnover and
capitalised interest, the cost of sales was pushed up by 22% to
HK$11,793 million (2013: HK$9,661 million) resulted in an increase of 7%
to 69% of the turnover (2013: 62%).

GROSS PROFIT

Gross profit margin percentage dropped from 38.3% in 2013 to 30.8% in
2014 was mainly attributable to the increase in cost of sales and the
increase in the proportion of items with rigid demand.

OTHER INCOME/GAINS, NET

Other income/gains amounted to HK$137.3 milion in 2014 (2013:
HK$283.8 million) comprising (1) dividend income of HK$179.9 million
from investment in listed and unlisted securities; (2) grants amounting to
HK$1.5 million from government authorities in Mainland China; (3) fair
value gain of HK$1.5 million from listed securities; and (4) net exchange
loss of HK$45.6 million.

OPERATING COSTS

The operating costs relating to expenses for selling, marketing, general
and administration decreased 9% to HK$1,773 million (2013: HK$1,955
million). The decrease was primarily due to the Group’s emphasis on cost
control this year and hence the advertisement fees substantially
decreased.

FINANCE COSTS

Gross interest expense before capitalisation in 2014 increased to
HK$3,675 million (2013: HK$3,191 million), up HK$484 million or 15%,
primarily due to the increase in bank and financial institution borrowings.
The effective interest rate in respect of the Group’s borrowings was
approximately 7.5% per annum (2013: 8.3%).

SHARE OF PROFIT OF JOINT VENTURES

Share of profit of joint ventures represented the Group’s share of profit of
HK$91 million from three joint ventures located in Beijing and Guangzhou.
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TAXATION

The effective tax rate was 41.4% in 2014, up 2.2% compared with the
previous year.

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY
HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

Profit attributable to equity holders was HK$2,947 million for 2014 (2013:
HK$3,852 million). Basic earnings per share was HK$1.31 (2013:
HK$2.10). Excluding the effect of the net of tax gain from investment
property revaluation of HK$916 million and the net of tax gain from the
investment property revaluation of a joint venture of HK$4 million,
underlying profit was HK$2,027 million, down slightly by 2% as compared
with previous year.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Property development continued to be the Group’s core business activity
(91%). In 2014, the Group continued to develop its business in the three
core economic regions, namely the Huanbohai Area, Pearl River Delta
and Yangtze River Delta. Northern China (including Beijing, Tianjin, Dalian,
Taiyuan and Qinhuangdao) contributed 50% to the total revenue of the
Group, followed by 39% from Southern China (including Guangzhou,
Huizhou and Zhongshan) and 11% from Eastern China (including
Shanghai, Hangzhou and Ningbo).

FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 31st December 2014, total assets of the Group amounted to
HK$143,687 million (2013: HK$135,183 million) and its total liabilities
came to HK$85,702 million (2013: HK$80,026 million), representing an
increase of 6% and 7% respectively as compared to 31st December
2013. The increase in total assets was mainly attributable to the
combined effect of (1) the increase of investment properties; (2) the
increase in development cost incurred in the construction and completion
of projects; and (3) the increase in investments in the joint ventures.
Aligned with this, total liabilities also increased, primarily attributable to (1)
the additional borrowings obtained; and (2) increase in accounts payable.

The Group’s current ratio as at 31st December 2014 was 2.32 (2013: 2.20).
Equity at 31st December 2014 increased 5% to HK$57,985 million from
31st December 2013, primarily due to the increase in profit attributable to
equity holders during the year. The net-asset-value (“NAV”) per share as
at 31st December 2014 was HK$25.84.
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Financial Review (continued)
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LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL POSITION

In managing the liquidity risk, the Group regularly and closely monitors its
current and expected liquidity requirements to maintain its rolling cash
flow at a level which is considered adequate by the Group to finance the
Group’s operations according to its cash flow projections and to maintain
sufficient cash to meet its business development requirements.

As at 31st December 2014, the Group’s liability-to-asset ratio (i.e. the
ratio between total liabilities and total assets, excluding non-controlling
interests) was 60% (2013: 59%). The net debt-to-equity ratio (i.e. total
debt less cash and bank deposits over shareholders’ equity) was 74%
(2013: 59%).

As at 31st December 2014, the Group had cash and short-term bank
deposits amounting to HK$6,711 milion (2013: HK$6,579 million), of
which approximately HK$3 million (2013: HK$5 million) was charged by
certain banks in respect of the processing of mortgage facilities granted
by the banks to the buyers of the Group’s properties. 95.35% of the cash
and bank deposits were denominated in Renminbi, 1.07% in Hong Kong
dollars and 3.58% in United States dollars.

Total borrowings from banks and financial institutions amounted to
HK$44,778 million as at 31st December 2014, representing an increase
of 29% or HK$9,991 million as compared to those as at 31st December
2013. Gearing ratio, measured by net bank and financial institution
borrowings and Guaranteed Senior Notes (i.e. total bank and financial
institution borrowings and Guaranteed Senior Notes less cash and bank
deposits) as a percentage of shareholders’ equity, was 74%, representing
an increase of 15 percentage points from 59% as at 31st December
2013. The increase was mainly attributable to the increase in the total
bank and financial institution borrowings.

All of the bank and financial institution borrowings were either secured or
covered by guarantees and were substantially denominated in Renminbi
with fixed interest rates whereas the United States Dollar denominated
Senior Notes due 2016 and Senior Notes due 2018 were jointly and
severally guaranteed by certain subsidiaries with fixed interest rate,
representing approximately 85% and 9% respectively of the Group’s total
borrowings.

All of the other borrowings were unsecured, interest-free and substantially
denominated in Renminbi.
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The Group’s borrowings repayment profile as at 31st December 2014
was as follows:

As at 31st December 2014
R-ZZ-WE+=A=+—H

Financial Review (continued)

$i4 85 o] e ()

AEEBR_ZT-—NE+_A=+—HZEER
REREMT

As at 31st December 2013
RZFE—Z=F+-A=+—H

Bank and Bank and
financial Guaranteed financial
institution senior Other institution Guaranteed Other
(HKS$ million) borrowings notes borrowings Total borrowings senior notes  borrowings Total
RITR ]R1T M
MBS REEE MBS REEE \
(B8%T) (R 2 HwEE Bt BE RE HMEE #Et
1 year —F 12,638 - 3,207 15,845 (30%) 9,473 - 2,477 11,950 (29%)
1-2 years —FEEME 11,790 2,313 - 14,103 (27%) 9,840 — — 9,840 (24%)
2-5 years MEEZERF 12,899 2,294 - 15,193 (29%) 15,068 4,586 - 19,654 (46%)
After 5 years FF & 7,451 - - 7,451 (14%) 406 — — 406 (1%)
Total @t 44,778 4,607 3,207 52,592 34,787 4,586 2,477 41,850
Less: Cashand 3l : &R
bank deposits RITFH (6,711) (6,579)
Net borrowings & & %58 45,881 35,271

As at 31st December 2014, the Group had banking facilities of
approximately HK$66,160 milion (2013: HK$70,791 million) for short-
term and long-term bank loans, of which HK$21,382 million (2013:
HK$36,004 million) were unutilised.

CHARGE ON ASSETS

As at 31st December 2014, certain assets of the Group with an
aggregate carrying value of HK$40,084 million (2013: HK$32,840 million)
and the Group’s equity interests in subsidiaries of HK$439 million (2013:
nil) were pledged with banks and financial institutions for loan facilities
used by subsidiaries.

FINANCIAL GUARANTEES

As at 31st December 2014, the Group provided guarantees to banks for
mortgage facilities granted to buyers of the Group’s properties which
amounted to HK$10,083 million (2013: HK$10,077 million).

R-B-—NE+-A=+—0 ~A&EEREH
EREBEITEREEFLN661608E B L(ZF
—=F 70791 EEB L) ZIRITEERE  EF
21382BEB A T(ZZT — =4 :36004FH & &
T AR E A ©

EEERHA

RZZE—mWE+_A=+—HB AEEETE
MH#BER40084HEBIL(ZFT—=F 32,840
BEANLICEERAEB 2B R AR
HAVEBEABT(ZE—=ZF  E)EnHERQ
RIFERAZESRMERBTRIT RV BEHEE -

B # AR

R-B-—NE+-A=1+—0 K&EEpAE
EMEZEREREEBERMAEBTIREZ
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Financial Review (continued)

H4 5 18] g (4)

COMMITMENTS

The Group’s commitments as at 31st December 2014 were as follows:

i

REBRZE—NF+—A=1T—HZFEERT:

As at As at
31st December 31st December
2014 2013
R-E-—MF NoT—=
+=ZA=+—8 +=-A=+—H
HK$ million HK$ million
BEBET BEET
Capital commitments RS
Contracted but not provided for BRIEREE
— Acquisition of land and equity interests —lhEETHEELHER Y
in certain land holding entities T R AR s 3,542 3,128
— Property construction costs — W EFEE AR 2,983 2,580
— Capital contribution to an associate ——HBERAIZHE 272 273
— Capital contribution to a joint venture ——AEERRICHE - 2,439
6,797 8,420
Authorised but not contracted for BEREBRTY
— Acquisition of land and equity interests —KEETRHBETHER
in certain land holding entities b N R AR E E 31 31
— Property construction costs — BB 2,251 1,429
2,282 1,460
9,079 9,880
Property development commitments ) 5 B R R
Contracted but not provided for BRIOEREE
— Property construction costs — W EREK AR 19,126 21,154
Authorised but not contracted for EREERETH
— Property construction costs — W EREK KR 35,218 53,097
54,344 74,251
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The Group has operating lease commitments in respect of leased
premises under various non-cancellable operating lease agreements. The
future aggregate minimum lease payments under these leases are as
follows:

Financial Review (continued)

$i4 85 o] e ()

AEERZHABBEENEZ TR EHLEH
EnEmMAKEHERAE BREZZEHE B
ARz&EERNESEBENT :

As at As at
31st December 31st December
2014 2013

R=-—ZB-—DNF RZF—=%
+t=A=+-B +ZA=+—H

HK$ million HK$ million
BEER BEAT

Amounts payable T ER A FEAT 2 IR
— Within one year — —FR 24 28
— Within two to five years — MEERFNK 13 15
— After five years — AFE 38 38
75 81

With continuous cash inflow from property sales, the banking facilities
available and the cash on hand, the Group is expected to be in an
adequate liquidity position to meet these on-going commitments by
stages.

TREASURY POLICIES AND CAPITAL
STRUCTURE

The Group adopts a prudent approach with respect to treasury and
funding policies, with a focus on risk management and transactions that
are directly related to the underlying business of the Group.
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Report of the Directors

W

The Directors of the Company are pleased to present their annual report
together with the audited financial statements of the Group for the year

ended 31st December 2014.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. Its subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures are principally engaged in investment
holding, property development, property investment, property

management and hotel operations.

An analysis of the Group’s turnover and their respective contributions to
operating profit for the year ended 31st December 2014 by geographical

locations is as follows:

ARAEEMAREAEERE_T—NOF+
“A=T-HALEFENFREALELCYFR
%Q

ARBRB—HAREZERQA ETEHEBR
Al BMERTARAGERRIEREREER
MEER MERE DEEBREBIEEZ
78 o

AEEBBE_T—NF+_A=+—BLFE
R D ZEXRBRAZTAHKERNZE
BoframT

Contribution to

Turnover  operating profit

HEEHMNZ

EER =

HK$’000 HK$’000

FAT FAT

Guangzhou BN 4,544,233 2,090,205
Beijing iy 8,167,406 2,057,384
Shanghai lap:=! 1,911,892 596,568
Tianjin x# 262,831 (309,799)
Huizhou =N 2,158,500 491,092
Others Hity - (87,111)
17,044,862 4,838,339

An analysis of the Group’s turnover by business segments for the year
ended 31st December 2014 is as follows:

AEEHE_T-WUF+_A=1t—RHILFE
WMEBOHEOMEREINET

Turnover

HK$'000

FAT

Sales of properties MEHE 15,461,572
Property management income MESIEIA 816,008
Income from hotel operations B JE & A 251,608
Rental income el A 461,651
Decoration income #Higlh A 54,023
17,044,862
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Report of the Directors (continued)

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31st December 2014, the five largest customers
of the Group accounted for approximately 3% of the Group’s turnover
while the five largest suppliers of the Group accounted for approximately
8% of the Group’s purchases. In addition, the largest customer of the
Group accounted for approximately 2% of the Group’s turnover while the
largest supplier of the Group accounted for approximately 5% of the
Group’s purchases.

Save for the association with certain related companies as set out in Note
38 to the financial statements, none of the Directors, their close
associates or any shareholders (which to the knowledge of the Directors
owned more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) has a beneficial
interest in the Group’s five largest customers or five largest suppliers.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

Details of the Group’s results for the year ended 31st December 2014
are set out in the consolidated income statement on page 117 of this
annual report.

No interim dividend was declared and paid during the year. The Directors
did not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year ended
31st December 2014.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in share capital of the Company are set out in Note
25 to the financial statements.

RESERVES

Movements in reserves of the Group and of the Company during the year
are set out in Note 26 to the financial statements.

Under the Companies Act of Bermuda regarding the calculation of the
distributable reserves, the Company’s accumulated losses amounted to
HK$903,155,000 as at 31st December 2014 (2013: HK$349,856,000
accumulated losses).

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable donations totalling
HK$6,983,000 (2013: HK$33,937,000) to various charitable
organizations.

% 5 Wl (8
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Report of the Directors (continued)

%$@$¢%ﬂ

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Bye-
laws and there is no restriction against such rights under the laws of
Bermuda.

PROPERTIES AND EQUIPMENT AND
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movements in properties and equipment and investment
properties of the Group during the year are set out in Notes 7 and 8 to
the financial statements, respectively.

SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries and associates are set out in
Notes 12 and 13 to the financial statements, respectively.

BORROWINGS

Particulars of borrowings as at 31st December 2014 are set out in Note
22 to the financial statements.

PENSION SCHEMES

Details of the pension schemes are set out in Note 29 to the financial
statements.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five financial years is set out on pages 234 to 236.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

On 30th April 2009, the Company and Guangdong Hanjiang Construction
Installation Project Limited (“Hanjiang”), being the respective holding
companies of the Group and the Hanjiang Group (comprising Hanjiang,
its subsidiaries and its associates), entered into a framework agreement (the
“Previous Framework Agreement”) setting out, among other things, the
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Report of the Directors (continued)

principal terms in respect of services/leased premises to be provided to
the Group by the Hanjiang Group and of services/leased premises to be
provided by the Group to the Hanjiang Group. The Previous Framework
Agreement expired on 31st December 2011. Since the Group intends to
continue most of the recurring transactions contemplated under the
Previous Framework Agreement and to enter into certain new recurring
transactions with Hanjiang Group in the three financial years ended 31st
December 2014, the Company entered into the new framework
agreement (the “New Framework Agreement”) with Hanjiang on 11th May
2012. At the special general meeting of the Company held on 13th July
2012, the New Framework Agreement, the transactions contemplated
therein and the annual cap of transaction amount of each of the
transactions were approved by the independent shareholders (the
“Shareholders”) of the Company.

As at the date of the New Framework Agreement, Hanjiang was wholly
owned by the brother-in-law of Mr. Chu Mang Yee (the controlling
Shareholder and Chairman of the Board (“Mr. Chu”) who was also an
uncle of Ms. Chu Kut Yung (“Ms. Chu”), an executive Director and the
Deputy Chairman of the Board of Directors of the Company and daughter
of Mr. Chu, Hanjiang was a connected person of the Company under the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Hence,
the transactions between the Group and the Hanjiang Group as
contemplated under the New Framework Agreement constitute
continuing connected transactions of the Company under the Listing
Rules. Details of such continuing connected transactions are set out as
follows:

A. Transactions under the New Framework
Agreement

() Construction

For the three years ended 31st December 2014, the Group may appoint
the Hanjiang Group to carry out construction works for certain property
projects of the Group. The construction fees payable by the Group to the
Hanjiang Group for carrying out construction works for various property
projects of the Group in the PRC will be determined by the parties by
reference to the prevailing market rates charged by independent third
parties for providing similar services and the stipulated standards
prescribed by Construction Committee of where the particular property
project is located. During the year ended 31st December 2014, total
construction fees paid/payable by the Group to the Hanjiang Group
amounted to approximately HK$531,359,000 (2013: HK$351,600,000).
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Report of the Directors (continued)

%$@$ﬁ¢(%ﬁ)

(i) Construction supervision

For the three years ended 31st December 2014, the Group may appoint
the Hanjiang Group to supervise the construction of certain property
projects of the Group. The amount of construction supervising fees
payable by the Group to the Hanjiang Group for supervising the
construction of certain property projects of the Group shall be determined
by the parties by reference to the prevailing market rates charged by
independent third parties for providing similar services and the standards
prescribed under Construction Project Monitoring and Related Services
Fees Standard. During the year ended 31st December 2014, construction
supervision fees paid/payable by the Group to the Hanjiang Group
amounted to approximately HK$2,948,000 (2013: HK$11,835,000).

(iii) Electrical power, low voltage system and intelligent
building installation works, budgeting and cost
control consultancy

For the three years ended 31st December 2014, the Group may appoint

the Hanjiang Group to carry out electrical power, low voltage system and

intelligent building installation works for certain property projects of the

Group and to provide consultancy service to the Group in relation to

budgeting for tenders and construction cost control. Low voltage system

and intelligent building installation works include installation of walkie-
talkie system, CCTV system, music broadcast system, security system,
car park automatic management system, telephone system, mobile
signal coverage system, internet system and television antenna system
and procurement of the related facilities. Consultancy service to be
provided to the Group in relation to budgeting for tenders and
construction cost control include evaluation and formulation of the base
price for a particular project that the Group intends to put up for public
tender, preparation of tender invitations and rendering assistance in the
evaluation of the bidders, formulation of the budget for particular projects
and formulation of cost control plans for construction projects. The
amount of fees payable by the Group to the Hanjiang Group for carrying
out electrical power installation works for the property projects of the
Group will be determined by reference to the prevailing market rates
charged by independent third parties for providing similar services and
the standards prescribed by the relevant governmental authorities of
where the property is located. The amount of fees payable by the Group
to the Hanjiang Group for carrying out low voltage system installation
works for the property projects of the Group will be determined by
reference to the prevailing market rates charged by independent third
parties for providing similar services and the standards prescribed by the
relevant governmental authorities and for projects involving procurement,
an additional procurement fee calculated based on a specified
percentage of the price of the products as procurement fee will be
charged. The amount of fees payable by the Group to the Hanjiang

Group for carrying out intelligent building installation works for certain

property projects of the Group in the PRC will be determined by reference
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Report of the Directors (continued)

to the prevailing market rates charged by independent third parties for
providing similar services and the standards prescribed by the relevant
governmental authorities of where the property is located. The amount of
fees payable by the Group to the Hanjiang Group for compiling budgets
for tenders and construction cost control consultancy service to the
Group will be determined by reference to the standards prescribed by the
relevant government authorities. During the year ended 31st December
2014, fees for electrical power, low voltage system and intelligent building
installation works, budgeting and cost control consultancy services paid/
payable by the Group to the Hanjiang Group amounted to approximately
HK$146,753,000 (2013: HK$206,556,000).

(iv) Office lease

For the three years ended 31st December 2014, the Hanjiang Group may
lease certain premises located in Guangzhou to the Group for use as
office. The rent payable by the Group to the Hanjiang Group will be
determined by reference to the prevailing market rents charged by
independent third parties for the leasing of the same properties or
properties of similar grading in the vicinity. During the year ended 31st
December 2014, rental paid/payable by the Group to the Hanjiang Group
amounted to approximately HK$3,633,000 (2013: HK$3,023,000).

(v) Informatization related services

For the three years ended 31st December 2014, the Group may appoint
the Hanjiang Group to build the informatization infrastructure for the
Group, to provide maintenance services to the Group for its servers, to
supply and lease the related products and facilities from the Hanjiang
Group, to provide consultancy services in respect of the informatization
systems of the Group, staff training and technical support for such
systems. The amount of fees payable by the Group to the Hanjiang
Group for building the informatization infrastructure for the Group,
provision of maintenance services to the Group for its servers, provision
of consultancy service in respect of the informatization systems of the
Group, staff training and technical support for such systems and the
amount of purchase price/rents payable by the Group for its purchase/
lease of products and facilities for the Group’s informatization system
from the Hanjiang Group will be determined by reference to the prevailing
market rates charged by independent third parties for providing similar
services/products. During the year ended 31st December 2014,
informatization related services fees paid/payable by the Group to the
Hanjiang Group amounted to approximately HK$43,788,000 (2013:
HK$34,141,000).

(vi) Consultancy service in respect of development
planning and sales agency service for commercial
property projects

For the three years ended 31st December 2014, the Group may appoint

the Hanjiang Group to provide it with the services in connection with the

consultancy service in respect of development planning (including the
overall project design and development, positioning and usage) and sales
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agency service of the commercial properties for the Group’s commercial
property projects. The amount of fees payable by the Group to the
Hanjiang Group for providing the consultancy service in connection with
development planning and agency for the Group’s existing and future
commercial development projects will be determined by reference to the
prevailing market rates charged by independent third parties for providing
similar services. During the year ended 31st December 2014, the fees for
consultancy service in respect of development planning and sales agency
service for commercial property projects paid/payable by the Group to
the Hanjiang Group amounted to approximately HK$37,000 (2013:
HK$114,000).

(vii) Management of vacant properties

For the three years ended 31st December 2014, the Hanjiang Group may
appoint the Group to manage certain vacant properties and to handle
delivery of sold properties of the Hanjiang Group located in Guangdong
Province, Beijing and Xi’an. The amount of management fees receivable
by the Group from the Hanjiang Group will be determined by the parties
by reference to the related cost of the Group; the standard property
management fees prescribed by the Guangdong Provincial, Beijing
Municipal and Xi'an local authorities; the property pricing guidelines given
by the local government and the prevailing market rates charged by
independent third parties for offering similar services for properties of
similar grading in the vicinity. During the year ended 31st December
2014, the management fees received/receivable by the Group from the
Hanjiang Group for provision of vacant property management service
amounted to approximately HK$3,569,000 (2013: HK$8,889,000).

(viii) Construction design

For the three years ended 31st December 2014, the Hanjiang Group may
appoint the Group to carry out construction design works for certain
property projects of the Hanjiang Group. The amount of design fees
receivable by the Group from the Hanjiang Group will be determined by
the parties by reference to the prevailing market rates charged by the
independent third parties for undertaking similar design projects and the
standards and guidelines prescribed by the relevant local authority on
fees chargeable for the provision of similar services (if any). During the
year ended 31st December 2014, the service fees received/receivable by
the Group from Hanjiang Group for provision of construction design
service amounted to approximately HK$8,465,000 (2013:
HK$7,541,000).

(ix) Installation and decoration

For the three years ended 31st December 2014, the Hanjiang Group
agrees to appoint the Group to carry out installation and decoration
works for certain property projects developed by Hanjiang Group. The
amount of installation and decoration fees receivable by the Group from
the Hanjiang Group will be determined by the parties by reference to the
prevailing market rates charged by independent third parties for
undertaking similar installation and decoration work and the standards
and guidelines prescribed by the relevant local authority on fees
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Report of the Directors (continued)

chargeable for the provision of similar services (if any). During the year
ended 31st December 2014, no fees was received/receivable by the
Group from the Hanjiang Group for provision of installation and
decoration work (2013: nil).

(x) Shop lease

For the three years ended 31st December 2014, the Group agrees to
lease certain premises located in Guangzhou to the Hanjiang Group for
use as shops. The rent receivable by the Group from the Hanjiang Group
will be determined by reference to the market rents for the leasing the
same properties or properties of similar grading to independent third
parties in the vicinity. During the year ended 31st December 2014, the
rent received/receivable by the Group from the Hanjiang Group was
amounted to approximately HK$2,475,000 (2013: HK$1,092,000).

B. Confirmation of independent non-executive
Directors and auditor

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the above
transactions and confirmed that:

the above transactions have been conducted between the
parties on normal commercial terms or better, which is, on
terms no less favorable to the Company than terms available
to or from (as appropriate) independent third parties;

0] a.

b.  the above transactions have been entered into in the ordinary
and usual course of the business of the Group;

C. the above transactions have been carried out in accordance
with the terms of the New Framework Agreement on terms
that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Shareholders as a whole;

(i) during the year ended 31st December 2014, construction fees
paid/payable to the Hanjiang Group amounted to approximately
HK$531,359,000 (2013: HK$351,600,000), which have not
exceeded the annual cap on construction fees paid/payable to the
Hanjiang Group in respect of the year concerned as disclosed in
the announcements of the Company dated 11th May 2012 and
20th June 2012 (the “Announcements”);

@iy during the year ended 31st December 2014, construction
supervision fees paid/payable to the Hanjiang Group amounted to
approximately HK$2,948,000 (2013: HK$11,835,000), which have
not exceeded the annual cap on construction supervision fees
paid/payable to the Hanjiang Group in respect of the year
concerned as disclosed in the Announcements;
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(iv)

(vi)

(vii

(viil

()

during the year ended 31st December 2014, fees for electrical
power, low voltage system and intelligent building installation
works, budgeting and cost control consultancy services paid/
payable to the Hanjiang Group amounted to approximately
HK$146,753,000 (2013: HK$206,556,000), which have not
exceeded the annual cap on service fees for electrical power, low
voltage system and intelligent building installation works, budgeting
and cost control consultancy services paid/payable to the Hanjiang
Group in respect of the year concerned as disclosed in the
Announcements;

during the year ended 31st December 2014, rental paid/payable to
the Hanjiang Group for lease of offices amounted to approximately
HK$3,633,000 (2013: HK$3,023,000), which has not exceeded the
annual cap on rental paid/payable to the Hanjiang Group for lease
of offices in respect of the year concerned as disclosed in the
Announcements;

during the year ended 31st December 2014, informatization related
services fees paid/payable to the Hanjiang Group amounted to
approximately HK$43,788,000 (2013: HK$34,141,000), which has
not exceeded the annual cap on informatization related services
fees paid/payable to the Hanjiang Group in respect of the year
concerned as disclosed in the Announcements;

during the year ended 31st December 2014, the fees for
consultancy services in respect of development planning and sales
agency service for commercial property projects paid/payable to
the Hanjiang Group amounted to approximately HK$37,000 (2013:
HK$114,000), which has not exceeded the annual cap on service
fees for consultancy in respect of development planning and sales
agency service for commercial property projects paid/payable to
the Hanjiang Group in respect of the year concerned as disclosed
in the Announcements;

during the year ended 31st December 2014, the management fees
received/receivable from the Hanjiang Group for vacant property
management amounted to approximately HK$3,569,000 (2013:
HK$8,889,000), which have not exceeded the annual cap on the
management fees received/receivable from the Hanjiang Group in
respect of the year concerned as disclosed in the Announcements;

during the year ended 31st December 2014, the construction
design fees received/receivable from the Hanjiang Group amounted
to approximately HK$8,465,000 (2013: HK$7,541,000) which have
not exceeded the annual cap on construction design fees received/
receivable from the Hanjiang Group in respect of the year
concerned as disclosed in the Announcements;
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Report of the Directors (continued)

(x)  during the year ended 31st December 2014, no installation and
decoration fees was received/receivable from the Hanjiang Group
(2013: nil) which have not exceeded the annual cap on installation
and decoration fees received/receivable from the Hanjiang Group in
respect of the year concerned as disclosed in the Announcements;
and

(xi)  during the year ended 31st December 2014, the rental received/
receivable from the Hanjiang Group for lease of shops amounted to
approximately HK$2,475,000 (2013: HK$1,092,000), which have
not exceeded the annual cap of rental received/receivable from the
Hanjiang Group in respect of the year concerned as disclosed in
the Announcements.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s continuing
connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements Other Than
Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with reference
to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has issued his
unqualified letter containing his findings and conclusions in respect of the
abovementioned continuing connected transactions disclosed by the
Group in accordance with Main Board Listing Rule 14A.56. A copy of the
auditor’'s letter has been provided by the Company to the Stock
Exchange.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Acquisition of Company which operates a Hot
Spring Resort in the PRC

On 19th December 2014, Tianjin Baozheng South Trade Co., Ltd* (K&
EFEAHE SARALT) (“Baozheng”), an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into the sale and purchase
agreement with Beijing Zhujiang Real Estate Development Co., Ltd* (bR
WIEMERZEERAR) (‘Beiing Zhujang”) and Guangdong Zhujiang
Investment Co., Ltd.* (ERHKIKERMDERAF) (‘Guangdong
Zhujiang”), pursuant to which Baozheng conditionally agreed to purchase
and Beijing Zhujiang and Guangdong Zhuijiang conditionally agreed to sell
the 100% equity interest in Tianjin Royal Garden Hot Spring Development
Co., Ltd* (REWIFHSRRFAEEMR AR (‘Tianjn Royal Garden”) at
the consideration of not more than RMB440,000,000 (the “Hot Spring
Acquisition”). Tianjin Royal Garden owns the land use rights in respect of
and the legal title to the development known as Dijing Hot Spring Resort*
(208 R E ) with a total gross floor area of approximately 36,793.27
square metres and the parcel of land located at Shangjingyayuan in
Jingjin Hot Spring City, Zhouliangzhuang Town, Baodi District, Tianjin, the
PRC with site areas of approximately 330,512.40 square metres on
which such development is erected and it has commenced the operation
of the Dijing Hot Spring Resort* (76 & /& R E ) since 2004,
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Beijing Zhujiang was an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of Guangdong
Zhujiang. Guangdong Zhujiang was owned as to an aggregate of 97% by
two corporate shareholders which are directly or indirectly owned as to
99% by Mr. Chu Wai Hong. As Mr. Chu Wai Hong is a son of Mr. Chu
and a brother of Ms. Chu, each of Beijing Zhujiang and Guangdong
Zhujiang was a connected person of the Company and the Hot Spring
Acquisition constituted a connected transaction for the Company under
the Listing Rules. For details, please refer to announcement of the
Company dated 19th December 2014.

Acquisition of Company which owns a parcel of
Land in Guangdong Province of the PRC

On 11th February 2015, Huizhou Yaxin Real Estate Company Limited* (&
M EEETEHEBFR A F) (“Huizhou Yaxin”), a wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company, entered into the sale and purchase agreement with Ms.
Chu Kam Lai and Mr. Chen Zhong, pursuant to which Huizhou Yaxin
agreed to purchase, and Ms. Chu Kam Lai and Mr. Chen Zhong agreed
to sell, 100% equity interest in Guangdong Zhongfu Real Estate
Investment Co., Ltd.* (ERFPREHEREERAF) (‘Guangdong
Zhongfu”) at the total consideration of approximately RMB53,500,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$67,945,000) (the “Zhongfu Acquisition”).
Huidong Zhongfu Real Estate Co., Ltd* (BRFEE X FR 2 7)), a wholly
owned subsidiary of Guangdong Zhongfu, owns the land use rights in
respect of and the legal title to a parcel of bare land located at
Changkeng, Yapojiao, Chuan’ao Village, Renshan Town, Huidong
County, Huizhou City, Guangdong Province, the PRC with a total site
area of 69,971.96 sgq.m..

As Ms. Chu Kam Lai is a sister of Mr. Chu and an aunt of Ms. Chu, Ms.
Chu Kam Lai was a connected person of the Company and the Zhongfu
Acquisition constituted a connected transaction for the Company under
the Listing Rules. For details, please refer to announcement of the
Company dated 11th February 2015.

The Zhongfu Acquisition was completed in mid February 2015.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions undertaken by the Group during
the year ended 31st December 2014 are set out in Note 38 to the
financial statements. The Company has complied with the applicable
requirements under the Listing Rules for those related party transactions
which constituted non-exempt connected transactions/continuing
connected transactions under the Listing Rules. Other related party
transactions either did not constitute connected transactions/continuing
connected transactions or constituted connected transactions/continuing
connected transactions but were exempted from all disclosure and
independent shareholders’ approval requirements under the Listing
Rules.
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Report of the Directors (continued)

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS

The Directors who held office during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Chu Mang Yee (Chairman)
Ms. Chu Kut Yung (Deputy Chairman)
Mr. Au Wai Kin
Mr. Liao Ruo Qing
Mr. Zheng Shao Hui

(resigned on 18th November 2014)
Mr. Xie Bao Xin (Chief Financial Officer)
Mr. Bao Wenge

(appointed on 18th November 2014)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Lee Tsung Hei, David
Mr. Wong Shing Kay, Oliver
Mr. Tan Leng Cheng, Aaron

All Directors are subject to retirement by rotation at annual general
meetings of the Company in accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws.

In accordance with Bye-law 87(1) of the Bye-laws, Ms. Chu Kut Yung,
Mr. Lee Tsung Hei, David and Mr. Wong Shing Kay, Oliver retire from
office by rotation and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting.

In accordance with Bye-law 86(2) of the Bye-laws, Mr. Bao Wenge will
retire from office and, being eligible, offer himself for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

None of the Directors has a service contract with the Company or any of
its subsidiaries which is not terminable within one year without payment
of compensation other than statutory compensation.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS’ CONFIRMATION OF
INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received independence confirmation from each of the
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Lee Tsung Hei, David,
Mr. Wong Shing Kay, Oliver and Mr. Tan Leng Cheng, Aaron and
considers them to be independent.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in Note 38 to the accompanying financial statements
and the sections headed “Continuing Connected Transactions” and
“Connected Transaction” of this report above, no other contracts of
significance in relation to the Company’s business to which the Company
or any of its subsidiaries, associates, joint ventures or holding company
was a party and in which any of the Company’s Directors had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or
at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31st December 2014, the interests or short positions of the
Directors and chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFO”) which were notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests or short positions which they are taken or deemed to
have under such provisions of the SFO), or which were required, pursuant
to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to
therein, or which were required, pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”),
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange, were as follows:

(i) Interests in shares of the Company
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Number of shares of the Company

ARARGHE

Approximate
percentage of
Personal Family Corporate Other shares
Name of directors interests interests interests interests Total outstanding
e BTRAG
Esns BAEE XKER AEER HitfEzs a% BMAOBDL
Mr. Chu Mang Yee (a) & &4k %t 4 (a) — — 1,229,003,809 — 1,229,008,809 54.77%
Mr. Au Wai Kin (b) B (& 22 5% 2 (b) — — 34,500,000 — 34,500,000 1.54%

Notes: Hiat -

a. Mr. Chu Mang Yee held 1,160,363,809 shares of the Company through Sounda
Properties Limited, a company wholly-owned by him, and 68,640,000 shares of
the Company through Hopson Education Charitable Funds Limited, an exempt
charitable institution and a company limited by guarantee, of which Mr. Chu is
the sole member.

b. Mr. Au Wai Kin held 34,500,000 shares of the Company through a company
wholly-owned and controlled by him.
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Report of the Directors (continued)

(ii) Interests in 11.75% senior notes due 2016
issued by the Company

Name of directors Type of interests

3 o (8

(i) RAERABTZ=-F—A 53
,HﬂE’J11.75JEf55'EETE$J§Z1‘E§

Principal amount of senior notes

BEEHR REER BAEEEXS
Mr. Lee Tsung Hei, David Personal US$100,000
TEBELE & A 100,000 7T
Mr. Tan Leng Cheng, Aaron Personal US$100,000
PREEF K& & A 100,000 7T
(i) Interests in 9.875% senior notes due 2018 (iii) REAQXBBITZ_F—NFZ

issued by the Company

Name of directors Type of interests

] E@Q.S?SJE{E%,T?EZ*E?&

Principal amount of senior notes

BEEHS ERER BREEAXS
Mr. Lee Tsung Hei, David Personal US$200,000
TMEBLRE & A 200,000 7T
Save as disclosed above, as at 31st December 2014, none of the ¥ FXWEEI R_ZE—-—WME+-F =+

Directors, chief executives of the Company and their respective
associates had any personal, family, corporate or other interests or short
positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company
or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) which would have to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests or short positions which they are taken or deemed to have
under such provisions of the SFO), or which were required, pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein,
or which were required, pursuant to the Model Code, to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange.

At no time during the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a
party to any arrangements to enable the Directors or any of their spouses
or children under 18 years of age to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company or any other body
corporate, and no Directors or chief executives or their respective
spouses or children under 18 years of age had been granted any right to
subscribe for equity or debt securities of the Company nor exercised any
such right.
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Report of the Directors (continued)
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

Other than interests disclosed in the section headed “Directors’ and chief
executives’ interests and short positions in shares, underlying shares and
debentures” above, as at 31st December 2014, according to the register
of interests kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO, the
following entity had interests or short positions in the shares of the
Company which fall to be disclosed to the Company under Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO:

FERR

Br ENIEERITHREBERR D BEBERHND R
BEHEEBIEERAB | —HBEENEZIN
RZE—MNE+_A=+—H BARQXAR
BEFLRHBEIENEINRIETFE ZELMATD
B THEERARRROFEBREZESRKL
B EEFIEXVERE2 R £33 AR AR 7 H#
EERKE

Approximate

Capacity and Number of percentage of
Name of shareholder nature of interests issued shares shares outstanding
mHEe#TRA
R & B BORERME EBRTROHE BRYEI
Sounda Properties Limited Beneficial owner 1,160,363,809 51.71%
EBEEARAA Em#AA
Farrich Investments Limited (“Farrich”) °® Beneficial owner 395,246,625 17.61%
REREERAR (&S] ™ BB A
TheBest Investments Limited (“TheBest”) M Interest of controlled 395,246,625 17.61%
corporation
TheBest Investments Limited ([ TheBest ) #/#/ S LEEE
Clear Build Investments Limited (“Clear Build”) ™ Interest of controlled 395,246,625 17.61%
corporation
Clear Build Investments Limited ([ Clear Build |) L E Ew
Mr. Chu Yat Hong " Interest of controlled 395,246,625 17.61%

&K —ft E(W‘#}

corporation

SR NE R

Note:

395,246,625 shares were held by Farrich which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of
TheBest. The entire issued share capital of TheBest is held by Clear Build which is in
turn wholly-owned by Mr. Chu Yat Hong. Each of TheBest, Clear Build and Mr. Chu Yat
Hong was deemed to be interested in 395,246,625 shares under the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, the Directors are not aware of any other
persons who, as at 31st December 2014, had interests or short positions
in the shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO
or as recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 336 of
the SFO.
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Report of the Directors (continued)

FOREIGN EXCHANGE FLUCTUATIONS

The Group earns revenue and incurs costs and expenses mainly in
Renminbi and is exposed to foreign exchange fluctuation arising from the
exposure of Renminbi against Hong Kong dollar and US dollar. However,
the Directors do not anticipate any significant foreign exchange loss as a
result of changes in exchange rate between Hong Kong dollar, US dollar
and Renminbi in the foreseeable future.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contract concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company was entered into
or existed during the year.

EMPLOYEES

As at 31st December 2014, the Group, excluding its associates and joint
ventures, employed a total of 9,176 (as at 31st December 2013: 9,422)
staff, the majority of which were employed in Mainland China. Employees’
costs (including Directors’ emoluments) amounted to HK$1,031 million
for the year ended 31st December 2014 (2013: HK$877 million).

The fundamental policy of the Group’s remuneration and incentive
scheme is to link total compensation of executive Directors, senior
management and employees with the achievement of the Group’s annual
and long-term corporate goals and objectives. Remuneration package is
performance-based and takes into account business performance,
market practice and competitive market conditions in order to attract,
motivate and retain talent. The remuneration package of executive
Directors and senior management comprises salaries, bonuses,
discretionary bonus and other benefits-in-kind.

Non-executive Directors are compensated with the aim to fairly represent
their efforts and time dedicated to the Board and various committee
meetings. The recommended remuneration package of the independent
non-executive Directors comprises annual director’'s fee and fee for
representation on board committees.

The remuneration of all the Directors during the financial year is set out in
Note 29 to the financial statements.
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Report of the Directors (continued)

%$ﬁﬁ¢%ﬁ

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION AND SALE OF
THE COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31st December 2014, the Company repurchased
a total of 1,450,000 shares of HK$0.10 each in the capital of the

BE BMEREEAATZLH

Az

BE-F-MET-A=+-ALTEMA-
ARFA KRB ZHBE AR DVRAT GRE

Company on the Stock Exchange, details of which are as follows: {E0.10/8 7L M 1,450,000 B 17 + ¥ BT -
Aggregate
Number of consideration
shares  Highest price Lowest price (excluding
Month of repurchase repurchased paid per share paid per share expenses)
[ 4= gRE [ grRE [ BRE
BEAH RHE B BSERK REER (FEEBFEX)
(HK$) (HKS) (HKS)
(%) (BT) (Bm)
February 2014 —E-—NFZA 1,450,000 7.82 7.09 10,752,280

The issued share capital of the Company was reduced by the nominal
value of the repurchased shares which had been cancelled. The premium
paid for the repurchase of the shares and related expenses totalling
approximately HK$10,641,000 were charged to the reserves.

The repurchases of shares were effected by the Directors pursuant to the
general mandate approved by the shareholders at the annual general
meeting of the Company held on 14th June 2013, with a view to
benefiting Shareholders as a whole by enhancing the net asset value per
share and earnings per share of the Group.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries

has purchased, redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities
during the year ended 31st December 2014.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

A report on the principal corporate governance practices adopted by the
Company is set out on pages 94 to 112 of the annual report.
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Report of the Directors (continued)

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of its Directors, the Directors confirm that the
Company has maintained during the year under review the amount of
public float as required under the Listing Rules.

AUDITOR

The financial statements have been audited by Messrs.
PricewaterhouseCoopers. A resolution for the re-appointment of Messrs.
PricewaterhouseCoopers as the Company’s auditor for the ensuing year
is to be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

CHU MANG YEE
Chairman

Hong Kong, 31st March 2015

*

For identification purposes only

3 o (8

AELARERE

BEARATRANRGZENREEEMA
EFRR ALAREEFENZIARRRE
# A EMRBIFTIRE KT o

B BL B

MBRREHBRBKBETMEBHIER -
BRERERRAEFAGLRERAZR BREE
ERKBEFAMEFAR/ARBRFZEH
i -

REEE®
£
5 & fi
& —F-AF=A=1—A

* AT ¥

BERIRE

i

BRAF

“E-NFEFH 93



Corporate Governance Report
1 56 B iR

The Company strives to attain high standards of corporate governance.
The Board believes that effective corporate governance will continue to
improve transparency, risk controls and ultimately enhance Shareholders’
value.

The Company has complied with the code provisions set out in the
Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report (“CG
Code”) as contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules during the year
ended 31st December 2014, except for the code provisions A.4.1 and E.1.2
as described below.

Code provision A.4.1 stipulates that non-executive directors should be
appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election. None of the
independent non-executive Directors is appointed for a specific term.
This constitutes a deviation from code provision A.4.1. However, as all
the independent non-executive Directors are subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election by shareholders at the annual general meetings
of the Company in accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws, in the
opinion of the Directors, this meets the objective of the CG Code.

Code provision E.1.2 stipulates that the chairman of the board should
attend the annual general meeting. The Chairman of the Board did not
attend the annual general meeting for the year 2014 due to other
business commitment.

COMPLIANCE WITH MODEL CODE

The Company adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 of the
Listing Rules as the code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities
transactions. Upon enquiry by the Company, all Directors have confirmed
that they have complied with the required standards set out in the Model
Code during the year ended 31st December 2014.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

BUSINESS MODEL AND STRATEGY

Business Model

In view of the continuous macro-control measures and the ever-changing
market condition of the PRC, the Group had made reasonable planning
in its business development model in line with its overall strategic
development premise, in order to keep up with the market trend and
deliver fruitful reward to the Shareholders in a persistent manner.

The Group has implemented scientific management and arrangement in
respect of the residential properties which are driven by regular demand,
residential properties which are for improving living environment and high-
end deluxe residential properties, and created a business development
model for maintaining profitability in high-end residential properties,
guaranteeing cash flow in mid-to-high-end residential properties and
residential properties which are driven by regular demand, and generating
stable and continuous cash flow through investing in investment
properties such as commercial properties (industrial real estate). On the
basis of the coordinated development of the properties for sale and for
investment, the Group will also further integrate resources, develop
investment business prudently and acquire more competitive strengths
through diversified and professional development strategies.

It is expected that the growth in the sales of diversified residential
products and in the cash flow of investment properties will become the
main profit drivers of the Company in the future.

For the strategic development direction of the Group, please refer to “Future
Prospects of the Group” under the section “Chairman’s Statement” on
pages 14 to 15 of the report.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
A 3 B 6 ol ()

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board currently comprises six executive and three independent non-
executive Directors, whose biographical details are set out in the
Directors’ Profile section on pages 62 to 67 which demonstrate a balance
of core competence having regard to the business of the Group.
Pursuant to the Company’s Bye-laws, all Directors are subject to
retirement by rotation and their re-election is subject to a vote of
Shareholders at the annual general meeting. The Board believes that the
independent non-executive Directors, with diversified backgrounds and
industry skills, shall offer experience, independent judgement advice on
issues relating to strategy, performance, conflict of interest and the
overall management of the Company such that the interests of all
Shareholders are considered and safeguarded.

The Board is responsible to the Shareholders for leadership and control
of the Group and is collectively responsible for promoting the success of
the Group and its business by directing and supervising the Group’s
affairs. The Board oversees the Group’s strategic development and
determines the objectives, strategies and policies of the Group. The
Board also monitors and controls operating and financial performance in
pursuit of the Group’s strategic objectives. The Board members have
access to timely information in relation to the Group’s business and make
further enquires when necessary. The Directors may seek independent
professional advice on issues relating to the Group’s business at the
Group’s expenses. The Company has arranged appropriate insurance
cover in respect of legal actions against its Directors.

Ms. Chu Kut Yung, an executive Director and the Deputy Chairman of the
Board of Directors of the Company, is the daughter of Mr. Chu Mang
Yee, the Chairman of the Board of Directors of the Company.

Apart from the aforesaid, there are no other financial, business, family or
other material/relevant relationships among the members of the Board.

All independent non-executive Directors have offered sufficient time and
efforts to serve the business affairs of the Company and possess
appropriate academic and professional qualifications and related
management experience and have contributed to the Board with their
professional opinion.

Of the three independent non-executive Directors at least one has
appropriate financial management expertise in compliance with the
Listing Rules. Each independent non-executive Director gives the
Company an annual confirmation of his independence, and the Board
considers these Directors to be independent under the guidelines set out
in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Five Board committees, namely the Nomination Committee,
Remuneration Committee, the Audit Committee, the Option Shares
Committee and the Connected Transactions/Related Party Transactions
Committee have been established to oversee particular aspects of the
Group’s affairs. The Board has delegated the execution and daily
operations of the Group’s business to the management. However, clear
directions are given to the management as to the matters that must be
approved by the Board before decisions are made on behalf of the
Group.

BOARD MEETINGS/GENERAL MEETINGS

18 36 B 1A ol (4

EETw@m

AEGAEBEEIAZEE CRIAEE
EX8g ARAZES FHZES BEX
ZEe BREZECNBERS HEAL
RPEES - EECCRREEEWNTAEH
ZEBLEATEE- RN BEBRARAE
BN ERmEEe e SEEH RTINS
CERBUWIER -

EEEE2 BRRKE

The Board met 5 times during year 2014 under review at which the W-ZZT— [ UERIEFESHLBIRESTS
Directors considered and approved significant matters including, among 3% - ﬁ ERe L EELMMAEERER B |:|:: fj
other things, interim and final results of the Group, statutory financial fEAREE ZHEAREFEE  FETFTHHEHRE -
reports, change in Board members and acquisition of company. EFef B8 LA NEEIE-
Board meetings attended by each of the Directors were as follows: 2EEHEEETeeZNEBEROT
Number of
Meetings attended/
Number of
meetings held
HESEBEXE
BBXE
Executive Directors BTES
Chu Mang Yee KEIME 0/5
Chu Kut Yung KIER 0/5
Au Wai Kin B = 3/5
Liao Ruo Qing BRE 2/5
Zheng Shao Hui ™" 85/ ﬁ(ﬂﬁsp) /4
Xie Bao Xin wE = 5/5
Bao Wenge "2 1 32 A% 2 0/1
Independent Non-Executive Directors BIYKHITES
Lee Tsung Hei, David =E=E 5/5
Wong Shing Kay, Oliver mAE 4/5
Tan Leng Cheng, Aaron BREER 5/5
14 additional Board meetings were held during year 2014 for the EA —HEANBEINRITTI4RESS
purposes of approving some operational matters such as approval of the ﬁ BeEhAltEE TEESE (I /E
provision of guarantees by the Company in respect of bank loans granted ~ AN A B L AN A B B A B ER 2 R17E FUR

to the Company’s subsidiaries, opening of bank accounts and change of
bank authorized signatories.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

18 36 B 1A ol (4

BOARD MEETINGS/GENERAL MEETINGS EEEEE BREXSWw
(Continued)
Board meetings attended by each of the Directors were as follows: SEEHRFESTCEENB RO :
Number of
Meetings attended/
Number of
meetings held
HESBERE
BRRE
Executive Directors BITES
Chu Mang Yee R 10/14
Chu Kut Yung R 10/14
Au Wai Kin BLE 2 14/14
Liao Ruo Qing BEE 14/14
Zheng Shao Hui " 8y /Ly i) 8/12
Xie Bao Xin HEE 10/14
Bao Wenge "°? ) S AR (T2 2/2
Independent Non-Executive Directors BIUFHITES
Lee Tsung Hei, David FEE 0/14
Wong Shing Kay, Oliver mAE 0/14
Tan Leng Cheng, Aaron FREER 014

Between Board meetings, the senior management of the Company Q fEEeeE B ARTFSLEEEeR
-—é."

provides the Directors with information on a timely basis regarding the

iﬂszlﬂ*%%}zf BRAKEEGES R

activities and developments in the businesses of the Group and meets %é}ﬁz ER - TeEETIERITEEZTSE - A
with the independent non-executive Directors to seek their views on the  EZHy ?&%%ﬁﬁ;ﬁ BEGELELEEFEH -

business and operational matters of the Group.

The company secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary”) 7&K ﬂ ZrhalwmE(ArATME)DREZE M=
keeps detailed minutes of each meeting which are available for inspection % 7 ¥ 2 @308k XS X HEI2EEESS

by all Directors.

98 Hopson Development Holdings Limited Annual Report 2014

&'jo



Corporate Governance Report (continued)
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BOARD MEETINGS/GENERAL MEETINGS BEE2E2E REAXE @

(Continued)

During the year ended 31st December 2014, the Company held one HZE—-ZT—NE+_-_A=+—HILFEE &x2Q
general meeting. The general meeting attended by the Directors was as &7 7 — AR EAS - EBHEREA S H

follows: BT
Number of
Meetings attended/
Number of
meetings held
HESBRE
EERH
Executive Directors HITES
Chu Mang Yee FN 0/1
Chu Kut Yung KIEw 0/1
Au Wai Kin B 0/1
Liao Ruo Qing BEE 1/1
Zheng Shao Hui ™" o /1> 8 (i 1) /1
Xie Bao Xin e 1/1
Bao Wenge (Note 2) o A% (Hfit2) 0/0
Independent Non-Executive Directors BIKHITES
Lee Tsung Hei, David TEE 1/1
Wong Shing Kay, Oliver =oAE 01
Tan Leng Cheng, Aaron PR BEB 1/1
Notes: B & -

1. Mr. Zheng Shao Hui resigned as an executive Director on 18th November 2014. 1. HOBEER_Z—HF+— A+ /\BBEENT
Bx-

2. Mr. Bao Wenge was appointed as an executive Director on 18th November 2. MY EER_E—NF+—A+ N NBEZTAE
2014. WMITEE-
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

18 36 B 1A ol (4

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The three independent non-executive Directors are not appointed for a
specific term. This constitutes a deviation from code provision A.4.1 with
respect to the appointment of non-executive directors for a specific term
subject to re-election. However, all Directors are subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election by Shareholders at the annual general meeting at
least once every three years in accordance with the Bye-laws of the
Company. In the opinion of the Board, this meets the objective of the CG
Code.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

The Chairman of the Board of Directors of the Company is Mr. Chu Mang
Yee. The Chairman is responsible for managing and providing leadership
to the Board in terms of formulating overall strategies, business directions
and policies of the Company. The Chairman is also responsible for
overseeing effective functions of the Board, application of good corporate
governance practices and procedures, and encourages the Directors to
make full and active contribution to the affairs of the Board. With the
support of the executive Directors and the Company Secretary, the
Chairman seeks to ensure that all Directors are properly briefed on issues
arising at Board meetings and receive complete and reliable information
in a timely manner.

The Company does not currently have any officer with the title Chief
Executive Officer. The daily operation and management of the Company
is monitored by the executive Directors and the senior management.

With the assistance of the Chief Financial Officer, he ensures that the
funding requirements of the business are met and closely monitors the
operating and financial results against plans and budgets, taking remedial
action when necessary and advising the Board of any significant
developments and issues.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee comprises two executive Directors, namely
Mr. Chu Mang Yee and Ms. Chu Kut Yung; and three independent non-
executive Directors, namely Messrs. Lee Tsung Hei, David, Wong Shing
Kay, Oliver and Tan Leng Cheng, Aaron. The Nomination Committee is
responsible for nomination and selection of Directors. Proposed new
Directors are selected based on skills and experience that will enable
them to make positive contributions to the performance of the Board.
The Nomination Committee is chaired by Mr. Chu Mang Yee and has
specific written terms of reference which deal clearly with its authority and
responsibilities and posted on the Company’s website. The principal
functions of the Nomination Committee include:

° to review the structure, size, composition and diversity (including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural, educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of
service) of the Board and make recommendations on any proposed
changes to the Board to complement the Company’s corporate
strategy;

° to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board members
and select or make recommendations to the Board on the selection
of individuals nomination for directorships;

° to assess the independence of independent non-executive
Directors;

° to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-
appointment of Directors and succession planning for Directors, in
particular chairman and chief executive; and

° to review the board diversity policy of the Company (the “Board
Diversity Policy”), as appropriate, and review the measurable
objectives that the Board has set for implementing the Board
Diversity Policy and the progress on achieving the objectives.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
A 3 B 6 ol ()

NOMINATION COMMITTEE (continued)

During the year, the Nomination Committee held two meetings. Individual
attendance of the members is set out below:

REZEE @

FR REZEEETTMAEZ - ARNKE
HESHENBEREINMT

Number of

Meetings attended/

Number of

meetings held

HESBERE

BRRE

Chu Mang Yee KEK 072
Chu Kut Yung KGR 1/2
Lee Tsung Hei, David TEE 2/2
Wong Shing Kay, Oliver EmARE 2/2
Tan Leng Cheng, Aaron PREEE 2/2

During the year, the Nomination Committee had performed the following
works:

° reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board;

° evaluated the performance and contribution of the retiring Directors;
and

° made recommendation to the Board for the appointment of new
Director.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

The Remuneration Committee comprises all three independent non-
executive Directors. The Remuneration Committee is responsible for
assisting the Board in achieving its objective of attracting and retaining
Directors and senior management of the highest caliber and experience
needed to develop the Group’s business successfully. The Remuneration
Committee is also responsible for the development of a fair and
transparent procedure in determining the remuneration policies for the
Directors and senior management of the Company and for determining
their remuneration packages. The Remuneration Committee is chaired by
Mr. Lee Tsung Hei, David and has specific written terms of reference
which deal clearly with its authority and responsibilities and are posted on
the Company’s website. The principal functions of the Remuneration
Committee include:

° formulation of remuneration policy for approval by the Board;

° establishing guidelines for the recruitment of the chief executive and
senior management;
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS (continued)

° recommendation to the Board the policy and structure for the
remuneration of Directors (including non-executive Directors and
the chief executive) and senior management;
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° review and approve the management’s remuneration proposals ° REE
with reference to the Board’s corporate goals and objectives;

° determination of the remuneration packages of individual executive . HREEERE DAY,
including benefits-in-kind, FB pEE
pension rights and compensation payable for loss or termination of gl 4%

Directors and senior management,

their office or appointment;

° make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of non- °

executive Directors;

° review and approval of the compensation arrangements in . =
connection with dismissal or removal for misconduct to Directors )58

and senior management;

° determination of the criteria for assessing employee performance; .

and

° consideration of the annual performance bonus for executive °
Directors, senior management and general staff and making

recommendation to the Board.

The Company has adopted the model to delegate the determination of A& T
the remuneration packages of individual executive Directors and senior R &,
management to the Remuneration Committee.
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Two meetings were held by the Remuneration Committee during the year £ B @ RN ERNE TR N @3 AR T L&
to review and approve the remuneration of executive Directors. The ﬁL 1—; = $ TEHMN - THMEEerERELLEE
meetings were attended by all members of the Remuneration Committee. o
No Director is involved in deciding his/her own remuneration. MEEE2HEEBHAE 25 -
The remuneration of the senior management (comprising executve ZARAGSREIEE ( BHEATER)HE T —
Directors) of the Company for the year ended 31st December 2014 by  P4E+ — B =+ — B I FE 7 ZFBi1% 48 B & 71
band is set out below: m

Number of
Remuneration band (HK$) individuals
FrEMAE B OB oT) A
$0 to $1,000,000 07 7T 2 1,000,000 7% 7T 5
$1,000,001 to $2,000,000 1,000,001 7T £ 2,000,000 % 7T 3
$2,000,001 to $3,000,000 2,000,001 % 7T & 3,000,000% 7T 1
$3,000,001 to $4,000,000 3,000,001 % 7T % 4,000,000% 7T 1

Further details of the executive Directors’
ended 31st December 2014 are disclosed in Note 29 to the financial

statements.

remuneration for the year
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year, the fees payable to the Company’s auditor for audit and
audit related services amounted to HK$6,055,000 (2013: HK$5,955,000)
and no fee (2013: Nil) was paid for non-audit services.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises the three independent non-executive
Directors. It is chaired by Mr. Lee Tsung Hei, David. The Board is of the
opinion that the members of the Audit Committee have sufficient
accounting and financial management expertise or experience to
discharge their duties. However, the Audit Committee is authorised to
obtain outside legal or other independent professional advice if it
considers necessary. The Audit Committee has written terms of reference
which are posted on the Company’s website. The principal functions of
the Audit Committee include:

° to make recommendations on the appointment, reappointment and
removal of external auditor and to consider the terms of such
appointments;

° to develop and implement policies on the engagement of external
auditor for non-audit services;

° to monitor the integrity of the financial statements, annual and
interim reports to ensure that the information presents a true and
balanced assessment of the Group’s financial position;

° to ensure the management has fulfilled its duty to maintain an
effective internal control system;

o to review internal audit programme and to ensure that it is allocated
with adequate resources and is effective; and

° to review the external auditor's management letter and any
questions raised by the auditor to the management and the
management’s response.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

AUDIT COMMITTEE (Continued)

In year 2014, the Audit Committee reviewed the results of an assessment
of the Group’s internal control systems, business management and
preventions against fraud and other irregularities. With respect to the
results of the Company for the year ended 31st December 2013, the
Audit Committee reviewed with the senior management and the external
auditor of the Company, their respective audit findings, the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group and internal control, risk
management and financial reporting matters. This review by the Audit
Committee included an appraisal of the integrity of the financial
statements and the annual report of the Company. The Audit Committee
also reviewed the Group’s interim results for the six months ended 30th
June 2014 as well as the external auditor’s remuneration. There was no
disagreement between the Board and the Audit Committee on the
selection, appointment or resignation of external auditor.

The Audit Committee reports its work, findings and recommendations to
the Board after each meeting. During the year 2014, there were two
Audit Committee meetings. The meetings were attended by all members
of the Audit Committee.

BOARD COMMITTEES

In addition to the Nomination Committee, Remuneration Committee and
the Audit Committee, two other Board Committees have been
established to assist the Board in the execution of its duties.

(1) Connected Transactions/Related Party
Transactions Committee

The Connected Transactions/Related Party Transactions Committee was
established on 4th October 2005 and presently comprises the three
independent non-executive Directors, and chaired by Mr. Lee Tsung Hei,
David. The primary function of the Connected Transactions/Related Party
Transactions Committee is to review all connected transactions and
related party transactions to ensure that they are conducted on normal
commercial terms and in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group and to recommend to the Board corrective measures in such
transactions if needed.

During the year 2014, three meetings were held by the Connected
Transactions/Related Party Transactions Committee. The meetings were
attended by all members of the said committee.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

i e (4)
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

(2) Option Shares Committee

The Option Shares Committee was established on 4th November 2005
and comprises two executive Directors. Its primary function is to deal
with the allotment and issue of shares of the Company upon the exercise
of options granted or to be granted under the Company’s share option
scheme adopted on 4th November 2002.

No meeting was held by the Option Shares Committee during the year
2014.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Mok Wai Kun, Barbara of Minter Ellison, an external service provider,
has been engaged by the Company as its Company Secretary since
September 1997. The primary contact person of the Company is Mr. Au
Wai Kin, an executive Director.

According to Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, Ms. Mok Wai Kun, Barbara

has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training during
the year ended 31st December 2014.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board is responsible for performing the duties on corporate
governance function as set out below:

° to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance;

° to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

° to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance and legal and regulatory requirements;

° to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and Directors;
and

o to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the corporate governance report.

The Board adopted the Board Diversity Policy in November 2013. The
Board Diversity Policy sets out its approach to achieve and maintain
diversity on the Board in order to enhance the effectiveness of the Board.

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having a diverse
Board to enhance the quality of its performance and endeavours to
ensure that the Board has the appropriate balance and level of skills,
experience and perspectives required to support the execution of its
business strategies. The Company seeks to achieve Board diversity
through the consideration of a number of factors, including gender, age,
cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and length of service. The ultimate decision will be
based on merit and contribution that the selected candidates will bring to
the Board.

The Board has set measurable objectives (in terms of gender, skills and
experience) to implement the Board Diversity Policy and review such
objects from time to time to ensure their appropriateness and ascertain
the progress made towards achieving those objectives. The Nomination
Committee will review the Board Diversity Policy, as appropriate, to
ensure the effectiveness of the Board Diversity Policy.

The Company considers that the current composition of the Board is
considered well-balanced and of a diverse mix appropriate for the
business of the Company.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND INTERNAL
CONTROLS

The Board is responsible for presenting a clear and balanced assessment
of the Group’s performance, position and prospects. It is also responsible
for preparing financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
Group’s financial position on a going-concern basis and other price-
sensitive announcements and financial disclosures. The management
provides the Board with the relevant information it needs to discharge
these responsibilities.

In preparing the financial statements for the year ended 31st December
2014, the Directors have selected appropriate accounting policies and
applied them consistently, and have made judgement and estimates that
are prudent and reasonable.

The Group has announced its annual and interim results in a timely
manner within the limits as laid down in the Listing Rules.

The Board has overall responsibility for maintaining sound and effective
internal controls to safeguard the Group’s assets and Shareholders’
interests. The Directors confirm that the Group, through its Internal
Control Department, performs regular checks on office procedures,
practices and systems to safeguard assets from inappropriate use,
maintains proper accounts and ensures compliance with regulations. The
regular reviews also cover all material controls, including financial,
operational and compliance controls and risk management functions of
the Group. The Internal Control Department reports directly to the Group
Supervisory Committee which in turn reports independently to the Board.
The Internal Control Department is independent of all management
functions of the Group and has direct and independent access to the
Board. Summaries of major audit findings and control weaknesses, if
any, are reviewed by the Audit Committee.

For the year ended 31st December 2014, no frauds and irregularities,
internal control deficiencies or infringement of laws, rules and regulations
have come to the attention of the Audit Committee to cause it to believe
that the system of internal controls is inadequate. The Board is satisfied
with the adequacy of the system of internal control of the Group.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING

According to the code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all directors
should participate in continuous professional development to develop
and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that their contribution to
the board remains informed and relevant.

All Directors have been provided with training on their duties and
responsibilities as a director of a listed company and the compliance
issues under the Listing Rules. The Company continuously updates
Directors on the latest developments regarding the Listing Rules and
other applicable regulatory requirements, to ensure their compliance and
enhance their awareness of their continuing obligations as Directors and
good corporate governance practices.

During the year, one training session was organised by the Company for
Directors to update the Directors on amendments to the Listing Rules
regarding connected transactions. Each of the Directors had attended
the above training session and/or noted and studied the training materials
provided by the Company. The Directors had provided the Company with
their respective training records pursuant to the CG Code. During the
year, all Directors had participated in appropriate continuous professional
development by way of attending training or reading materials relevant to
the Company’s business or to Directors’ duties and responsibilities.

CORPORATE COMMUNICATIONS AND
INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company continues to promote and enhance investor relations and
communications with its investors. Communication have been maintained
with the media, analysts and fund managers through meetings.
Designated senior management maintains regular dialogue with
institutional investors and analysts to keep them abreast of the
Company’s developments.

The Company provides detailed press releases and reports to its
Shareholders on the Group’s business and financial positions with timely
annual report and interim report, to ensure that they are effectively
informed of the Group’s status and developments. General presentations
are made immediately after the announcement of financial results. The
website of the Group is also updated regularly to keep investors and the
general public informed of the latest development of the Group.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
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CORPORATE COMMUNICATIONS AND
INVESTOR RELATIONS (Continued)

The Company’s annual general meetings allow the Directors to meet and
communicate with Shareholders, providing a forum for the Shareholders’
views to be communicated to the Board. Both Directors and senior
management make an effort to attend. External auditors are also available
at the annual general meetings to address Shareholders’ queries.
Separate resolutions are proposed for each issue considered at the
annual general meetings. The 2014 annual general meeting circular was
distributed to all Shareholders not less than 20 clear business days prior
to the annual general meeting, setting out details of each proposed
resolution and other relevant information. The procedures for conducting
a poll were explained by the chairman presiding at the annual general
meeting at the beginning of the meeting.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHT

Procedures for shareholders to convene a special
general meeting

Pursuant to Bye-law 58 of the Bye-laws of the Company, Shareholder(s)
holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of
the paid-up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company may, by written requisition to the Board or the
Company Secretary, request the Board to convene a special general
meeting (“SGM”) for transaction of any business specified in the
requisition.

The requisition must state the purposes of the meeting and must be
signed by all the requisitionist(s) (may consist of one or several
documents in like form each signed by one or more requisitionists) and
deposited at the registered office of the Company (Clarendon House, 2
Church Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda) or at the head office of the
Company in Hong Kong (Suites 3305-09, 33rd Floor, Jardine House, 1
Connaught Place, Central, Hong Kong) for the attention of the Company
Secretary.

The SGM shall be held within two months after the deposit of the
requisition. In the event that the Board fails to proceed to convene the
SGM within twenty-one days of the deposit of the requisition, the
requisitionist(s) may do so in accordance with the provisions of Section
74(3) of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (the “Companies Act”).
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHT (continued)

Shareholders’ right to propose resolutions at
general meeting

Pursuant to Sections 79 and 80 of the Companies Act, (i) any number of
Shareholders representing not less than one-twentieth (5%) of the total
voting rights of all the Shareholders having at the date of the requisition a
right to vote at the meeting to which the requisition relates; or (i) not less
than 100 Shareholders, may submit to the Company a written request
stating the resolution intended to be moved at an annual general meeting
of the Company or a statement of not more than 1,000 words with
respect to the matter referred to in any proposed resolution or the
business to be dealt with at a particular general meeting.

The written request/statement must be signed by all the requisitionists
and may consist of several documents in like form, each signed by one
or more of the requisitionists, and it must be deposited at the registered
office of the Company (Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton
HM11, Bermuda) or at the head office of the Company in Hong Kong (Suites
3305-09, 33rd Floor, Jardine House, 1 Connaught Place, Central, Hong
Kong) for the attention of the Company Secretary, not less than six (6)
weeks before the annual general meeting in case of a requisition requiring
notice of a resolution or not less than one (1) week before the general
meeting in case of any other requisition. Provided that if an annual
general meeting is called for a date six (6) weeks or less after the
requisition has been deposited, the requisition though not deposited
within the time required shall be deemed to have been properly deposited
for the purposes thereof.

Notice of any such intended resolution shall be given, and any such
statement shall be circulated, to Shareholders entitled to have notice of
the meeting sent to them by serving a copy of the resolution or statement
on each such Shareholder in any manner permitted for service of notice
of the meeting, and notice of any such resolution shall be given to any
other Shareholder by giving notice of the general effect of the resolution
in any manner permitted for giving him notice of meeting of the Company,
provided that the copy shall be served, or notice of the effect of the
resolution shall be given, as the case may be, in the same manner and,
so far as practicable, at the same time as notice of the meeting and,
where it is not practicable for it to be served or given at that time, it shall
be served or given as soon as practicable thereafter.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
A 3 B 6 ol ()

PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO
PUT ENQUIRIES TO THE BOARD

Shareholders should direct their enquiries about their shareholdings to
the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare
Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at 46th Floor, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong. In respect of other
enquiries, Shareholders may put forward enquiries to the Board through
the below contact details and we will direct the enquiries to the Board for
handling. The contact details are as follows:

Address:  Suites 3305-09, 33rd Floor
Jardine House
1 Connaught Place
Central
Hong Kong

Tel No.: (852) 2537 3086

Fax No.:  (852) 2537 2834
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Independent Auditor’s Report

_E
pwc

To the shareholders of
Hopson Development Holdings Limited
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Hopson
Development Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together, the “Group”) set out on pages 115 to 233, which comprise the
consolidated and company balance sheets as at 31st December 2014,
and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated cash flow statement and the
consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then ended, and
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.
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PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong

T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

B3 A% BB R A (A8

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31st
December 2014, and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 31st March 2015
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Balance Sheets
BrEAMEE

As at 31st December 2014
RZE—WF+=A=+—H

Consolidated Company
we A7
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-mE —Z=—= —E-mE —T—=
Note HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
k=3 F& T T TERT FE T
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Land costs + b A A 6 1,869,029 1,928,700 = —
Prepayments for acquisition W B - b T8 1 FRIB
of land 17 134,852 135,305 — —
Prepayments for construction 7% T 72 2 78 5 z8 18
work 17 1,480,246 1,340,636 — —
Properties and equipment M N R AE 7 4,060,382 4,105,363 - —
Investment properties B E 8 25,474,413 22,515,040 - —
Goodwill Ha 11 42,386 42,528 — —
Investments in subsidiaries REEB AR Z2&E 12 — — 22,155,460 | 22,930,348
Investments in associates NEE AR Z2I&ZE 13 158,290 158,257 - —
Investments in joint ventures REZANBZIZE 14 8,102,176 5,599,225 - —
Available-for-sale financial A E S EE
assets 18 3,342,755 2,665,885 — —
Deferred tax assets REFIEE = 23 341,466 295,185 — —
45,005,995 38,786,124 22,155,460 | 22,930,348
Current assets REBEE
Prepayments for acquisition U B% + I8 1~ F I8
of land 17 10,241,218 10,273,666 — —
Properties under development B £ H & 7 2 & &
for sale LYES 9 50,742,439 55,122,056 — —
Completed properties for sale  AJ {t H & 2 & 7% Bk
LS 10 28,277,161 21,412,298 — =
Financial assets at fair value BAFEDBEZR
through profit or loss PR Z B EE 16 13,607 12,146 = —
Accounts receivable & Wt BR 3K 18 385,076 406,179 - —
Prepayments, deposits and ERRE - Ze &
other current assets Hihm#h & E 17 2,300,768 2,553,024 290 169
Due from associates & WLt & R B R 38 223 32,882 = —
Due from related companies FEW G E N B A 38 9,984 6,440 — —
Pledged/charged bank BT R RT
deposits TR 19 1,223,534 1,189,562 — —
Cash and cash equivalents HeRREEEY 19 5,486,993 5,389,295 180,842 8,631
98,681,003 96,397,548 181,132 8,800
Total assets BEE 143,686,998 | 135,183,672 22,336,592 | 22,939,148
EEAREBEERAT —ZFT-—NFEFH 115



Balance Sheets (continued)

& E AR (8

As at 31st December 2014
RZE—NWF+=A=+—H

Consolidated Company
we AT
2014 2013 2014 2013
—2-mE —T—= =F-OF —T—=
Note HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
Mt aF FET TFH T FE T FH&T
EQUITY =
Capital and reserves ARTREZEA
attributable to the BEAERAREE
Company'’s equity holders
Share capital B& 2 25 224,392 224,537 224,392 224,537
Reserves (B 26 55,375,974 52,521,442 17,263,411 17,886,504
55,600,366 52,745,979 17,487,803 | 18,111,041
Non-controlling interests JEE M R 12(b) 2,385,072 2,411,207 — —
Total equity EREE 57,985,438 55,157,186 17,487,803 | 18,111,041
LIABILITIES =Rt
Non-current liabilities FFRBEE
Land cost payable JE& {<F = b B AR 20 61,212 61,418 - =
Borrowings ®e 22 36,747,468 29,900,660 4,607,387 4,586,251
Due to non-controlling FE £ 3H Il A 2
interests Z I8 38 571,574 573,493 — —
Deferred tax liabilities BEEFHIEEE 23 5,800,566 5,718,011 - =
43,180,820 36,253,582 4,607,387 4,586,251
Current liabilities RBas
Accounts payable FESBE R 21 8,746,455 7,728,568 - —
Land cost payable B+ iﬂz BN 20 88,832 533,335 — —
Borrowings BE 22 12,638,362 9,472,831 - —
Deferred revenue BT H&z A 10,290,304 | 15,544,864 - —
Accruals and other payables  FEET 5418 & H #b
FE 5 =k 18 3,184,658 2,990,449 232,017 232,439
Due to an associate FE A — BBt & A A
2 5RIA 38 6,996 7,020 = =
Due to related companies FERNBEEAT ZZKIE 38 88,232 101,939 = —
Due to joint ventures FERNEL AT ZRXE 38 3,112,088 2,368,135 — =
Current tax liabilities ANEAFI B & & 24 4,364,813 5,025,763 9,385 9,417
42,520,740 43,772,904 241,402 241,856
Total liabilities EEAE 85,701,560 80,026,486 4,848,789 4,828,107
Total equity and liabilities EaRkEEEHE 143,686,998 135,183,672 | 22,336,592 | 22,939,148
Net current assets/(liabilities) FREEE (& &) BE 56,160,263 | 52,624,644 (60,270) (233,056)
Total assets less current HEERARBARE
liabilities 101,166,258 91,410,768 22,095,190 | 22,697,292
Chu Mang Yee Chu Kut Yung
KA KERB
Director Director
EFE o
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. BN 2 AL R RESR — 215 -
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Consolidated Income Statement
o R R

For the year ended 31st December 2014
BHE_ZT-—NE+_A=+—HILFE

2014 2013
—E-lmEF —=—=
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B &t FE T THT
Revenues U 2= 5 17,044,862 15,648,207
Cost of sales 85 & B AR (11,793,197) (9,660,856)
Gross profit E F 5,251,665 5,987,351
Fair value gain on investment properties ‘AW HERNTE W 8 1,222,228 540,606
Other income/gains, net Ha g A Wzs o F5E 27 137,322 283,848
Selling and marketing expenses HERMSHEEZR (383,522) (544,241)
General and administrative expenses —R{ITHER (1,389,354) (1,411,121)
Finance income B 75 U A 30 65,267 31,069
Share of profit/(loss) of associates DAEEEE AR T (E8) 13 564 (1,226)
Share of profit of joint ventures DIEE &R A T 14 91,023 1,423,387
Profit before taxation K 3 Bl & £ 4,995,193 6,309,673
Taxation 18 31 (2,067,257) (2,475,187)
Profit for the year FEERAN 2,927,936 3,834,486
Attributable to: FEAh
Equity holders of the Company RAAGRERE A 32 2,947,301 3,852,073
Non-controlling interests FEE ) 1 2= (19,365) (17,587)
2,927,936 3,834,486
Earnings per share for profit attributable ZRFERAXATREFE A
to equity holders of the Company BiaftE 2
during the year (in HK$ per share) BREFN(BRBT)
— basic and diluted —ERKEE 33 1.31 2.10
Dividend % 8 34 — —

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial

statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

4% T W ok

For the year ended 31st December 2014
HE_Z—NEF+_A=+—HILEE

2014 2013
—E-mF —F=—=
Note HK$°000 HK$’000
Bt &t FE T THT
Profit for the year FERR 2,927,936 3,834,486
Other comprehensive income HtZ2mBA
ltems that may be reclassified HigoEsoEse
subsequently to profit or loss: Bm2IEE -
Fair value gain/(loss) on available-for-sale AIEHETKEEZ
financial assets ANFEWRE(EE) 15 686,941 (101,435)
Assets revaluation reserve realised upon HERIELDEMER
disposal of properties held for sale B BEEEGHREE 26(iif) (583,301) (9,843)
Deferred tax IR JE #5718 106,201 30,049
Currency translation differences EHEN =5 (300,009) 1,609,424
Other comprehensive (loss)/income for FEHEM2ME (&FiE) WA -
the year, net of tax R B 1E (90,168) 1,528,195
Total comprehensive income for the year F£E 2\ A & 2,837,768 5,362,681
Attributable to: FEAL -
Equity holders of the Company RABREREE A 2,865,173 5,299,834
Non-controlling interests FE 4R I 4 A 2 (27,405) 62,847
2,837,768 5,362,681

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial

statements.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
GOoBHEeRER

For the year ended 31st December 2014
BHE_ZT-—NE+_A=+—HILFE

2014 2013
—F-mE T =F
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Kt i FHET TAT
Cash flows from operating activities RETE2EHESRE
Cash (used in)/generated from operations 4 & (FTA) EE 2B & 35 (639,325) 5,785,505
Interest received =R &IPS 65,267 31,069
Mainland China corporate income tax paid & {5 78 Bl A FE 1 % Fr 15 5t (1,213,571) (1,374,363)
Mainland China land appreciation tax paid £ 15 71 B A [ + b 3% (& 5t (1,339,461) (406,900)
Net cash (used in)/generated from e R (FTA) EEZ
operating activities REFHE (3,127,090) 4,085,311
Cash flows from investing activities RETHZEESRE
Dividend income A% 8 U A 179,950 184,150
Additions of land costs B A L H K AR (4,281) (1,141)
Additions of properties and equipment BAMEREZME (343,089) (615,981)
Additions of investment properties gL B E (1,314,996) (1,067,625)
Capital injection into a joint venture AET—HEERA (2,434,893) —
(Increase)/decrease in pledged/charged B RTT
bank deposits T GE )R (38,017) 80,711
Net cash used in investing activities WEEBMA R (3,955,326) (1,419,886)

EERA A
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement (continued)

e B B R ()

For the year ended 31st December 2014
BHE_Z-—NE+_RA=+—HILFE

2014 2013
—E-mF —E—=
Note HK$°000 HK$’000
Kt it FET FAET
Cash flows from financing activities AMETHCEERE
Interest paid B F A (3,645,630) (2,951,163)
New short-term bank loans MG HRITE R 6,328,543 774,019
New long-term bank loans i EHEITE R 23,048,754 15,971,730
Repayments of bank loans EERITER (19,259,985) (17,514,194)
New senior notes IR ERE = 2,277,669
Advances from a joint venture KE—HEEARIZBK 753,138 153,003
Repayment to related companies EEARTHEER A (16,960) (168,813)
Repurchase of own shares BEAS KRG (10,786) (128,976)
Dividends paid to non-controlling KETHB AR Z
interests of subsidiaries FE 12 il MR A 2 AR B = (180,319)
Capital contribution by non-controlling JFE R L E
interests 1,270 34,438
Net cash generated from/(used in) BEEHEL(FTH)Z
financing activities HEe F8 7,198,344 (1,732,606)
Net increase in cash and cash HeREBEEEBEY2
equivalents byl B 115,928 882,819
Cash and cash equivalents at R—A—BZBE&K
1st January ReEED 5,389,295 4,356,241
Exchange (loss)/gain on cash and ReMASEEMZ
cash equivalents bE 5 (&518) ks (18,230) 150,235
Cash and cash equivalents R+—A=+—Bz~
at 31st December BehIREEEY 5,486,993 5,389,295

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial
statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31st December 2014
BHE_ZT-—NE+_A=+—HILFE

Attributable to equity
holders of the Company

ARG RERFE AES
Non-
controlling
Share capital Reserves interests Total
IF 2= )
% 7= & = #at
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
T&E T F&E T FHExT FH&xT
Balance at 1st January 2014 R-_ZT—F
—A—B2&% 224,537 52,521,442 2,411,207 55,157,186
Profit for the year F % = 2,947,301 (19,365) 2,927,936
Other comprehensive income: Hi2mUA :
Fair value gain on AHHERFEEEZ
available-for-sale N E W e
financial assets — 686,941 — 686,941
Assets revaluation reserve HERIELEWER
realised upon disposal I 2 BEEEGHS
of properties held for sale — (583,301) — (583,301)
Deferred tax R AE B IE - 106,201 - 106,201
Currency translation differences S ¥ [E 4 =58 — (291,969) (8,040) (300,009)
Other comprehensive loss FEHEMEEER -
for the year, net of tax Bk 7 IE - (82,128) (8,040) (90,168)
Total comprehensive FEE2EBA(EE)
income/(loss) for the year 48 =H - 2,865,173 (27,405) 2,837,768
Transactions with owners: HiFHEERS
Repurchase of own shares A E RN ) (145) (10,641) - (10,786)
Capital contribution by non- FEFE MR RS A
controlling interests — — 1,270 1,270
(145) (10,641) 1,270 (9,516)
Balance at 31st December 2014 HR—ZT — M4
TZRA=T—HZ&EE 224,392 55,375,974 2,385,072 57,985,438
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (continued)

M A 5 ) 3 (M)

For the year ended 31st December 2014
HE_Z—NEF+_A=+—HILEE

Attributable to equity holders
of the Company
RATRERE ARG

Non-
controlling
Share capital Reserves interests Total
FE 4% Il 1
fi% A it T 7 @5t
HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THT FAT FAT FAT
Balance at 1st January 2013 RZTE—=%F
—B— Bz & 173,600 42,014,189 2,806,811 44,994,600
Profit for the year F & A = 3,852,073 (17,587) 3,834,486
Other comprehensive income: Em2mEmUlA
Fair value loss on available-for-  A[ft HEBM B EE 2
sale financial assets N EEE — (101,435) — (101,435)
Assets revaluation reserve HEFELEMER
realised upon disposal of I 7 BEEEGHE
properties held for sale — (9,843) — (9,843)
Deferred tax iR RE 7 IR — 30,049 — 30,049
Currency translation differences & #& [ i, Z= %8 — 1,528,990 80,434 1,609,424
Other comprehensive income for G & Hith 2 mE U A -
the year, net of tax HFR 318 — 1,447,761 80,434 1,528,195
Total comprehensive income for 4 & & & W A 4258
the year — 5,299,834 62,847 5,362,681
Transactions with owners: HEEELS:
Repurchase of own shares & [O R & j% 19 (1,388) (127,588) — (128,976)
Issue of shares BTG, 52,325 5,335,007 - 5,387,332
Capital contribution by JEE Gl R E
non-controlling interests = = 34,438 34,438
Acquisition of further interests 1SRN B A Al Z B
in subsidiaries — — (812,570) (812,570)
Dividends paid to non-controling &2 T K& A 7 2
interests of subsidiaries eSS 2 IR B — — (180,319) (180,319)
50,937 5,207,419 (458,451) 4,799,905
Balance at 31st December 2013 MR- ZT— =4
TZA=T—RZH#&ER 224,537 52,521,442 2,411,207 55,157,186

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial

statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GENERAL INFORMATION

Hopson Development Holdings Limited (“the Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together “the Group”) are mainly engaged in the
development of residential properties in Mainland China. The Group
is also involved in property investment, hotel operations and
property management.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in
Bermuda. The address of its registered office is Clarendon House,
2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda.

The Company is listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The consolidated financial statements have been approved for
issue by the Board of Directors on 31st March 2015.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to the two years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Company have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRS”). The consolidated financial statements have
been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by
the revaluation of investment properties, available-for-sale financial
assets and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, which
are measured at fair value.

The consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance
with the applicable disclosure requirements of the predecessor
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32) for this financial year and the
comparative period.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRS
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of
applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a
higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated
financial statements, are disclosed in Note 4.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

In 2014, the Group adopted the following interpretation and
amendments of HKFRS, which are effective for accounting periods
beginning on or after 1st January 2014.

HKAS 32 (Amendments) Financial instruments: Presentation —
Offsetting financial assets and
financial liabilities

HKAS 36 (Amendments) Impairment of assets — Recoverable
amounts disclosures for
non-financial assets

HKAS 39 (Amendments) Financial instruments: Recognition and
measurement — Novation of
derivatives and continuation of
hedge accounting

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and Consolidation for investment entities

HKAS 27 (Amendments)

HK(IFRIC) Int-21 Levies

The Group has assessed the impact of the adoption of these
interpretation and amendments and considered that there was no
significant impact on the Group’s results and financial position.

In addition, the requirements of Part 9 “Accounts and Audit” of the
new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) come into
operation as from the Company’s first financial year commencing
on or after 3rd March 2014 in accordance with section 358 of that
Ordinance. The Group is in the process of making an assessment
of expected impact of the changes in the Companies Ordinance on
the consolidated financial statements in the period of initial
application of Part 9 of the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622). So far it has concluded that the impact is unlikely to be
significant and only the presentation and the disclosure of
information in the consolidated financial statements will be affected.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

fk 11 B 955 e 7 B R ()

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FESTBRBEw
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 21 EEEE @)

Standards and Amendments to Existing Standards MAEMZERRBEEEA 21&
that are not yet Effective H]

New Standards and Amendments el ZE B RASET

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

RUTBEHSEZ#%
RN ESTHEENR
HKAS 1 (Amendments) Disclosure Initiative 1st January 2016
EBGTTERE 15 (EFTA) BEEEE —T-RE—A—H
HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 (Amendments) Clarification of Acceptable Methods of 1st January 2016
Depreciation and Amortisation
ERGTERE165% B G R TERBHZAIEITENEE —E-—RXF—H—H
385k (&1 AN)
HKAS 16 and HKAS 41 (Amendments) Agriculture: Bearer Plants 1st January 2016
BB EAFIR KBS G EL RE EEMNMEYD —E-RXF—H—H
F41 57 (BETA)
HKAS 19 (Amendments) Defined Benefit Plans — Employee Contributions 1st July 2014
BB BT HEAE195 (BFTAR) ERBAETE — EE MK —E-—MmE+LH—H
HKAS 27 (Amendments) Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements 1st January 2016
BB EAE 275 (BFTAR) BB HRE 2 EwE —T-RE—A—H
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments 1st January 2018
R EHREEREIR S@MITA —_E-NF—H—H
HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (Amendments) Sale or Contribution of Assets between An 1st January 2016
Investor and Its Associate or Joint Venture
BEENBHRELEUNFI0R BB KREZHEEBERNRSAGE AR ZHED —E-RXF—H—H
AR 2285k (1B FT ) BELEIIA
HKFRS 11 (Amendments) Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in 1st January 2016
Joint Operations
BB B HRELERFE 115 (BFTR) W AR SRS 2 Gt EE —T-RE—HA—H
HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts 1st January 2016
R BHREEAFE 145 EERILERE —E-RF—H—H
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers 1st January 2017
BN HREERFE155% REEPERHZ W —E—+F—H—H
Annual improvements 2010-2012 cycle Improvements to HKFRSs 1st July 2014
—E-TEFE_T-_FRHACZFENE BEBUEHREER 2 SUE —ZE-—MmE+LHA—H
Annual improvements 2011-2013 cycle Improvements to HKFRSs 1st July 2014
—E-—FEZ--"FRPCFENE HESUBRELEDN 2 NE —E-MmELH—H
Annual improvements 2012-2014 cycle Improvements to HKFRSs 1st January 2016
T FE_ZT-NFEERCFENE HEBVBREERNZ BCE —E-RXE—H—H
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

Standards and Amendments to Existing Standards
that are not yet Effective (Continued)

New Standards and Amendments (Continued)

The Group has already commenced an assessment of the impact
of these new standards and amendments to existing standards,
certain of which are relevant to the Group’s operations and will give
rise to changes in accounting policies, disclosures or measurement
of certain items in the financial statements. However, the Group is
not yet in a position to ascertain their impact on its results and
financial position.

2.2 Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and all of its subsidiaries made up to
31st December.

(@) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are an entity (including structured entities) over which
the Group has control. The Group controls an entity when the
Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which control is transferred to the Group. They
are deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

The Group uses the acquisition method of accounting to account
for business combinations. The consideration transferred for the
acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets transferred,
the liabilities incurred and the equity interests issued by the Group.
The consideration transferred includes the fair value of any asset or
liability resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred. Identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured initially at their fair values at
the acquisition date. On an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, the
Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquiree either
at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share
of the acquiree’s net assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Consolidation (continued)
(a) Subsidiaries (Continued)

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair
value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree over the fair
value of the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill.
If this is less than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary
acquired in the case of a bargain purchase, the difference is
recognised directly in the consolidated income statement.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on
transactions between Group companies are eliminated. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated but considered as indicator of impairment
of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have
been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

In the Company’s balance sheet, the investments in subsidiaries
and amounts due from subsidiaries are stated at cost less provision
for impairment losses. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for
by the Company on the basis of dividend received and receivable.

(b) Transactions with non-controlling interests

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result in loss
of control are accounted for as equity transactions-that is, as
transactions with the owners in their capacity as owners. The
difference between fair value of any consideration paid and the
relevant share acquired of the carrying value of net assets of the
subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on disposals to
non-controlling interests are also recorded in equity.

When the Group ceases to have control or significant influence, any
retained interest in the entity is remeasured to its fair value, with the
change in carrying amount recognised in profit or loss. The fair
value is the initial carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently
accounting for the retained interest as an associate, joint venture or
financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in respect of that entity are accounted
for as if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Consolidation (continued)
(c) Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant
influence but not control, generally accompanying a shareholding of
between 20% and 50% of the voting rights. Investments in
associates are accounted for using the equity method of
accounting and are initially recognised at cost.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but significant
influence is retained, only a proportionate share of the amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss where appropriate.

The Group’s share of its associates’ post-acquisition profits or
losses is recognised in the consolidated income statement, and its
share of post-acquisition movements in other comprehensive
income is recognised in other comprehensive income. The
cumulative post-acquisition movements are adjusted against the
carrying amount of the investment. When the Group’s share of
losses in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the
associate, including any other unsecured receivables, the Group
does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred obligations
or made payments on behalf of the associate.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its
associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in the
associates. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of associates have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted
by the Group.

(d) Joint arrangements

The Group applies HKFRS 11 to all joint arrangements. Under
HKFRS 11, investments in joint arrangements are classified as
either joint operations or joint ventures depending on the
contractual rights and obligations each investor. The Group has
assessed the nature of its joint arrangements. Joint ventures are
accounted for using the equity method. The assets that the Group
controls and liabilities that the Group incurs in relation to the joint
operations are recognised in the consolidated balance sheets on
an accrual basis and classified according to the nature of the item.
The expenses that the Group incurs and its share of revenue that it
earns from the joint operations are included in the consolidated
income statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Consolidation (Continued)
(d) Joint arrangements (Continued)

Under the equity method of accounting, interests in joint ventures
are initially recognised at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise
the Group’s share of the post-acquisition profits or losses and
movements in other comprehensive income. When the Group’s
share of losses in a joint venture equals or exceeds its interests in
the joint ventures (which includes any long-term interests that, in
substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the joint
ventures), the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it
has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the joint
ventures.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its joint
ventures are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in the
joint ventures. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of the joint ventures have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

2.3 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the
internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker.
The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for
allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating
segments, has been identified as the Executive Directors who make
strategic and operational decisions.

2.4 Foreign currency translation
(@) Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s
entities are measured in Renminbi, which is the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the Company and its
subsidiaries operate (the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is
the presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year-
end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are recognised in the consolidated income
statement.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Foreign currency translation (continued)
(c) Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group entities (none of
which has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy) that have a
functional currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are
translated at the closing rate at the date of that balance
sheet;

(i)  income and expenses for each consolidated income
statement are translated at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction
dates, in which case income and expenses are translated at
the dates of the transactions); and

(i) all resulting exchange differences are recognised as a
separate component of equity.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a
foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign entity
and translated at the closing rate.

(d) Disposal of foreign operation and partial
disposal

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal of the
Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal involving
loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, a
disposal involving loss of joint control over a joint venture that
includes a foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss of
significant influence over an associate that includes a foreign
operation), all of the exchange differences accumulated in equity in
respect of that operation attributable to the equity holders of the
Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

In the case of a partial disposal that does not result in the Group
losing control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation,
the proportionate share of accumulated exchange differences are
re-attributed to non-controlling interests and are not recognised in
profit or loss. For all other partial disposals (that is, reductions in the
Group’s ownership interest in associates or joint ventures that do
not result in the Group losing significant influence or joint control)
the proportionate share of the accumulated exchange difference is
reclassified to profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.5 Properties and equipment

Properties and equipment other than construction-in-progress are
stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the
items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are expensed in the
consolidated income statement during the period in which they are
incurred.

Depreciation of properties and equipment is calculated using the
straight-line method to allocate cost to their residual values over

their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Hotel properties (superstructure) 28 to 30 years

Buildings Shorter of useful life of 50 years
or lease term

Furniture and office equipment 5 years

Motor vehicles 3 to 5 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date. An asset’s
carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount (Note 2.9).

Construction-in-progress is investments in buildings on which
construction work has not been completed and which, upon
completion, management intends to hold for providing goods or
services in the ordinary course of business. These properties are
carried at cost which includes construction expenditures, borrowing
costs directly attributable to construction of such properties and
other direct costs, less any impairment losses. On completion, the
properties are transferred to the appropriate categories of
properties and equipment at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. No depreciation is provided for construction-in-progress
until they are completed and put into commercial use.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
proceeds with carrying amount. These are included in the
consolidated income statement.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.6 Investment properties

Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital
appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the Group, is
classified as investment property. Investment property also includes
property that is being constructed or developed for future use as
investment property.

Investment property comprises land held under operating leases
and buildings held under finance leases. Land held under operating
leases are classified and accounted for as investment property
when the rest of the definition of investment property is met. The
operating lease is accounted for as if it were a finance lease.

Investment property is measured initially at its cost, including
related transaction costs and borrowing costs.

After initial recognition, investment property is carried at fair value.
Valuation processes and techniques are described in Note 8.

Fair value measurement on property under construction is only
applied if the fair value is considered to be reliably measurable.

The fair value of investment property reflects, among other things,
rental income from current leases and assumptions about rental
income from future leases in the light of current market conditions.
The fair value also reflects, on a similar basis, any cash outflows
that could be expected in respect of the property. Some of those
outflows are recognised as a liability, including finance lease
liabilities in respect of land classified as investment property; others,
including contingent rent payments, are not recognised in the
financial statements.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s carrying amount
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated
with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are
expensed in the income statement during the financial period in
which they are incurred.

Changes in fair values of investment property are recognised in the
consolidated income statement.

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it is
reclassified as properties and equipment, and its fair value at the
date of reclassification becomes its cost for accounting purposes.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.6 Investment properties (Continued)

If an item of properties and equipment becomes an investment
property because its use has changed, any difference between the
carrying amount and the fair value of this item at the date of transfer
is recognised in other comprehensive income and taken directly to
equity as a valuation of properties and equipment under HKAS 16.
However, if a fair value gain reverses a previous impairment loss,
the gain is recognised in the consolidated income statement.

Where a property for sale undergoes a change in use, evidenced
by commencement of an operating lease to another party, the
property is transferred to investment property.

Where an investment property undergoes a change in use,
evidenced by commencement of development with a view to sale,
the property is transferred to inventories. A property’s deemed cost
for subsequent accounting as inventories is its fair value at the date
of change in use.

2.7 Properties under development for sale
and completed properties for sale

Properties under development for sale and completed properties
for sale are included in current assets at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

The costs of properties under development for sale and completed
properties for sale consist of land costs, construction expenditures,
borrowing costs capitalised and other direct costs. Net realisable
value is based on estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business as determined by management with reference to the
prevailing market conditions, less further costs expected to be
incurred to completion and selling and marketing costs.

fk 11 B 955 e 7 B R ()

FESTHREUME @

2.6 REME @)

WY EMREEBREREREMK D
REME REFESHERF165%
ZEEREERERAZCREABEEQFER
ZEBRRBREMEEEAARNER  LIER
MERBRBEHEEER ARS - AW - 4
AFEREZERBEZREBELRE
B BREWE KRR E B R NER -

ERBELHEVEEAREUAG TS —7
REMERB/EFER) AZBEEHEA
BEME -

FEREAREMEESRE ARAERINA
FHERERER)  MZMESHEAR
E-AEMERELNRZAYZAFER
WEREFERREFTZIHA -

27 AL EZ

AHEEZ
AHRHEZHRENERTREEZE
ERMETRRAERTERFEME
R BIE B AR B AR -

=% &
=)

ok} 7l

VS
& B =

A ECERTFMERAHRLEZE
ERMEZIRABRE LKA EER
XCBERMEZEERAREMEEK
R FHRFEDNRBEREBIEPEERE
S2RERMABENGAEE  REEH
ERTRELENEMBARAUREERT
BHEEERE -

BRERIRE

i

BRAR Z—ZE-—DNFFH 133



SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.8 Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries represents the
excess oOf the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair
value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree over the fair
value of the identified net assets acquired.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a
business combination is allocated to each of the cash generating
units (“CGUSs”), or groups of CGUSs, that is expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination. Each unit or group of units to
which the goodwill is allocated represents the lowest level within
the entity at which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes. Goodwill is monitored at the operating
segment level.

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken annually or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate a potential
impairment. The carrying value of goodwill is compared to the
recoverable amount, which is the higher of value in use and the fair
value less costs to sell. Any impairment is recognised immediately
as an expense and is not subsequently reversed.

2.9 Impairment of assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to
amortisation, which are at least tested annually for impairment and
are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed
for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and
value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are
grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets
other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for
possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

2.10Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following categories: (a)
at fair value through profit or loss, (b) loans and receivable, and (c)
available-for-sale. The classification depends on the purpose for
which the financial assets were acquired. Management determines
the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.10Financial assets (Continued)

(@) Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss

A financial asset is classified in this category if acquired principally
for the purpose of selling in the short term. Derivatives are also
categorised as held for trading unless they are designated as
hedges. Assets in this category are classified as current assets if
expected to be settled within 12 months; otherwise, they are
classified as non-current.

(b) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
They are included in current assets, except for maturities greater
than 12 months after the balance sheet date, which are classified
as non-current assets.

(c) Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either
designated in this category or not classified in any of the other
categories. They are included in non-current assets unless
management intends to dispose of the investment within 12
months of the balance sheet date.

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised
on the trade-date — the date on which the Group commits to
purchase or sell the assets. Investments are initially recognised at
fair value plus transaction costs for all financial assets not carried at
fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets carried at fair value
through profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value and
transaction costs are expensed in the consolidated income
statement. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the investments have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all risks and
rewards of ownership. Available-for-sale financial assets and
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are subsequently
carried at fair value. Loans and receivables are carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of the “financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss” category are presented in
the consolidated income statement within “other income/gains,
net”, in the period in which they arise. Dividend income from
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss is recognised in
the consolidated income statement as part of “other income/gains,
net” when the Group’s right to receive payments is established.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.10Financial assets (Continued)

Changes in the fair value of monetary and non-monetary securities
classified as available-for-sale are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

When securities classified as available-for-sale are sold or impaired,
the accumulated fair value adjustments recognised in equity are
included in the consolidated income statement.

Interest on available-for-sale debt securities calculated using the
effective interest method is recognised in the consolidated income
statement as part of “other income/gains, net”. Dividends on
available-for-sale equity instruments are recognised in the
consolidated income statement as part of “other income/gains, net”
when the Group’s right to receive payments is established.

The fair values of quoted investments are based on current bid
prices. If the market for a financial asset is not active (and for
unlisted securities), the Group established fair value by using
valuation techniques. These include the use of recent arm’s length
transactions, reference to other instruments that are substantially
the same, discounted cash flow analysis, and option pricing
models, making maximum use of market inputs and relying as little
as possible on entity-specific inputs.

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is
objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired. In the case of equity securities classified as
available-for-sale, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value
of the security below its cost is considered as an indicator that the
securities are impaired. If any such evidence exists for available-for-
sale financial assets, the cumulative loss — measured as the
difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value,
less any impairment loss on that financial asset previously
recognised in profit or loss — is removed from equity and
recognised in the consolidated income statement. Impairment
losses recognised in the consolidated income statement on equity
instruments are not reversed through the consolidated income
statement.

Impairment testing of accounts receivable is described in Note 2.11.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.11 Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
They are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less provision for impairment. A provision for impairment of
accounts receivable is established when there is objective evidence
that the Group will not be able to collect all amounts due according
to the original terms of receivable. The amount of the provision is
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the effective
interest rate. The amount of the provision is recognised in the
consolidated income statement.

2.12Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits held at
call with banks and other short-term highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less.

2.13 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly
attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in
equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Where any group company purchases the Company’s equity share
capital, the consideration paid, including any directly attributable
incremental costs (net of income taxes), is deducted from equity
attributable to the Company’s equity holders until the shares are
cancelled.

2.14Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred. Transaction costs are incremental costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition, issue or disposal of a financial
asset or financial liability, including fees and commissions paid to
agents, advisers, brokers and dealers, levies by regulatory agencies
and securities exchanges, and transfer taxes and duties.
Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised cost; any
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the
redemption value is recognised in the consolidated income
statement over the period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.15Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incurred for the construction of any qualifying
assets are capitalised during the period of time that is required to
complete and prepare the assets for its intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are charged to the consolidated income
statement in the period in which they are incurred.

2.16 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the year comprises current tax and deferred
tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated income statement,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case the tax is
also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax
laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date in
the countries where the Company and its subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns
with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is
subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate
on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, if the deferred income tax arises from initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a
business combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss, it is not accounted for.
Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates and laws that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet
date and are expected to apply when the related deferred income
tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences arising
on investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures,
except where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference
is controlled by the Group and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.16 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and when the deferred income tax assets and liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on
either the taxable entity or different taxable entities where there is
an intention to settle the balances on a net basis.

2.17 Employee benefits

Group companies operate defined contribution plans only. The
Group pays contributions to publicly or privately administered
pension insurance plans on a mandatory or contractual basis. The
Group has no further payment obligations once the contributions
have been paid. The contributions are recognised as employee
benefit expense when they are due. Prepaid contributions are
recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a
reduction in the future payments is available.

2.18 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when: the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is probable that
an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and
the amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not
recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that
an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any
one item included in the same class of obligations may be small.

2.19 Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable for the sales of properties and services rendered in the
ordinary course of the Group’s activities. Revenue is recognised as
follows:

(a) Sales of properties

Revenue from sales of properties is recognised when the significant
risks and rewards of the properties are transferred to the buyers,
which is when the construction of the relevant properties have been
completed, notification of delivery of properties have been issued to
the buyers and collectability of related receivables pursuant to the
sale agreements is reasonably assured.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.19 Revenue recognition (Continued)
(a) Sales of properties (Continued)

Deposits and instalments received on properties sold prior to
transfer of the significant risks and rewards of the properties are
included as deferred revenue under current liabilities.

(b) Rental income

Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis over the period
of the relevant leases.

(c) Property management fees, property design
fees and marketing consultancy fees

Property management fees, property design fees and marketing
consultancy fees are recognised when the services are rendered.

(d) Hotel operations

Revenue from hotel operations is recognised upon provision of
services.

(e) Construction services

Revenue arising from construction services is recognised in the
accounting period in which the services is rendered, by reference
to completion of the specific transaction assessed on the basis of
the constriction costs incurred up to the end of the reporting period
as a percentage of total estimated cost for each contract.

() Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using the
effective interest method.

() Government grants

A government grant is recognised when there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching
with it and that the grant will be received.

Grants relating to income are deferred and recognised in the
consolidated income statement over the period necessary to match
them with the costs they are intended to compensate. Grants
relating to the purchase of properties and equipment are included
in non-current liabilities as deferred income and are credited to the
consolidated income statement on a straight-line basis over the
expected lives of the related assets. Amounts received for which
the earning process has not been completed are accounted for as
deferred revenue.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.19 Revenue recognition (Continued)
(h) Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is
established.

2.20 Operating leases (as the lessee)

Leases where a significant portion of the risks and rewards of
ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating
leases.

(@ The Group is the lessee other than operating
lease of land use rights

Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives
received from the lessor) are charged to the consolidated income
statement on a straight-line basis over the period of the leases.

(b) The Group is the lessee under operating lease
of land use rights

The Group made upfront payments to obtain operating leases of
land use rights for property development.

For land use rights to be developed for investment properties which
are measured at fair values, the upfront payments are included in
the cost of investment properties and accounted for as finance
lease (Note 2.6).

For land use rights to be developed for hotel properties and self-
use buildings, the upfront payments are separately recorded as
assets and amortised over the periods of the land use rights on a
straight-line basis. During the period of time that is required to
develop the properties for their intended use, the land amortisation
is capitalised as the cost of construction-in-progress. During other
periods, the land amortisation is charged to the consolidated
income statement.

For land use rights to be developed for properties for sale, the
upfront payments are included as properties under development for
sale or completed properties for sale.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.21 Insurance contracts

The Group regards its financial guarantee contracts in respect of
mortgage facilities provided to certain property purchasers and
guarantees provided to its joint ventures and subsidiaries as
insurance contracts.

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date the liabilities under
its insurance contracts using current estimates of future cash flows.
Changes in carrying amount of these insurance liabilities are
recognised in the consolidated income statement.

2.22 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognised
as a liability in the Group’s and the Company’s financial statements
in the period in which the dividends are approved by the
Company’s Directors/shareholders.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: foreign
exchange risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and cash flow and fair value
interest-rate risk. The Group’s overall risk management policy
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimise potential adverse effect on the Group’s financial
performance. The Group regularly monitors its exposure and
currently considers not necessary to hedge any of these financial
risks.

(@) Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange risks as defined by HKFRS 7 arise on account of
monetary assets and liabilities being denominated in a currency
that is not the functional currency; differences resulting from the
translation of financial statements into the Group’s presentation
currency are not taken into consideration.

Majority of the Group’s subsidiaries operate in Mainland China, with
most of the transactions denominated in Renminbi. The Group is
exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from the exposure of
Renminbi against US dollar and Hong Kong dollar. It has not
hedged its foreign exchange rate risk.

In addition, the conversion of Renminbi into foreign currencies is
subject to the rules and regulations of the foreign exchange control
promulgated by the Mainland China government.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(@) Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

At 31st December 2014, if Renminbi had weakened/strengthened
by one percentage-point against US dollar with all other variables
held constant, post-tax profit for the year would have been
HK$55.3 million (2013: HK$45.3 million) lower/higher, mainly as a
result of foreign exchange losses/gains on translation of US dollar
denominated senior notes, bank deposits and borrowings.

At 31st December 2014, if Renminbi had weakened/strengthened
by one percentage-point against HK dollar with all other variables
held constant, post-tax profit for the year would have been HK$4.2
million lower/higher (2013: HK$3.2 million higher/lower), mainly as a
result of foreign exchange losses/gains (2013: gains/losses) on
translation of HK dollar denominated bank deposits and
borrowings.

(b) Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to deposits with
banks and financial institutions and credit exposures to customers.
The Group has credit policies in place and exposures to these
credit risks are monitored on an ongoing basis.

The Group manages its deposits with banks and financial
institutions by monitoring credit ratings. At 31st December 2014,
deposits with banks amounted to HK$6,709 million (2013:
HK$6,577 million) were placed with a number of international/
national/provincial/municipal financial institutions with sound credit
ratings.

In respect of credit exposures to customers, the Group normally
receives deposits or progress payments from sales of residential
properties prior to completion of the sales transactions, and bills
customers in advance for property management service.

The Group has arranged bank financing for certain purchasers of
property units and has provided guarantees to secure the
purchasers’ obligations for repayments. If a purchaser defaults on
the payment of its mortgage during the term of the guarantee, the
bank holding the mortgage may demand the Group to repay the
outstanding amount under the loan and any accrued interest
thereon. Under such circumstances, the Group is able to retain the
property sales proceeds received from the customers and sell the
property to recover any amounts paid by the Group to the bank. In
this regard, the Directors consider that the Group’s credit risk is
minimal (see also Note 36).
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)

The Group monitors the exposure to credit risk in respect of
amounts due from joint ventures through jointly controlling their
financial and operating policy decisions and reviewing their financial
positions on a regular basis.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying
amount of each financial asset (other than equity securities included
in available-for-sale financial assets and financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss) in the balance sheet after deducting any
impairment allowance, and guarantees provided to third parties.
The Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from accounts
receivable is set out in Note 18.

(c) Liquidity risk

In managing the liquidity risk, the Group regularly and closely
monitors its current and expected liquidity requirements to maintain
its rolling cash flow at a level which is considered adequate by the
Group to finance the Group’s operations and to maintain sufficient
cash to meet its business development requirements.

Management has periodically prepared cash flow projections and
the Group has a number of alternative plans to offset the potential
impact on the Group’s business development and current
operation, should there be circumstances that the anticipated cash
flow may be affected by any unexpected changes in global/
Mainland China economic conditions. The Company’s Directors
consider that the Group will be able to maintain sufficient financial
resources to meet its needs.

As at 31st December 2014, the Company’s current liabilities exceeds
current assets by HK$60,270,000 (2013: HK$233,056,000). After
considering the adequacy of funds on a Group basis, the Directors
consider that the Company will have sufficient financial resources to
meset its liabilities as and when they fall due.

The table below analyses the Group’s and the Company’s financial
liabilities by relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining
period at the balance sheet date to the contractual maturity dates.
The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Er o WA 5 e A B RE (28)
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 Bfi%[E [T IE (@)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 B E R E@m)
(c) Liquidity risk (Continued) (o) REBES R @
Less than Between1 Between 2 Over 5
1year and 2years and 5 years years
15 R 1826F 2E5F HBIB5F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’'000
& BT TFBxT F& T
Group &
At 31st December 2014 R-E—DOE
+=—BR=+—H
Borrowings (including interests) EBEEBEMER) 16,214,978 16,571,276 18,395,118 8,292,342
Accounts payable and accruals and & {5 BE X F qu FRIA K&
other payables H o fE 5k 11,590,301 - - -
Land cost payable FE <+ Hh Bk ZIS 88,832 61,212 - -
Due to an associate BN —EBE AR 2
I 6,996 — — —
Due to related companies FENEEAT 2R Ty\ I8 88,232 — — —
Due to joint ventures FER G %A al 2K 3,112,088 = — —
Due to non-controlling interests FEH #T %U R 2
%IE - - — 571,574
31,101,427 16,632,488 18,395,118 8,863,916
At 31st December 2013 N-—ZEBE—=58
+=-—A=+—H
Borrowings (including interests) EEEEHE) 12,890,494 12,471,059 22,716,125 438,096
Accounts payable and accruals and & {5 BR 7+ & 5T 70 18 &
other payables E At & 15 R IE 10,293,793 = — —
Land cost payable & -+ £ 3 Bk AR 533,335 61,418 — —
Due to an associate BN —HBER R 2
E Qs 7,020 — — —
Due to related companies FEREE AT 2 W IE 101,939 — — —
Due to joint ventures ENEE AT ZHRE 2,368,135 — = =
Due to non-controlling interests Eﬁ#%ﬁﬁfL
B = = = 573,493
26,194,716 12,532,477 22,716,125 1,011,589
Company YN
At 31st December 2014 R-ZE—MEF
+=A=+—-A8H
Borrowings =Ry 529,716 2,593,584 2,589,885 -
Accruals and other payables fE 5T 3K I8 No H M FE 1+
RIB 232,017 — — —
761,733 2,593,584 2,589,885 —
At 31st December 2013 R-ZE—=5
+=A=+-8
Borrowings Te 529,672 529,672 5,270,951 —
Accruals and other payables FE ST 308 & H i & 1<
Q=) 232,439 — — —
762,111 529,672 5,270,951 —

BERIRE

EEERAF
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(c) Liquidity risk (Continued)

The table above excludes guarantees given to banks for mortgage
facilities granted to certain buyers of the Group’s properties (see
Notes 3.1(b) and 36) as management considers the likely
crystallisation of the guarantees to be as minimal.

(d) Cash flow and fair value interest-rate risk

The Group’s interest-rate risk arises from interest bearing bank
deposits/balances and borrowings. Bank deposits/balances and
borrowings issued at variable rates expose the Group to cash flow
interest-rate risk. Borrowings issued at fixed rates expose the
Group to fair value interest-rate risk. The Group has not hedged its
cash flow and fair value interest-rate risk.

At 31st December 2014, if interest rates had increased/decreased
by one percentage-point and all other variables were held constant,
the net finance income (after taking into account the interest
expenses capitalised in the properties under development,
investment properties and construction-in-progress) would
increase/decrease the Group’s post-tax profit by approximately
HK$41 million (2013: HK$40 million).

3.2 Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order to
provide returns for equity owners and benefits for other
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce
the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the amount of dividends paid to equity owners, issue new
shares, or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Group monitors capital based on gearing ratio. Gearing ratio is
calculated as net debt divided by total equity. Net debt is calculated
as total borrowings (including current and non-current borrowings,
as shown in the consolidated balance sheet) less pledged/charged
bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

fk 11 B 955 e 7 B R ()

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3

3.2 Capital risk management (Continued)

The gearing ratios at 31st December 2014 and 2013 were as

B 7% B B B B m)

32 EcEkREE @
RZE—NFER_E—=F+-A=+

follows: —BZEARBELERNAT
2014 2013
—E-DOF —T—=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
THERT FHET
Total borrowings mEE 49,385,830 39,373,491

Less: pledged/charged bank deposits and B BRI HRRITERK

cash and cash equivalents RekBEEZEEY (6,710,527) (6,578,857)
Net debt BEFHE 42,675,303 32,794,634
Total equity R EE 57,985,438 55,157,186
Gearing ratio BERBELXE 74% 59%

The increase in the gearing ratio was mainly attributable to the
increase in borrowings to finance the property construction.

3.3 Fair value estimation

The table below analyses financial instruments carried at fair value,
by valuation method. The different levels have been defined as

follows:

° Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical

assets or liabilities (Level 1).

° Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that
are observable for the asset or liabilities, either directly (that
is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (Level 2).

o Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on
observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs) (Level 3).

The following table presents the Group’s financial assets that are
measured at fair value at 31st December 2014. See Note 8 for
disclosure relating to the investment properties which are measured

at fair value.
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Aok 1 B 955 e % B R (4

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 B EMEE @)

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)

33 A EME @)

Level 1 Level 3 Total
1K 3K et
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
T& T F& T FHExT

Financial assets at fair value through 1% A 1835 38 38 25 51 BR
profit or loss 2B EE 13,227 380 13,607
Available-for-sale financial assets AHEENBKEE — 3,342,755 3,342,755
13,227 3,343,135 3,356,362

The following table presents the Group’s financial assets that are
measured at fair value at 31st December 2013:

TREIR-_E—=F+=-A=+—H
BRAVFEHEZAKRENBHEE

Level 1 Level 3 Total
FAR F 34 et
HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$’000
FE T FE T F& T

Financial assets at fair value BRAFEEBBERIIRK
through profit or loss 2B E 11,764 382 12,146
Available-for-sale financial assets AHEERKEE — 2,665,885 2,665,885
11,764 2,666,267 2,678,031

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is
based on quoted market prices at the balance sheet date. A
market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and
regularly available from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry
group, pricing service, or regulatory agency, and those prices
represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an
arm’s length basis. The quoted market price used for financial
assets held by the Group is the current bid price. These instruments
are included in Level 1. Instruments included in Level 1 comprise
listed equity securities, which are classified as financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an
active market (for example, over-the-counter derivatives) is
determined by using valuation techniques. These valuation
techniques maximise the use of observable market data where it is
available and rely as little as possible on entity specific estimates. If
all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are
observable, the instrument is included in Level 2. There was no
instrument included in Level 2 at 31st December 2013 and 2014.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable
market data, the instrument is included in Level 3. Instruments
included in Level 3 represent unlisted equity securities, which are
primarily classified as available-for-sale financial assets.

Fair values of available-for-sale financial assets were derived using
the income approach. Under the income approach, the net present
value of the forecast dividend is estimated by applying an
appropriate discount rate which reflects the risk profile of the
investments. The Directors considered that the income approach
reflects the long-term investment purpose of the available-for-sale
financial assets, and the stage of development of the investees’
businesses.

The following unobservable inputs were used to determine the fair
value of the available-for-sale financial assets.

3

fk 11 B 955 e 7 B R ()

B 7% B B B B m)

33 A EME @)

REEERMBSEE 2/ T A (WHI
METERE)ZAFENRBHEEEESE -
hEBEFEAZEERMBZAERM
BEE YRR IKEERBREEM
e MATEE—BIAZAFEMEE
AREABEBEBUEBEER BEELIAEA
Fo2R - HE_TE—=FR_T—NFE+
“A=+—BLEIETEGFAFE2H -

fid — @k Z B E X ABURIL FERIE A
BRMSHEEBEAE ARLIASASES
BT AEIBRzITATERDERAH
HEMBEEZIFLMRAEZS -

A EMBEE R FEIREAK
B REBEUAE  BRBREHFRET
BERARBRERARBELNGEMR
RiGET - EFRA/WRAERBR A H &R
BEEZRBAREENUARKRET X
15 1 3 R B B

RT A BRBBEANBEEAIHREE
MBEENRFE-

SHERREEBERAA

“E-NEFHR 149
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Aok 1 B 955 e % B R (4

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 BfFSE M E 2 @)

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)

33 A EME @)

Relationship of unobservable

Unobservable inputs Range of unobservable inputs inputs to fair value
AAEE THEHEHESR
TABEHE HEEE ATLENER
Dividend growth rate for the year 2015 to 2019 (2013: 8%— 27% (2013: 8%-34%) The higher the growth rate, the
2014 t0 2018) higher the fair value.
CE-REE_T-NFHREHERE 8%-27% (= — =4 : 8%-34%) EREHE AFEYES-
(ZT—=Z5: 2T HNFE-T-N\F)
Terminal growth rate 3% p.a. (2013: 4% p.a.) The higher the growth rate, the
higher the fair value.
R RE FE3%(ZE—=F : 5F4%) BREYR AEEMS-
Discount rate 11% p.a. (2013: 12% p.a.) The higher the discount rate, the
lower the fair value.
B = BFEN%(ZE—=F: BREMS  RFEBE-
FF12%)
Lack of marketability discount 16% (2013: 16%) The higher the discount, the lower
the fair value.
T 3% n A M B 3R X 16%(ZZ— =4 : 16%) BEERYE AFEME-
The nominal value less estimated credit adjustments of accounts FEWBRER - ENBEZR - BEHREE A+ 24
receivable, accounts payable, balances with related parties, 7% ENMBARLEIRERE RENT
amounts due to minority shareholders of subsidiaries and land cost AR ZEEREGEEFAER I
payables are assumed to approximate their fair values. The fair HEHEANTEHREEGE HEEM=S  BEKE
value of financial liabilities for disclosure purposes is estimated by BzATEDEAEERBTREZEUS
discounting the future contractual cash flows at the current market BT B 2T SN XK AR 1B 5
interest rate that is available to the Group for similar financial ZEAB BARKEHBEESREAREL
instruments or based on the current bid price in the market. fHE o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based
on historical experience and other factors, including expectations
relating to future events which are believed to be reasonable under
the circumstances.

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and
assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom
equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year are discussed below.

(a) Estimated impairment of properties and
equipment and goodwill

Properties and equipment are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. Goodwill is reviewed for
impairment at each balance sheet date or whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. The recoverable amounts of properties and
equipment and goodwill have been determined based on value-in-
use calculations, taking into account latest market information and
past experience. These calculation require the use of judgements
and estimates.

(b) Estimated provision of properties under
development for sale and completed
properties for sale

The Group assesses the carrying amounts of properties under
development and completed properties for sale according to their
net realisable value based on the realisability of these properties,
taking into account estimated costs to completion based on past
experience and estimated net sales value based on prevailing
market conditions. Provision is made when events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts may not be
realised. The assessment requires the use of judgement and
estimates.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and
assumptions (Continued)

(c) Estimate of fair value of investment properties

The best evidence of fair value is current prices in an active market
for similar lease and other contracts. In the absence of such
information, the Group determines a range of reasonable fair value
estimates. In making its judgement, the Group considers
information from a variety of sources including: () current prices in
an active market for properties of different nature, condition or
location (or subject to different lease or other contracts), adjusted
to reflect those differences, by reference to independent valuations;
and (ii) recent prices of similar properties in less active markets,
with adjustments to reflect any changes in economic conditions
since the date of the transactions that occurred at those prices, by
reference to independent valuations.

In the case of investment properties under development, their fair
value reflects the expectations of market participants of the value of
the properties when they are completed, less deductions for the
costs required to complete the projects and appropriate
adjustments for profit and risk. Key assumptions used in the
valuation of the investment properties which are measured at fair
value are set out in Note 8. The fair values are determined by
reference to independent valuation.

(d) Estimate of fair value of available-for-sale
financial assets

The fair value of available-for-sale financial assets that are not
traded in an active market is determined by using valuation
techniques. The Group uses its judgement to select the income
approach and evaluates, among other factors, the duration and
extent to which the fair value of an investment is less than its cost;
and the financial health and business outlook for the investee. The
key assumptions adopted on the valuation methodologies as set
out in Note 3.3 are based on management’s best estimates.

(e) Current taxation and deferred taxation

The Group is subject to taxation in Mainland China and Hong Kong.
Judgement is required in determining the amount of the provision
for taxation and the timing of payment of the related taxation. There
are many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of business.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will impact
the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the periods in which
such determination are made.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and
assumptions (Continued)

(e) Current taxation and deferred taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary differences and
tax losses are recognised as management considers it is probable
that future taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences or tax losses can be utilised. Where the
expectation is different from the original estimate, such differences
will impact the recognition of deferred taxation assets and taxation
in the periods in which such estimate is changed.

The Group is subject to land appreciation taxes in Mainland China.
However, the implementation and settlement of these taxes varies
among various tax jurisdictions in provinces/cities of Mainland
China, and the Group has not finalised most of its land appreciation
taxes clearance and payments with the local tax authorities in
Mainland China. Accordingly, significant judgement is required in
determining the amount of the land appreciation and its related
taxes. The Group recognises its obligation to land appreciation
taxes based on management’s best estimates according to the tax
rules. The final tax outcome could be different from the amounts
that were initially recorded, and these differences will impact the
taxation and tax provisions in the periods in which such taxes have
been finalised with local tax authorities.

() Depreciation

The Group depreciates hotel properties, buildings, furniture and
office equipment and motor vehicles on a straight-line basis over
the estimated useful life of 28 to 30 years, shorter of useful life of 50
years or lease term, 5 years and 3 to 5 years, respectively, and
after taking into account their estimated residual value,
commencing from the date the asset is placed into productive use.
The estimated useful lives and dates that the Group places the
properties and equipment into productive use reflects Directors’
estimate of the periods that the Group intends to derive future
economic benefits from the use of the Group’s assets.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

4.2 Critical accounting judgements
(@) Revenue recognition

The Group has recognised revenue from the sale of properties in
the ordinary course of business, as disclosed in Note 2.19. The
assessment of when an entity has transferred the significant risks
and rewards of ownership to buyers requires the examination of the
circumstances of the transaction. In most cases, the transfer of
risks and rewards of ownership coincides with the date when the
equitable interest in the property vests with the buyer upon
handover of the respective property to the buyer.

As disclosed in Note 37, the Group provides guarantees in respect
of mortgage facilities granted by certain banks relating to the
mortgage loans arranged for certain purchasers of the Group’s
properties. These guarantees will expire when the relevant property
ownership certificates are lodged with the various banks. In order
to obtain mortgages, the purchasers would have settled certain
percentage of the total contract amount in accordance with the
related PRC regulations upon delivery of the properties. The
Directors are of the opinion that such settlements provide sufficient
evidence of the purchasers’ commitment to honour their
contractual obligations of the bank loans. In addition, based on
past experiences, there were no significant defaults of mortgage
facilities by the purchasers resulting in execution of the bank
guarantees. Accordingly, the Directors believe that significant risks
and rewards associated with ownership of the properties have
been transferred to the purchasers.

(b) Financial implication of regulations of idle land

Under the PRC laws and regulations, if a property developer fails to
develop land according to the terms of a land grant contract,
including the designated use of the land and the time of
commencement and completion of the property development, the
Mainland China government may regard the land as idle and issue
a warning or impose a penalty on the developer or reclaim the land.
The Group has certain tracts of land for which development has not
commenced according to the specified terms of the respective land
grant contracts. Judgement is required in assessing whether these
tracts of land will be subject to the penalty of idle land or may be
reclaimed by the Government and thereby resulting in any adverse
financial impact to the Group. In making this judgement, the Group
evaluates the extent of development of the whole tracts of land,
status of negotiation with the government authorities as to the
extension of time of commencement or revision of development
plans.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

4.2 Critical accounting judgements (Continued)

(c) Distinction between investment properties and
owner-occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an
investment property. In making its judgement, the Group considers
whether the property generates cash flows largely independently of
the other assets held by an entity. Owner-occupied properties
generate cash flows that are attributable not only to property but
also to other assets used in the production or supply process.

Some properties comprise a portion that is held to earn rentals or
for capital appreciation and another portion that is held for use in
the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes. If these portions can be sold separately (or leased out
separately under a finance lease), the Group accounts for the
portions separately. If the portions cannot be sold separately, the
property is accounted for investment property only if an insignificant
portion is held for use in the production or supply of goods or
services or for administrative purposes. Judgement is applied in
determining whether ancillary services are so significant that a
property does not qualify as investment property. The Group
considers each property separately in making its judgement.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Executive Directors of the Company (the “Executive Directors”) are
regarded as the chief operating decision maker of the Group. The
Executive Directors review the Group’s internal reporting in order to
assess performance and allocate resources. Management has
determined the operating segments based on these reports.

The Executive Directors consider the business from both business
and geographic perspectives. Reportable business segments
identified are property development, property investment, hotel
operations and property management. Geographically, the
reportable business segments are further segregated into three
main geographical areas, namely Southern China (SC) (including
Guangzhou, Huizhou, Zhongshan and Hong Kong), Northern China
(NC) (including Beijing, Tianjin, Dalian, Taiyuan and Qinhuangdao)
and Eastern China (EC) (including Shanghai, Hangzhou, Kunshan,
Ningbo, Cixi and Taicang).
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

The Executive Directors assess the performance of the operating
segments based on the segment results. Corporate income/
expenses, finance income and dividend income from available-for-
sale financial assets are not included in the results for each
operating segment that is reviewed by the Executive Directors.

Segment assets consist primarily of land costs, prepayments for
construction work, properties and equipment, investment
properties, investments in associates, investments in joint ventures,
prepayments for acquisition of land, properties under development
for sale, completed properties for sale, accounts receivable,
prepayments, deposits and other current assets, pledged/charged
bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents. They exclude
available-for-sale financial assets, which are managed on a central
basis, and deferred tax assets.

Sales between segments are carried out on terms similar to those
that prevail in arm’s length transactions. The revenue from external
parties reported to the Executive Directors is measured in a manner
consistent with that in the consolidated income statement.

Revenues comprise turnover which included gross proceeds from
sales of properties, revenue from rental, hotel operations and
construction services, and property management income.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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HiFAEaR BT AFE-

W R EHEMSREAR He B
EEERERRBEEARYEE R R
NP

2014 2013

—Z-NF —E—=F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FA& T

Sales of properties Y E 15,461,572 14,136,060

Property management income MESEIA 816,008 664,042

Income from hotel operations B 2 E U A 251,608 246,810
Rental income HEa WA

— Investment properties —BEME 302,696 270,598

— Others — Hith 158,955 145,364
Construction services 2 =R R 7

— Decoration — 2z 54,023 185,333

17,044,862 15,648,207
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

&5 B R B RE (A
SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 oEEXE @
The segment results by business lines and by geographical areas HE—_Z—MNWE+—_B=+—HIFEE
for the year ended 31st December 2014 are as follows: RET &iﬂg BE| D ZDEPEBUT ¢
Property
Property development Property investment Hotel operations management Group
NERR NERE BEEE NEER &8
SC EC NC SC EC NC SC EC NC
@ 2R B B ER  EL B ER EL
HKS'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000  HK$'000
TErn TErx TEx Tz TEx TEn Tz TEx ThEx TET Thn
Year ended 31st December EZ=-F-MF
2014 t-A=1-H
LEE
Total revenues aha 7,410,113 1,709,432 7,965,101 117,098 148,208 44490 67,165 6,778 236,235 852,652 18,557,212
Intrafinter-segment revenues -~ A48,/ Mz | (1,320,855 (5,916) (74,325  (5,304)  (1,79) - (1,289 - (57,282 (36,644)  (1,512,410)
Revenues W& 6,080,258 1,703,516 7,890,776 111,794 146412 44490 65877 6,778 178,953 816,008 17,044,862
Segment results NEEE 1,945,684 281,788 1,385440 705606 205668 613243 (22,250) (31,550) (208,682) (37,440) 4,837,507
Depreciation & (6615 (3135 (4477)  (730))  (660) (5 (8305) (37 (112.252) (2765)  (159,029)
Amortisation 5 = = = = = - (17,7200 (26,733  (6,846) - (51,299
Provision for impairment of &4t B 20 LA B
accounts receivable - - - - - - - - - (17,038) (17,038)
Fair value gain on investment R &9 2 AT (&
properties Wi = = - 629,208 84,074 508,946 - - - - 1,222,228
Share of profit of associates ~ A{EEE A7l
Al 181 - 383 - - = = - - - 564
Share of profit/loss) of joint ~ AEEEA A7)
ventures w5/ (B8) 54,617 - (3480 - - 39,886 - - - - 91,028
EEAREBEERAR —ZET-—NFEFH 157
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Aok 1 B 955 e % B R (4

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 oEPEXE @
The segment results by business lines and by geographical areas BEE _ZE—=F+_HA=1+—HItEE
for the year ended 31st December 2013 are as follows: BREBMMWERI D 2D IBEENT :
Property
Property development Property investment Hotel operations management Group
NEER S BEEE nxER &8
SC EC NC SC EC NC SC EC NC
=3 5 - 5 A
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$O000 HKE'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
Thr Thx Thr Tz TEx TEx TExn TEx  ThEx T TEn
Year ended 31st December HZE=F-— Eﬁ
2013 tzB=t-
LEE
Total revenues B 7914327 1,288,107 6,033,342 98582 146,180 30,606 52,176 - 214,663 682,211 16,460,194
Intra/inter-segment revenues % 25,/ il % (678743 (6,079 (84197) (2702 (2,068 - (127) - (19,902 (18,169)  (811,987)
Revenues e 7,235,584 1,282,028 5949145 95880 144,112 30,606 52,049 — 194,761 664,042 15,648,207
Segment results PHEE 1938516 53,192 2,174,582 468,949 119,753 1,585,862  (41997) (31,227) (251,568 6,504 6,022,576
Depreciation nE (6620 (2943 (19,518 (433) (210) (15 (7,730) @ (112,747) (2.887) (152812
Amortisation 5 = = = = = - 048 (@719 (7.254) - (43864
Provision for impairment of & Ut B 2t LA B
accounts receivable - - - - - - (11,270) - - (10,858) (22,128)
Fair value gain/{loss) on RENZE2ATE
investment properties 3/ (58 = = — 4008%6  (4,159) 143,869 - - - - 540,606
Share of proft/loss) 2 5%%"&
of associates @l (6 377 - {1609 - - - - - = = (1,226)
Share of proft/{oss) of ot~ H54 &2 7
ventures i/ (E8) 11,776 - (33 - — 1,414,982 - - - - 1423387

158 Hopson Development Holdings Limited Annual Report 2014



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

The segment assets by business lines and by geographical areas

as at 31st December 2014 are as follows:

fk £r B 985 i A B R

(%)

—OF+T-_A=+—"BREKBKR

iiﬂlu:u;%iﬂ’ ZOREENT

Property
Property development Property investment Hotel operations management Group
NEER NERE EEEE NEER L1
SC EC NC SC EC NC SC EC NC
2@ ER  EY B ER B} EF 0 ER 0 EY
HKS000  HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS(000 HKS(000 HKS(000 HKS'000  HKS'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
Tén TéEx TEx Tz Téz TEx TEx TEx TéEn TR Tixn
Asatandfortheyearended ~ R=F-ME+=F
31st December 2014 =t-BRkEZ
ZALEE 38,037,711 22,519,678 43,763,889 6,238,873 12,995,287 10,873,094 1,125208 1,524,784 2,534,864 389,389 140,002,777
Seqment assets nclude; AREERE:
Investments n assodiates RBERAZRE 2882 - 155428 - - - - - - - 158290
Investments injointventures WA ERFAZRA [ 5,008,246 - 1198712 - - 1895218 - - - - 8102176
Additons to non-curent assets  REFRHEE
(other then fivancialinstruments  (FEE4BIE
and deferred tax assets) RERKBLE) | 241,08 7006 13118 146511 1032343 477685 33830 263867 57,112 3431 4476991
The segment assets by business lines and by geographical areas RZE—=FF+_HA=1T—"HB®REBKK

as at 31st December 2013 are as follows:

wREDZDBMEEMT

Property
Property development Property investment Hotel operations management Group
NEER ESE EEEE nEER L]
SC EC NC SC EC NC SC EC NC
2p 0 #x By Ep 0 ER 0 EF  Eg 0 2R E)
HK$000 HK$000 HK$O000 HK$000 HK$O000 HK$000 HK$O000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000  HK$'000
Thr Téx Térn TEx ThEx Thz TEx TEn Thx Tér  TiEn
Asatandfortheyearended ~ H=F-Z%+=f
31st December 2013 =t-BRBZ
GHLEE 36,098,629 21,169,892 43,162,649 4957644 11489545 9496942 1095238 1,607,240 2,782,721 402,102 132,222,602
Segment assets include: APEERE:
Investments in associates RBENFZRE 2690 - 155567 = = = = = = = 158,057
Ivestmentsinjoint ventures — RAEREZERE 2531374 - 1246648 - - 1821208 - - - - 55992
Addtions to non-curentassets  FEFHHEE
(other than financialinstuments — (FEE4 BT E
and deferred tax assets) REERBEE) 5,504 1510 8920 249477 1037599 4165920 42104 375485 185615 2340 6074474
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Aok 1 B 955 e % B R (4

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 o3ER @
Reconciliation of reportable segment profit from operations to profit o 2 3|/ 5 ZP 2 & 25 s Kl BB B AT e Al
before taxation is as follows: BRIAT :
2014 2013
—EF-mE ZT=F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FHT
Reportable segment profit from operations A2 WD BLEE &= F 4,837,507 6,022,576
Unallocated corporate (expenses)/income KB Qe (Fsk) WA
(including exchange (loss)/gain), net (BIEEH (BB) W) -
HHE (87,109) 117,815
Dividend income from available-for-sale KEAHEEMBEEE
financial assets Z R B A 179,528 138,213
Finance income B 15 A 65,267 31,069
Profit before taxation B £ Al & A 4,995,193 6,309,673
Reconciliation of reportable segment assets to total assets is as AEZmoBrEEHREEHRAT -
follows:
2014 2013
—F-OmFE —T=F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FHT
Total segment assets DEEEZE 140,002,777 132,222,602
Available-for-sale financial assets AT ENKEE 3,342,755 2,665,885
Deferred tax assets FEREFRIBE E 341,466 295,185
Total assets wEE 143,686,998 135,183,672

The Group primarily operates in Mainland China. All revenues for
the years ended 31st December 2014 and 2013 are from Mainland

China.

As at 31st December 2014 and 2013, all non-current assets are

located in Mainland China.

AREBTERPHEAELLER HE—
Z-—NMEKR_E—=F+-HA=1+—H

FE - FARSEBREFBEAMRE -

RZE—NWNEFEER_E—=ZFF+_A=+

—B FBERBEESMN T BEKE-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

fk 11 B 955 e 7 B R ()

6 LAND COSTS 6 THhEA
Land costs represent prepaid operating lease payments for hotel THAAREBEWERBRAEFEZEN
properties and self-use buildings. BT EFRIE o
Group
-
2014 2013
—E-NF —E—=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET TAT
At 1st January ®n—A—8” 1,928,700 1,528,998
Additions 3 1% 4,281 1,141
Transfer from completed properties for sale HEEAHEEE 2B ERDE 39,140 268
Transfer (to)/from properties under development B (ZF) ‘BRI HE ~
for sale BERPYER (20,152) 257,876
Transfer (to)/from investment properties B (R)/BREME (25,276) 130,981
Amortisation s (51,299) (43,864)
Exchange difference & X Z5E (6,365) 53,300
At 31st December R+=—_HA=+—H 1,869,029 1,928,700
In Mainland China, held on: RABARE ZRATHRAFES :
Land use rights of between 10 and 50 years N F10FEE504F 2 L4
15 /A # 1,865,784 1,925,359
In Hong Kong, held on: REE U TAREA
Leases of over 50 years 50F A E 2 A 3,245 3,341
1,869,029 1,928,700
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7 PROPERTIES AND EQUIPMENT 7 MEERRE
Group
#
Furniture
Construction- Hotel and office Motor
in-progress properties Buildings equipment  vehicles Total
TR
WAZE

ERIR BEMR B’F R AE nE
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HKS$000
TER TERT TER TEx TER TEZR

Year ended 31st BE-Z—mNF

December 2014 +=HA=+—-H

LEE

Opening net book amount  HA 7] B [ /5 & 1,092,643 2,110,153 729,343 150,675 22,549 4,105,363
Additions i 282,938 53,198 446 40,028 6,433 383,043
Transfer from completed #EE G HE 2

properties for sale BEKTE - - 51,385 - = 51,385
Transfer to investment ERENEYE

properties - - (13,245) — — (13,245)
Transfer to properties under & # %= a] (£ H & ~

development for sale BREPWE (290,476) - - - —  (290,476)
Depreciation neE —  (102,249) (18,463)  (31,935) (6,376) (159,023)
Transfer upon completion 5% T & £ (241,262) 233,268 - 7,994 - -
Disposals HE = - (103) (2,355) (513) (2,971)
Exchange difference M 5 =5 (3,239) (7,370) (2,477) (531) (77)  (13,694)
Closing net book amount B AR BR [ /5 (B 840,604 2,287,000 746,886 163,876 22,016 4,060,382
At 31st December 2014 R=ZT— &

tT=ZA=+-—-8
Cost [N 840,604 2,882,978 850,154 484,669 77,148 5,135,553
Less: Accumulated B REMITE
depreciation — (595,978) (103,268)  (320,793) (55,132) (1,075,171)

Net book amount REFE 840,604 2,287,000 746,886 163,876 22,016 4,060,382
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7 PROPERTIES AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 7 MERRZRHE@

Group
S
Furniture
Construction- Hotel and office Motor
in-progress  properties  Buildings  equipment vehicles Total
R AL 2
WRE

EEIRE BEEME BF B4 JHEL B
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000  HK$000 HK$000 — HK$'000
TET TET FTAET  TERT TET TAR

Year ended 31st BE-Z—-=%
December 2013 +=A=+—H
LFE
Opening net book amount  £A %] BR [ JF & 477,611 2,116,855 697,448 122,597 20,964 3,435,475
Additions i 529,133 27,767 — 52,632 6,449 615,981
Transfer from investment  EHE SR E W
properties — — 30,518 — — 30,518
Transfer from completed E&E B HE 2
properties for sale BRI 61,693 = = = = 61,693
Depreciation e = (99,632) (19,240) (28,469) (6,471) (152,812)
Disposals HE = = = (300) (66) (366)
Exchange difference (R 24,206 65,163 20,617 4,215 673 114,874
Closing net book amount £ 4% BR T % (& 1,092,643 2,110,163 729,343 150,675 22,549 4,105,363
At 31st December 2013 HA=ZZT— =4
+=-HA=+—-~H
Cost B AR 1,092,643 2,605,712 815,050 455,792 75,546 5,044,743
Less: Accumulated W REHITE
depreciation —  (495559) (85,707) (305,117)  (52,997) (939,380)
Net book amount 8RR E 1,092,643 2,110,153 729,343 150,675 22,549 4,105,363
Construction-in-progress mainly represents buildings and hotel FRIRBFTEENTERBFAZEFTRK
properties, which are intended to be held for the long-term. Al BIEMEE - B E TR A B K RE -
construction-in-progress is located in Mainland China on land held ARMABEBER-ZENEtEFE_F N —
under land use rights expiring from 2047 through 2061. Hotel FHRER THERERE < T B
properties are located in Mainland China on land held under land EMEMRFERE URARER=-"ZR
use rights expiring from 2052 through 2072. Buildings are located TEE_EL_FEMITMERER
in Mainland China on land held under land use rights expiring from Bz Eo BFMRFPBEARE  URIR
2037 through 2073. BR-_E=Z+tEE_T+t=FEHR2L

E AR R 2 L ko

BRERIRE

i
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 8 KREWE
Group
&=
2014 2013
—Z—-NF —E—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TFBT
Completed investment properties BEIENRIEE Y 10,075,171 6,402,707
Investment properties under development HRrOLEYE 15,399,242 16,112,333
25,474,413 22,515,040
Properties
Completed under
properties development
(Level 3) (Level 3) Total
=3:-22% 7 ES BRPYE
(£34%) (£ 34%) @t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET F#ET FHET
At 1st January 2014 RZZE—-—HF—H—H 6,402,707 16,112,333 22,515,040
Additions (including capitalisation of %73 (& 15 & A&t 5 &)
interest) 23,196 1,487,319 1,510,515
Transfer from land costs and EE A T AN A R
properties and equipment Y 38,521 — 38,521
Transfer from completed properties EREAAMHEE 2
for sale =R E7ES 267,714 = 267,714
Fair value gain on investment HEMERTE WS
properties 918,754 303,474 1,222,228
Transfer upon completion of W8 T 1% 8 5
construction 2,451,069 (2,451,069) —
Exchange difference 5 =5 (26,790) (52,815) (79,605)
At 31st December 2014 R-_ZT— M5
+—_A=+—8H 10,075,171 15,399,242 25,474,413
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

BEYZE m)

Properties
Completed under
properties development
(Level 3) (Level 3) Total
=R % ZES ERPYE
(EE38) (ZE38) S
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
THT FA&T FHT
At 1st January 2013 R—_ZE—=%—H—H 5,420,238 11,115,495 16,535,733
Acquisition of subsidiaries W B B B 2 ) - 4,046,199 4,046,199
Additions (including capitalisation i (BEEREFRR)
of interest) 133,809 1,097,774 1,231,583
Transfer to land costs and properties &% 1% Z= + #th 5 7R A &
and equipment EE L (161,499 - (161,499)
Transfer to properties under HRENHHE ZERES
development for sale E — (786,073) (786,073)
Transfer from completed properties 8 8 (5 ] (it & >~
for sale B E 513,265 - 518,265
Fair value gain on investment HEMERNFERZE
properties 311,318 229,288 540,606
Exchange difference PE 5 == 185,576 409,650 595,226
At 31st December 2013 MN-ZE—=4F
+—_A=+—8H 6,402,707 16,112,333 22,515,040

All investment properties are located in Mainland China on land
held under land use rights expiring from 2037 through 2058.

Valuation processes

For financial reporting purposes, the Group’s investment properties
were valued at 31st December 2014 by DTZ Debenham Tie Leung
Limited, a firm of independent qualified valuers, who hold
recognised relevant professional qualifications and have recent
experience in the locations and segments of the investment
properties valued.

The Group’s finance department reviews the valuations performed
by the independent valuers for financial reporting purposes and
discuss with the valuers regarding the valuation processes and
results. The finance department also verifies all major inputs to the
independent valuation report and assesses property valuation
movements when compared to prior year valuation report.

EREMEOUNPEANERLRE
BR-Z=+tFEZE_TANFHBER
Mt ERERSA L

fh{ER 2

RUPBREZH  AEENREMER
TN+ A=+—HEBUEE
RGEMARBRRITARARMGE &
BEABRFAEEBERBAIERER  LHA
(CRENIESE=E7/E L=0p: k- R bR it

AEEMEHFEARTBREB NOEHH
B BEMETHRE LTEZEFMHE
B h (4 (B R A2 S 45 RAETT 5T 7 o B TS B0 PT
NEEBLAERE M EEZH AR
B YREFFHRERSELREFEY
XHEZS -

BRERIRE

i
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Valuation techniques

Fair values of completed properties are generally derived using the
income capitalisation method. This valuation method is based on
the capitalisation of the net income and reversionary income
potential by adopting appropriate capitalisation rates, which are
derived from analysis of sale transactions and valuers’ interpretation
of prevailing investor requirements or expectations. The prevailing
market rents adopted in the valuation have reference to recent
lettings within the subject properties and other comparable
properties.

Fair values of properties under development are generally derived
using the residual method. This valuation method is essentially a
means of valuing the land by reference to its development potential
by deducting development costs together with developer’s profit
and risk from the estimated capital value of the proposed
development assuming the properties were completed as at the
date of valuation. The estimated capital value of the proposed
development is derived using the income capitalisation method as
mentioned above.

During the year, there were no changes to the valuation techniques.
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BEYZE m)

HER A
EERMENRTFE-—RABAERL
AR WMEETADNENRBERAEE
MERNELE X - B FBR R WA (LB
AT AER(C - T EARELL RTS8 18 35
EXGRAEMOTERREFENENX
HHEMBHE - EEEFRANRTHE
MeEIREZENEREMATLEYE
T ERERE

BRVAYWENRXIFE-—RUAFBER
HethBETEETEZRANZELHNER
BN EETHEN A A BES
EREB(BRVECRMEERZER) N
BT ERAEFRHRERRAAALERRA
MR R E R - BRI R W T EAE
BEBER EMBABERTEFE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 8 KREWXum
Significant unobservable inputs used to EETAFEFMBANEERATE
determine fair value HHYIE
Fair value
AFE Relationship of
31st December  31st December  Valuation Unobservable Range of unobservable inputs
Description 2014 2013 technique inputs unobservable inputs  to fair value
2@  —s-z& FAREHER
R +TZA=+-B +ZA=t+-H fEFE TUBEYE TUBEYEEE AFEHER
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THET
Office units 5,777,885 4,190,886 Income Prevailing market ~ RMB100-200/ sg.m./  The higher the
(completed) capitalisation rents month (2013: prevailing market
RMB95-130/sg.m./ rents, the higher
month) the fair value.
HEY/NES- WAERL BAamsHe BRABTARAARE BAmsHeH
(B%&M) 100LE200L (=8 & ATE#ER-
— =5 8BABYF
FRARBBLE
1307¢)
Capitalisation rate ~ 5.5%-6% p.a. (2013: The higher the
55% p.a.) capitalisation rate,
the lower the fair
value.
BARL % FF55%%E6% BRI ESS
(ZE—=%: AFEBE-
§FE55%)
Shopping malls 4,297,286 2,211,821 Income Prevailing market ~ RMB70-590/sg.m./ The higher the
(completed) capitalisation rents month prevailing market
(2013:RMB70-580/ rents, the higher
sg.m./month) the fair value.
BOES WAERLL BRam5HE BRABTARARYE BamarHitds
(B7&M) 0LE50T(ZF  AFEES-
~ZF:8A8T
FRARBIOLE
5807T)
Capitalisation rate ~ 5.5%-6.5% p.a. (2013:  The higher the

ERfbh®

LRIRE

5.5%-6.5% p.a.)

F£55%%26.5%( =
T-=-F:§F
5.5%%6.5%)

i

BRAF

capitalisation rate,
the lower the fair
value.
BRI MR -
AT EME -
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8

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Significant unobservable inputs used to

8 KBEWHEwuwm
BEEAYEMANEESRATSR

determine fair value (Continued) ZHE @®m
Fair value
NEE Relationship of
31st December  31st December  Valuation Unobservable Range of unobservable inputs
Description 2014 2013 technique inputs unobservable inputs  to fair value
“E-MmF —E-=f% TUBEYEH
R +T=ZA=t+-H +=A=t-H fEFHE TUBEYE TUBEYEBEE AFEHER
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET
Office units (under 5,828,590 6,575,938 Residual Prevailing market ~ RMB90-150/sg.m./ The higher the
development) rents month (2013: prevailing market
RMB90-180/sg.m./ rents, the higher
month) the fair value.
/NN Fgk Bamsie BRABTARAARE RiImEHEHES -
(ERH) WTEBOT(ZE ATEER-
—=F:BAGY
HARARBOTE
1807T)
Capitalisation rate 5.5%-6.5% p.a. (2013:  The higher the
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Estimated costs to
completion

fhEt T IR

Estimated
developer’s profit
and risk margins
(depending on
the progress of
development)

ERENGA
NN ACES
FREREME)

6%-6.5% p.a.)

F55%%6.5%( =
T-=F 5F6%
Z6.5%)

RMB4,100-9,800/sg.m.
(2013: RMB4,400-
9,100/sg.m.)

BERKAREAL100
TLEIBOTL(ZE
—ZF:FEHK
A R #4400 &
9,1007T)

5%-35% (2013:
5%-35%)

5%E35%(ZF — =
F 1 5%Z35%)

capitalisation rate,
the lower the fair
value.

B RS -
NEEBIE -

The higher the
estimated costs to
completion, the
lower the fair value.

et T IR AR
AFEBE -

The higher the
estimated
developer’s profit
and risk margins
the lower the fair
value.

ERENGETE
REE#HS A
TEBIE-
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Significant unobservable inputs used to

8 BEWMHwum
BEEAFEFMANEESRTH

determine fair value (Continued) ZHE @®m
Fair value
A¥E Relationship of
31st December  31st December  Valuation Unobservable Range of unobservable inputs
Description 2013 technique inputs unobservable inputs  to fair value
—E-IE —E-= TUBEYER
R +=ZA=+-R +=ZA=+-H #EFE TABEYE TOBEYBEE AFEHEE
HK$'000
TET
Shopping malls (under 9,570,652 9,536,395 Residual Prevailing market ~ RMB80-340/sg.m./ The higher the
development) rents month (2013: prevailing market
RMB80-350/sg.m./ rents, the higher
month) the fair value.
PREEM(BRTR) g Rimsie BRABTARARE RiOmEHEHES -
80T EMOL(ZE ATEESE-
—=F:-BA8Y
HRARBOTE
3507T)
Capitalisation rate ~ 5.5%-7% p.a. (2013: The higher the

N4

Estimated costs to
completion

fhEt T I A

Estimated
developer’s profit
and risk margins
(depending on
the progress of
development)

ERENGEA
R b (8
BRERME)

AN
=

LRIRE

6%-7% p.a.)

GE55%2T%(=F
—ZF BF6%E
7%)

RMB4,100-9,800/sg.m.
(2013: RMB4,400~
9,100/sg.m.)

FEHRAREKL100
T R80T (=%
—ZF:BFHXK
A R #4400 B
9,1007T)

5%-35% (2013:
5%-35%)

5%E35%(ZF — =
F 5% E35%)

i

BRAF

capitalisation rate,
the lower the fair
value.

BA RS
RFEBIE -

The higher the
estimated costs to
completion, the
lower the fair value.

st T IR AR -
AFEBE -

The higher the
estimated
developer’s profit
and risk margins ,
the lower the fair
value.

EREN G
REE#S A
TEBE-

“E-NFEER
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9 PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT 9 AHHEZREFIYE
FOR SALE
Group
5
2014 2013
—¥-mE  —F—=
HK$°000 HK$’'000
FHExT FET
Expected to be completed and available BEHEN T @A AR T
for sale within twelve months KAl E 9,077,767 15,281,424
Expected to be completed and available FEHERERT AR
for sale after more than twelve months WT RA S 41,664,672 39,840,632
50,742,439 55,122,056

All properties under development for sale are located in Mainland
China and are located on land held under land use rights expiring
from 2037 through 2081.

10 COMPLETED PROPERTIES FOR SALE 10

All completed properties for sale are located in Mainland China and
are located on land held under land use rights expiring from 2037
through 2078.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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11 GOODWILL 11 58
Group
&=
2014 2013
—F-mE  ZT=
HK$’000 HK$'000
FH& T T T
At 1st January w—H—H 42,528 41,237
Exchange difference N =5 (142) 1,291
At 31st December R+—_A=+—H 42,386 42,528
Cost 39N 55,147 615,685
Less: Accumulated impairment o REHRE (12,761) (12,805)
Net book amount R FE 42,386 42,528
Goodwill mainly relates to the property management segment. BHETEZHYEETESEEM -
12 SUBSIDIARIES 12 i B A 7]
(a) Investments in subsidiaries (@) RMBARZRE
Company
YN
2014 2013
—EF-IF —T=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T T
Unlisted shares, at cost ELETIRG IR AE 5,735,963 5,553,310
Due from subsidiaries FEU T B A B I8 16,419,497 17,377,038
22,155,460 22,930,348

Amounts due from subsidiaries are denominated in Renminbi,
unsecured, non-interest bearing and without pre-determined
repayment terms. The amounts are considered to be equity in

nature.

Details of the principal subsidiaries, which are unlisted, as at 31st

December 2014 are set out in Note 39.

KB AR RIBEAARKSIE &K
2B RAEBTEER
ZHEE KR SRS

w=

g
A

R - BRSE

—mME+A=+t—HBZEEHN

BAR(EXE W) FIEHNHES9 -

AN
=1

£

=

IREBARRA
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12 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(b) Material non-controlling interests

The total non-controlling interests as at 31st December 2014 was
HK$2,385,072,000 (2013: HK$2,411,207,000), of which
HK$2,188,148,000 (2013: HK$2,179,467,000) related to Believe
Best Investments Limited (“Believe Best Group”). Believe Best
Group is 80% owned by the Group and is principally engaged in
property development in Chaoyang District, Beijing, Mainland
China. The non-controlling interests in respect of the remaining
subsidiaries are not material individually.

Set out below are the summarised financial information of Believe
Best Group (Note: included fair value adjustments resulted from the
acquisition of Believe Best Group by the Group).

Summarised consolidated balance sheet

12 KB A & @

(b) EARFEFMEES

R—ZE—mWE+=—_BA=+—8: i
Hl M R 2 4 % 52,3885,072,000/8 TT
(=Z & — = 4 :2,411,207,000% 7T ) °
H f12,188,148,000%8 L (= & — =
2,179,467,000/% 7T) EBIE EKL E BR A A
((EEEEDEBE FEEEHASEE
B80%ER  EBNAFE KEL REEE
WEMERRE - BEEHHB QA M IEE
FIEEESETTERK -

12 52 4 0 B 45 2 64400 B2 8051020 F (B
B IE A R T B 2
AT EBE) -

REEERERER

Believe Best Group

FEHEEHE
2014 2013
—E-QmF —E=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTET T T
Assets B E
Non-current assets EREEE 69,138 47,349
Current assets TE)EE 26,076,723 20,479,965
Total assets EEE 26,145,861 20,527,314
Liabilities =N
Non-current liabilities ERBEE (11,712,957) (7,504,165)
Current liabilities mEaE (3,932,729) (2,560,191)
Total liabilities BERBTE (15,645,686) (10,064,356)
Net assets FEE 10,500,175 10,462,958
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12 SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 12 Bﬁ B AT ()
(b) Material non-controlling interests (Continued) (b) F| K I M R &= ()
Summarised consolidated statement of GEETHRARREE

comprehensive income

Believe Best Group

BFEE

2014 2013

—E-mF —T—=F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET TAT

Revenues Uz 1,003,907 3,355,499

Profit before taxation B %4 A1 4 A 303,028 1,041,288

Taxation BB (230,674) (337,600)
Profit for the year and total comprehensive FEGMNERFEE2EBALRE

income for the year 72,354 703,688

Total comprehensive income attributable to JEPE G| MRS RS 2
non-controlling interests ZE A B 14,471 140,738
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests R B T IR 12 ) 1 e 2R 2 AR B — 113,035
EHEEAREEERLAT —ZT—HEFH 173
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12 SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 12 Bﬁ% /N (&)
(b) Material non-controlling interests (Continued) (b) ERFEHMEER@®
Summarised consolidated cash flow statement SEHEREREE
Believe Best Group
EHEEE
2014 2013
—E-OF —E—=%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET AT
Cash flows from operating activities KEEHZHEESRE
Cash (used in)/generated from operations () / EE2RS (1,198,709) 325,375
Mainland China corporate income tax paid BT AKREEREMER (380,573) (337,429)
Mainland China land appreciation tax paid B 5 B K FE £ i 3 (E B (20,975) (36,629)
Net cash used in operating activities KESEBTR 2 IR %5 (1,600,257) (48,683)
Net cash used in investing activities KEESTRA 2R & F58 (13,317) (9,816)
Net cash from financing activities MEETHELECEEFE 2,036,221 315,394
Net increases in cash and cash equivalents HERREEZEM 2 EMNFRE 422,647 256,895
Cash and cash equivalents at 1st January R—HA—BZHRERELEEY 830,767 554,013
Exchange (loss)/gain on cash and cash HeReEEMZIER
equivalents (B518), W= (3,486) 19,859
Cash and cash equivalents at 31st December WKW+ —-A=+—HZ2E &
REE2EEY 1,249,928 830,767
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13 INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES 13 RBE QA 2RE
Group
-3
2014 2013
—F-mE ZT=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TBT
Share of net assets DIEFEE 158,290 158,257
Group
58
2014 2013
—E2-mEF —EF—=F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FAT
Share of profit/(loss) for the year and total DEFERF (BB &
comprehensive income/(loss) for the year FE2EKAS(EER)EE 564 (1,226)

Details of the associates, which are unlisted, as at 31st December
2014 are set out in Note 40. Details of capital commitment relating

R-ITZE-—ME+_A=+t—BZBER
A (Y& ™M) FBHNMF40 - BEXR

to the Group’s interests in associates are set out in Note 37(a). SERBERNREZNERNEKEZFHB
O M FE37(a)

14 INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES 14 REERRAZRE
2014 2013
—F-OmFE —FT=F
HK$’°000 HK$’000
FET THE T
Share of net assets DIRFEE 7,291,860 4,786,185
Advance to joint ventures BRTEERA 810,316 813,040
8,102,176 5,599,225

Set out below are the summarised financial information for Beijing
Dongfangwenhua International Properties Company Limited
(“BJDFWH?”) and Guangzhou Diyi Dyeing Factory Company Limited
(“GDDFCL"), which in the opinion of the Directors, are material joint
ventures of the Group. The Group holds 60.98% of the issued
share capital of BUDFWH, which has a piece of land for property
development in Dongcheng District, Beijing, Mainland China (known
as the “DFWH Project”), and holds 65% of the issued share capital
of GDDFCL, which has a piece of land for property development in
Haizhu District, Guangzhou, Guangdong Province, Mainland China.

TXEHIEEFRARUAEEBEENS
ERAERRAIXERREEXERAA
(TERRTXE]) REME — RERE R
RE([EME —RBR]) 0% E R8T
B AEBEFKAILRRTXNEDHITHRAN
M60.98% © M1t IR 77 X E R B B K
ERRPEEE —BLHEVERR L

RERIRATXERB] UKEEMNF
—RBERR D BITIRANHI656% -+ T EM E —

AEBRHBEREEREEMNEIREE
B-RBEIMIEMEER A -
SHERREEBERAA
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14 INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES

14 REERTAZ2RE

(Continued) (%)
Summarised balance sheets EEEBREE
BJDFWH GDDFCL
b mER T SCE E M 5 — Z AR
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-NEFE —T—=F =—ZB-NF —T—=4%
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’'000
TERT FET TET FET
Assets EE
Non-current assets EREEE 5,532,968 5,545,187 532 659
Current assets mEEE 3,504,932 1,872,219 7,481,944 4,998,215
Total assets BERE 9,037,900 7,417,406 7,482,476 4,998,874
Liabilities =N
Non-current liabilities EmBEE (4,223,249) (2,761,703) = —
Current liabilities RENAE (579,117) (527,603) (31,156) (14,955)
Total liabilities BiE@sE (4,802,366) (3,289,306) (31,156) (14,955)
Net assets SEEE 4,235,534 4,128,100 7,451,320 4,983,919

The DWFH Project owned by BJDFWH consists of two office
buildings and a musical hall. The Group is entitled to 100% interest
of the office building (South), 45% interest of the office building (North)
and none of the interest of the musical hall in the property

development project.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Er o WA 5 e A B RE (28)
14 INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES 14 AEEQTIZRE
(Continued) (%)
Reconciliation of the summarised financial information presented to 23N HBERNBMEBEEHAENS Z A T
the carrying amounts of their interests in the joint ventures are as MEZEREEHENT
follows:
BJDFWH GDDFCL
B
RRAE E—FER
Office Office
Building  Building  Musical
(South) (North) Hall Total Total
57 57
(78) (3t) SHE Fob Fohy
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHL FHL FHL FHIT FHIT
Year ended 31st December 2014 Z_—_Z— M &
+tZHA=+—-HLEE
Net assets at 1st January 2014 RZZE—NF—A—H
CREE 941,191 3,190,041 (3,132) 4,128,100 4,983,919
Capital injection e A% & - - - - 2,434,893
Post-acquisition results U B 18 2B (3,480) 137,962 (13,029) 121,453 85,865
Exchange difference [ X =5 (3,144) (10,907 32 (14,019) (53,357)
Net assets at 31st December 2014 R =ZF — [ 4F
+ = ﬂ +—H
ZBBE 934,567 3,317,096 (16,129) 4,235,534 7,451,320
(Note)
100% 45% —% 65%"#
Shared by the Group REE D15 934,567 1,492,693 — 2,427,260 4,843,358
Other costs/differences Hippk A,/ = 5 - (22,157) — (22,157) (5,030)
Interests in joint ventures REERAl 2R 934,567 1,470,536 — 2,405,103 4,838,328
Year ended 31st December 2013 Z=-ZF—=f
+-B=+-HLEE
Net assets at 1st January 2013 R—ZT—=%—HF—H
CFBEE 915,883 (8,375) 10) 912,498 4,804,865
Post-acquisition results R % & (3,321) 3,144,293 (3,077) 3,137,895 28,154
Exchange difference M E R 28,629 49,123 (45) 77,707 150,900
Net assets at 31st December 2013 R=—_Z—=F+_AH
= t+t—HZFEE 941,191 3,190,041 (3,132) 4,128,100 4,983,919
(Note)
100% 45% —% 47 346% %
Interests in joint ventures REERA 2R 941,191 1,435,518 — 2,376,709 2,359,686
Note: Hiat -
In June 2014, the Group further injected HK$2,434.9 million into GDDFCL in RZF—WFENA - A E BRI AR 5% [ B M

accordance with the shareholders’ agreement. The sharing ratio before and after

the capital injection was 47.346% and 65%, respectively.

B RBBE—
GIPSEE3:0ks)

BRERIRE

i

BRAF

WEE243M0B BB - RIEE
15t &R 5 Bl 5 47.346% % 65% ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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14 INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES 14 REERRAZRE
(Continued) (#8)
Summarised statements of comprehensive ZHBRABRRPE
income
BJDFWH GDDFCL
bR X E BN EE —
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-m{FE —ET—=F ZE-—NF T =F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FH& T TH& T FET BT
Revenues W25 331,361 230,127 — —
Fair value gain on investment ¥ & ¥ % A F &
properties Wz 10,836 4,108,652 - —
Profit before taxation & %5 B % 7] 166,279 4,204,545 115,947 39,150
Taxation i 18 (44,826) (1,066,650) (30,082) (10,996)
Profit for the year and total FERMEFEEZEA
comprehensive income for WA 4858
the year 121,453 3,137,895 85,865 28,154
Share by the Group of & B E (L FE % A
the profit for the year MFEEZEKRA
and the total comprehensive 42 %8
income for the year 36,406 1,411,611 55,812 13,330

The information above reflects the amounts presented in the
financial statements of the joint ventures, adjusted for differences in
accounting policies between the Group and the joint ventures.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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14 INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES 14 REERRAZRE
(Continued) (#&)
The Group has one remaining immaterial joint venture and the AREBEBEE—RBITEAHNALEAA M
Group’s share of result of the joint venture for the year ended 31st REEBRBEE T =K _Z—NFE
December 2013 and 2014 is as follows: +-A=+T—"HIEFESHZEZE QA
MFEEMT :
Group
58
2014 2013
—E-mEF —E—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHExT FBT
Loss for the year and total comprehensive FEEBEERFELE

loss for the year BB (1,195) (1,554)
Details of the joint ventures, which are unlisted, as at 31st RZZE—WF+_A=+—HZEEARQ
December 2014 are set out in Note 41. Details of capital ‘Mﬁlﬂim)ﬁ\ﬁFW?M°ﬁﬁ$
commitment relating to the Group’s interests in the joint ventures SEREGEERRIZEGMNERNEKEFE
are set out in Note 37(a). R 5E37() °

15 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL 15 JHHEMKEE
ASSETS
Group
£8
2014 2013
—E-mE —ET—=F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FE T
At 1st January EA —H—H 2,665,885 2,684,836
Fair value gain/(loss) recognised in equity $E$ﬁ NSO

(Note 26) Wz, ()Eﬁia) (K1 :£26) 686,941 (101,435)
Exchange difference ME = ZE (10,071) 82,484
At 31st December nt+—-_A=+—H 3,342,755 2,665,885
Unlisted securities: FE ET R 3’%

— Equity securities, Mainland China — RAFSH - B R 3,342,755 2,665,885
The investments represent 4.29% and 4.32% equity interests in ZEIRE M B ARE S B 4.29%
two financial institutions in Mainland China. $4.32% 7 B AR HE 2 o
The investments are denominated in Renminbi. HWETIAARBEE -

BRERIRE

i
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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16 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE

16 %’A$EE§@E§§UE—EZM

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS BE
Group
-3
2014 2013
—¥-mE  —F—=
HK$°000 HK$’'000
FET FE T
Listed securities: EmES:
— Equity securities, Hong Kong, at market value  — IRAZE % - &8 - EHE 13,227 11,764
Unlisted securities: JELEMES
— Equity securities, Mainland China — RAFES - BB RE 380 382
13,607 12,146

Changes in fair values of financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss are recorded in other income/gains, net, in the consolidated

income statement (Note 27).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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17 PREPAYMENTS FOR ACQUISITION OF 17

WA RIE BRI
LAND, PREPAYMENTS FOR BZANRERBEMSKE:
CONSTRUCTION WORK AND ReERHEMURBEE
PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
CURRENT ASSETS
Group Company
-3 A g
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-OF —T—=F ZZB-OF _—T—=F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’'000
THET FAT FET FH& T
Non-current R
Prepayments for acquisition U B + b 78 1 7 38 ()
of land (i) 134,852 135,305 — —
Prepayments for construction % :%k T2 2 78 1~
work (i) FXIA (i) 1,480,246 1,340,636 - =
Current mE
Prepayments for acquisition U B + b 78 1 7% 38 ()
of land (i) 10,241,218 10,273,666 — —
Other receivables (i) H fib & U KA (i) 282,317 177,838 - —
Deposits for acquisition of W s A HE 2 2
equity interests (iv) % (iv) 19,899 19,779 - —
Guarantee deposits EREE 74,790 75,042 = =
Prepayments for BRIEZEMNRIE
construction work 245,757 342,096 — —
Land tender deposits THRIFRE 63,382 63,595 — —
Prepaid sales taxes CERECR) 618,657 920,401 - —
Utility and other deposits NARBREMES 596,816 416,955 - —
Receivable from disposal of & —EME Q72
a subsidiary JE& W SRR = 101,728 = —
Others HAih 399,150 435,590 290 169
Prepayments, deposits and T8 « £ &
other current assets REMREEE 2,300,768 2,653,024 290 169
EERAREBERLDA ZT-MEFH 181



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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17 PREPAYMENTS FOR ACQUISITION OF
LAND, PREPAYMENTS FOR
CONSTRUCTION WORK AND
PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
CURRENT ASSETS (Continued)

)

(i)

Prepayments for acquisition of land represent advances
made for the acquisitions of land use rights in Beijing,
Shanghai, Guangzhou and Tianjin, Mainland China. Formal
land use right certificates have not yet been obtained as at
31st December 2014.

The balance includes an amount of approximately HK$4,754
million (2013: HK$4,770 million) for the land situated in
Chaoyang District, Beijing, Mainland China in connection with
the Group’s acquisition of 80% equity interest in Believe Best
Investments Limited, which, through its wholly owned
subsidiary, possesses the right to develop the Jing Run
Project on the land (see also Note 38(f)).

The balance also includes an amount of approximately
HK$4,312 milion (2013: HK$4,326 million) for the land
situated in Panyu District, Guangdong, Mainland China in
connection with the Group’s acquisition of 100% equity
interest in Panyu Zhujiang Real Estate Limited, which
possesses the right to develop the land (see also Note 38(g)).

Prepayments for acquisition of land for owner-occupied
properties are classified as non-current, whereas the
prepayments for acquisition of land for development for sale
are classified as current.

The prepayments for construction work under non-current
assets, relates to construction work to be performed by
Farrich Investments Limited, a related company, on a piece of
land situated in Tongzhou District, Beijing, Mainland China (see
also Note 38(g)).

Other receivables relate to the Group’s participation in “first
class” land development projects in Beijing and Huizhou,
Guangdong Province, Mainland China with fixed guaranteed
retumns based on various pre-determined percentages of
funds invested by the Group.

Other receivables are denominated in Renminbi. Their
carrying amounts approximate fair values.
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(i)

WLz AN RREEARFEAKR
iR B - BMRRZREL
MEREMELZBR - R_F—
ME+-_A=+—HB WAMEFLE
AL {E FHERE o

EHREEMA P B REL REAG R
2 10 3% 494,754,000,00078 7L (=& —
= 4 : 4,770,000,0007 7T ) * 7% i
DEAREBKEEERERBRATF
Z280%Em B Mz alEidE
2ENBRARFEEEREER
B < #EF (TF 55 2 B M3 38(f) °

ERRRIENBEAM NP R ARERER
% B B 2 #b ¥R 494,312,000,0007% JT
(ZZ— =4 : 4,326,000,0007% JT) -
ZWREREEBRBEERKRIE
WEABAR AR Z100% AR M
ZAREERRZ I ZFAEE (D
B2 MM E38e) °

RERYERBLMWENRES R
RIERE MAERZEAHFEENK
BIXHENRBMNSESRED -

IRHEEETEXTIRZEMK
HEEH—HEEARRERESR
BRA R fE — gz A B K PEdt R
MEztH FETHERRIEERH
(I EE 2B KT 5E38(g)) °

Hfth & W SRR B K SR B 2 B B K
EAREEREBMARZEEE
BRBEAKERMBRAESZERSL
B UHAE) 2Lt —RFAER
BB -

HEBKBEAARKEFE  KRE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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17 PREPAYMENTS FOR ACQUISITION OF 17 WL AN RE  -EFRT
LAND, PREPAYMENTS FOR BzRNRERBNRE
CONSTRUCTION WORK AND RERHMRBEE @
PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
CURRENT ASSETS (continued)

(v)  This represents deposits made to independent third parties vy UThERWE L SR REEE(E
for the acquisition of 100% equity interests in a few Mainland TEERAMELRENNER) ZE
China entities whose principal activities are property holding YR EREESMABLE=FEL 2
and development. The acquisitions were not yet completed Be RNR_E—NF+_/A=+—
as at 31st December 2014. B Y8 R TERK ©

18 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 18 FEURBR X
Accounts receivable mainly arise from sales of properties, and FEWBERTERWEEEUARRBEHREE
rendering of decoration and property management services. No B EBRBEL - BES T EMEE
credit terms were granted. B FR o
As at 31st December 2014, accounts receivable of approximately R-ZE—NE+-_A=+—H" FEl
HK$385,076,000 (2013: HK$406,179,000) were past due but not 8% X #7385,076,000/8 L (=& — = F :
impaired. These relate to a number of independent customers. 406,179,000/ o) B # i 18 R B B © 1tk

ENREZRBUEFAH -

The ageing analysis of accounts receivable (excluding those FEWEBER(EREEBERIN Z2BER DT a0

impaired) is as follows: T
Group
%
2014 2013
—E-@mE —_F—=

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET TAT

0 to 3 months 0Z 318 A 139,793 180,470

3 to 6 months 3£ 61E A 16,848 36,209

6 to 9 months 6= 91l A 20,024 57,798

9 to 12 months 9FE 12 A 22,326 29,081

Over 12 months HBiEi1218 A 186,085 102,621

385,076 406,179
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18 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued)

The carrying value of accounts receivable approximates their fair
values. The accounts receivable is related to a number of
independent customers, and are denominated in Renminbi.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is the carrying amount of
accounts receivable mentioned above.

In addition, as at 31st December 2014, accounts receivable of
approximately HK$110,472,000 (2013: HK$93,777,000) were past
due for over 12 months and impaired. These related to a number of
independent customers. The amount of the provision for
impairment was approximately HK$110,472,000 (2013:
HK$93,777,000).

Movements on the provision for impairment of accounts receivable
are as follows:

18 EWERF @)

EWEERZ REERERAFERE - B
RREZERBYRPABLAARES
& -

AEBEHEBZEANEERR S LA
W R R 2 R E{E -

o RZE—NNF+_A=+—H" &
I BR 3 #49110,472,000/8 T (—ZF — =& :
93,777,000/ 7T) B @ H B B+ = & A 3
ERE - WEREERLEZBFIRFLHM -
1B B £ 58 A 49110,472,000/8 T (=&
— =4F : 93,777,000 7T) °

EUBRRRERBZESHWT

Group
-
2014 2013
—EF-MIF ==

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FE T TAET

At 1st January w—H—H 93,777 69,138
Provision recognised in the consolidated income 42 & Wiz &= M E R

statement 7 B 17,038 22,128

Exchange difference i 5 =28 (343) 2,511

At 31st December R+=-_HA=+—H 110,472 93,777

19 PLEDGED/CHARGED BANK DEPOSITS 19

AND CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS H REEEY
Group Company
-3 A
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-mE == —E-mE "=
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FE T FET THET FAET
Cash at bank and on hand RITRFHEIRE 6,710,477 6,578,807 180,842 8,631
Short-term bank deposits 5 ERITIF 50 50 — —
6,710,527 6,578,857 180,842 8,631
Less: pledged/charged bank & : & ## #02

deposits RAITIF K (1,228,534) (1,189,562) — —
Cash and cash equivalents R4 RIREEEY 5,486,993 5,389,295 180,842 8,631
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19 PLEDGED/CHARGED BANK DEPOSITS 19 EEHR HAERBITERUAR
AND CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS RBeRATEEY w
(Continued)

As at 31st December 2014, the Group’s pledged/charged bank R-E—MNME+-_A=+—H8B KX&EFZ
deposits mainly represented deposits charged by certain banks in A ORI ERTITERRDEARAT
respect of the granting of banking facilities and the processing of HTHERT UWERLEBETEERBITERERE
mortgage facilities granted by the banks to buyers of the Group’s BERAEEMEERR FIKIBEER -
properties.
As required by the PRC State-Owned Land and Resource Bureau, icg an TERBERE BTWEZDR
certain property development subsidiaries are required to place in BB AR ERIETHERTFPFAFEATEE
designated bank accounts certain amount of pre-sale proceeds to FrEMEo B (EAEEREBEMENE
finance construction of the related properties. As at 31st December S R-_E—NEFE+_A=+—H L
2014, cash and cash equivalents include pre-sale proceeds of EESEEBYEHEERETHRITEON
HK$821,990,000 (2013: HK$2,651,595,000) placed in designated T8 & FT15 338 821,990,000 T (=& — =
bank accounts. F 1 2,651,595,0008 7T) ©
Pledged/charged bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents are BEEF RERTERUARREEBEEE
denominated in the following currencies: BT EEZE :
Group Company
&= A
2014 2013 2014 2013
ZE-MmFE —T-=F ZB-QNFE —T-—=F
HK$’000 HK$ 000 HK$’000 HK$’'000
FExT FET THERT FAET
Renminbi AR 6,398,813 6,207,140 - —
Hong Kong dollar BT 71,603 322,619 3,515 8,575
US dollar =i 240,111 49,098 177,327 56
6,710,527 6,578,857 180,842 8,631
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20 LAND COST PAYABLE 20 FEAY LR A
Group
%
2014 2013
—F-IF ==
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET F#& T
Land cost payable & < £ Bk AR 150,044 594,753
Less: Amount due within one year included B EFAREBAEAR
in current liabilities —FANEEZEH (88,832) (633,335)
61,212 61,418
Land cost payable is denominated in Renminbi. Their carrying TR AN UAARESE  RABEAD
amounts approximate fair values. FERE -
=h
21 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 21 ERERR
Ageing analysis of accounts payable (including amounts due to ENERRZEEDIT(BERENTEER
related companies of trade in nature) is as follows: ABNRZMEZERFMT
Group
*®
2014 2013
—F-mE ZT=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
0 to 3 months 0ZE31E A 2,659,465 2,392,577
3 to 6 months 3ZE61E A 888,366 2,112,093
6 to 9 months 6Z 91 A 1,092,323 367,539
9 to 12 months 9ZF 121& A 556,557 239,375
Over 12 months BB 121E A 3,549,744 2,616,984
8,746,455 7,728,568
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE (Continued)

As at 31st December 2014, approximately HK$707,658,000 (2013:
HK$726,954,000) of accounts payable were due to certain related
companies in respect of property construction (Note 38(b)).

Accounts payable are denominated in Renminbi. The carrying value
of accounts payable approximate their fair values.

fk 11 B 955 e 7 B R ()

21 EFERAR @)

RZEBE—NME+-_A=+—8  EREE
XA 49707,658,00008 ;T (= T — = F ¢
726,954,000 70) AL M EREREMNE T
BE A ) 2 BR 3k (MY #E38(0)) °

ENEAAARESE - BNERKZER
BEEREQXFERE -

BORROWINGS 22 58
2014 2013
—E-mEF —E2—=
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FB T
Non-current IE 7 B
Bank and financial institution borrowings RIT U B EEEE 32,140,081 25,314,409
Senior notes BrEERE 4,607,387 4,586,251
36,747,468 29,900,660
Current mEh
Bank and financial institution borrowings RITRMBKEERE 12,638,362 9,472,831
49,385,830 39,373,491

In January 2011, the Company issued 11.75% senior notes with an
aggregate nominal value of US$300,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$2,340,000,000) for a total consideration of
approximately HK$2,340,000,000. The senior notes mature in five
years (January 2016) and are repayable at their nominal value of
US$300,000,000. The Company is entitled at its option to redeem
all or a portion of the senior notes at the redemption prices
specified in the offering circular, plus accrued and unpaid interests
to the redemption date, subject to the terms and conditions
specified in the offering circular.

In January 2013, the Company issued 9.875% senior notes with an
aggregate nominal value of US$300,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$2,327,000,000) for a total consideration of
approximately HK$2,327,000,000. The senior notes mature in five
years (January 2018) and are repayable at their nominal value of
US$300,000,000. The Company is entitled at its option to redeem
all or a portion of the senior notes at the redemption prices
specified in the offering circular, plus accrued and unpaid interests
to the redemption date, subject to the terms and conditions
specified in the offering circular.

R-E——F—F KRR ZETAAEE
300,000,000 3 7T (8 & 7 #J2,340,000,000
BL)ZNBEEBLEEE BREHAE
2,340,000,000/8 7t > B X ZHE R A F &
(ZE—X"EF—A)EH wEERERE
300,000,000 JL1E & » A D Al #5 A i #
BRBEBRAFIAZEREN EEZ
FER HEEN KA 2 F B)E | 2 55k
HABERE WX EEBERAEIHZE
KA FTHRBR ©

R-ZE—=F—F  ARAREBTLEEREZE
300,000,000 3 7T (8 & 7 #72,327,000,000
BIL) Z98TEERBERE  BRENA
2,327,000,000/ 8 L B E ZHE R A F &
(ZZ—N\F— A3 Y EREEE
300,000,000 JL B8 - XA Al 1 A #E 2
BREEEBRAAZELE(N LEES
BEOREEMEARMNZHE)ER 2K
A BERE  EEEBRATIAZIK
K IAE PR ©

BEARE

i
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22 BORROWINGS (Continued)

The senior notes recognised in the balance sheet are as follows:

22 BE @

REERBERERAZELEZRET

Group and Company

£EEAF

2014 2013

—F-HmEFE ZT=F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FAT

At 1st January ®n—H—H 4,586,251 2,292,369
Addition, net of issue costs i MR BTN = 2,277,669
Amortisation of issue costs B AN 1T RN 19,708 16,772
Exchange difference b 5 =58 1,428 (559)

At 31st December RN+=—HA=+—H 4,607,387 4,586,251

The senior notes are jointly and severally guaranteed by certain
subsidiaries and are secured by the share capital of the
subsidiaries. As at 31st December 2014, the net assets of these
subsidiaries amounted to approximately HK$11,123,635,000 (2013:

HK$10,660,492,000).

The maturity analysis of the borrowings is as follows:

BAREBERE THEBRR LR RMER R
HER LIAME R B ZBAEER R

—E-—PmNE+—A=+—H"

o

ZEHBA

Al BEFEAA11,123,635,000/8 7T (=

= f—

EEZEBOWET

©10,660,492,0007% 7T ) °

Bank and financial

institution borrowings Senior notes Total

BITRMBREES BARE @zt
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
“E-NEF —E-=F ZB-Nf —T-=F “E-NF —T-=F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
THR TR TR TR TR TR
Within one year —FR 12,638,362 | 9,472,831 - — 112,638,362 | 9,472,831
Between one and two years —FEMER 11,790,754 | 9,839,818 | 2,313,585 — 114,104,339 | 9,839,818
Between two and five years MEEZAFR 12,898,569 | 15,068,271 | 2,293,802 | 4,586,251 | 15,192,371 | 19,654,522
Over five years BAAE 7,450,758 406,320 - — | 7,450,758 406,320
44,778,443 | 34,787,240 | 4,607,387 | 4,586,251 | 49,385,830 | 39,373,491
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The borrowings are denominated in the following currencies and
with the following respective weighted average effective interest

22 BORROWINGS (Continued)

22 & E @)

EEATIEEREMRIZTIEER
MAEFHF RS

rates:
2014 2013
—E-lE —E—=fF
Effective Effective
HK$000 interest rate HK$’'000 interest rate
THET BERRI=E FET B =
Renminbi AR
— Bank and financial — IRIT RIS
institution borrowings gTE 43,175,590 7.69% 33,802,321 8.35%
US dollar ETT
— Senior notes —EBARE 4,607,387 11.39% 4,586,251 11.39%
— Bank borrowings —RITEE 1,111,683 1.82% 372,221 2.25%
HK dollar & T
— Bank borrowings —RITEE 491,170 2.65% 612,698 2.68%
49,385,830 39,373,491
The carrying amounts and the fair values of the borrowings are as BEZEEERAFENT :
follows:
Carrying amount Fair values
IRMEE AFE
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-MF —E—=fF —E-MmEF —E—=fF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
TE T FAT TET TAT
Bank and financial institution ~ $R 77 % Bf 7 4 (& &
borrowings 44,778,443 34,787,240 44,654,027 34,875,637
Senior notes BHLERE 4,607,387 4,586,251 4,491,807 4,796,694
49,385,830 39,373,491 49,145,834 39,672,331
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22 BORROWINGS (Continued)

The fair values of the bank and financial institution borrowings are
based on cash flows discounted using the Group’s average
borrowings rates of 2.2% to 9.0% per annum as at the year end
date (20183: 2.6% to 8.0% per annum), depending on the currency
of the borrowings. The fair values of the senior notes are based on
the market price as at the year end date.

As at 31st December 2014, the Group’s bank and financial
institution borrowings were secured by:

(i)

(iv)

(vii)

(viil

the Group’s land (prepaid operating lease payments for hotel
properties and self-use buildings) of approximately
HK$156,631,000 (2013: HK$345,996,000);

the Group’s hotel properties of approximately
HK$1,744,076,000 (2013: HK$1,888,648,000);

the Group’s properties under development for
sale of approximately HK$16,075,364,000 (2013:
HK$11,140,360,000);

the Group’s completed properties for sale of approximately

HK$6,240,264,000 (2013: HK$6,077,976,000);

the Group’s investment properties of approximately
HK$11,543,739,000 (2013: HK$10,034,699,000);

the Group’s available-for-sale financial assets of
approximately HK$3,179,577,000 (2013: HK$2,665,885,000);

the Group’s bank deposits of approximately
HK$1,144,675,000 (2013: HK$686,822,000); and

the Group’s equity interests in subsidiaries with net assets of
approximately HK$439,188,000 (2013: nil).
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(i)

(i)

(v)

(vi)

(vil)

(viil

N £ B %9156,631,0008 T (= & —
= 4F : 345,996,00078 7T ) 2 £ #1 CE
EVMEXRBAEFZEMNKERAE
FKIA)

7N &= [ 491,744,076,0007 75 (Z & —
=4 :1,888,648,000/8 JT) Z B J&5 ¥
3N

7N £ E 4916,075,364,00058 T (= &
— = 4 : 11,140,360,000/%& T ) Z A
HEEZEREPYE:

AN £ B 496,240,264,00078 7T (ZF —
=4 : 6,077,976,000/8 T ) Z A £
EZEEKDE

N £ @ #911,543,739,00078 T (= &
— = 4 : 10,034,699,000/% T ) Z #&
B

7N 2 B 493,179,577,00058 7T (= & —
=4 : 2,665,885,00078 JT) Z A f H
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AN £ B 491,144,675,00078 T (ZF —
= % : 686,822,000/ T ) Z iR 1T 1F
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23 DEFERRED INCOME TAX 23 EEFMBH
Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset when there ELEBRBEERELEHRBAEERE AR
is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against REEERABRIEBAES S A &
current tax liabilites and when the deferred income taxes relate to TN EREEREEMGHER —
the same tax authority. The offset amounts are as follows: HMIEKEAE e K- KiEe s
wmR
Group
5
2014 2013
—Z-NF —E—=F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHExT FBT
Deferred tax assets: EERTEE E -

— Deferred tax assets to be recovered after —#BRTZ@AR%KKE
more than twelve months FEIEFRIBEE 265,339 226,692

— Deferred tax assets to be recovered — R+ @EARKE >
within twelve months IR AT I B B 76,127 68,493
341,466 295,185

Deferred tax liabilities: FEEFIBE E

— Deferred tax liabilities to be realised after —ERt+_EABBEER 2
more than twelve months FEEFRIA G E (5,436,096) (5,156,198)

— Deferred tax liabilities to be realised —EBR+_EARERZ
within twelve months BEFIEAE (364,470) (661,813)
(5,800,566) (5,718,011)
(5,459,100) (5,422,826)
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23 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued) 23 B Fr 15 B

The net movements in deferred taxation are as follows: REFIEFESHWT ¢

Group
£8
2014 2013
—E-mF —E—=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FE T FHT
Assets/(liabilities) BE/(af)
At 1st January EA —A—A (5,422,826) (5,248,753)
Recognised in the consolidated income AR S B RRIER
statement (Note 31) ( Hfat31) (89,147) (39,600)
Reclassification from current tax liabilities BERHMHMIBEREEN S (71,566) -
(Credited directly to)/released directly from (EEFTA)/BEEBEBR AR
equity (Note 26) (K17E26)
— Fair value (gain)/loss on available-for-sale —AEHEENEEEZ
financial assets NFE () EE (171,735) 25,359
— Assets revaluation reserve realised upon —HEFELEMESTET
disposal of properties held for sale CEEEHREE 277,936 4,690
Exchange difference PE 5 =58 18,238 (164,522)
At 31st December R+-_A=+—8H (5,459,100) (5,422,826)

The movements in deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities,
without taking into consideration the offsetting of balances within

the same tax jurisdiction, are as follows:
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&5 B R B RE (A
23 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued) 23 RERMEBH @)
Deferred tax liabilities REFREBEEE
Withholding
income tax on
undistributed Revaluation
profits surplus Total
KBRS
A Z T
FRiSHL BEfER st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FAT FAT FAT
At 1st January 2013 Rn=—Z—=F—HF—H — (5,548,087) (5,548,087)
Recognised in the RirE B R IER
consolidated income statement — (26,286) (26,286)
Released directly from equity, net H EZf#k B s — 30,049 30,049
Exchange difference fEH =58 — (173,687) (173,687)
At 31st December 2013 W-—ZT—=F+=-B=+—A — (5,718,011) (5,718,011)
Recognised in the REREIEERIER
consolidated income statement (1,820) (134,675) (136,495)
Reclassification from BARERIBEEEN S
current tax liabilities (71,566) — (71,566)
Released directly from equity, net E#EfRER BHEzs © 5458 = 106,201 106,201
Exchange difference FEH =58 123 19,182 19,305
At 31st December 2014 RZZ—WMFE+=—A=+—H (73,2693) (5,727,3083) (5,800,566)
Deferred tax assets EEHEEE
Tax losses
BEE A
2014 2013
—E-ImF —E=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET TAT
At 1st January ®—H—H 295,185 299,334
Recognised in the consolidated income statement 4R & 18 2 2k FE 4 47,348 (13,314)
Exchange difference M5 =5 (1,067) 9,165
At 31st December R+t-—A=+—H 341,466 295,185
The recognised deferred tax assets relate to tax losses of #91,365,864,000% T( = & — = F:
approximately HK$1,365,864,000 (2013: HK$1,180,740,000), 1,180,740,00078 7T) Z & ﬁE A8 BT 18 e
which are expiring from 2015 through 2019. BrZEERBEEERR T —RHFEZ
T NFHFE®M -
EHEAREEABRAT —ZT—NFEFH 193



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Aok 1 B 955 e % B R (4

23

24

DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

Deferred tax assets (Continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax loss carried forward to
the extent that the realisation of the related tax benefit through
future taxable profits is probable. As at 31st December 2014, the
Group did not recognise deferred tax assets of approximately
HK$347,413,000 (2013: HK$349,630,000) in respect of tax losses
amounting to approximately HK$1,684,627,000 (2013:
HK$1,711,551,000).

As at 31st December 2014, deferred tax liabilities of
HK$1,674,570,000 (2013: HK$1,502,866,000) was not recognised
in respect of withholding tax on the unremitted earnings of certain
subsidiaries in Mainland China, as these earnings are expected to
be reinvested.

CURRENT TAX LIABILITIES

Current tax liabilities mainly represent payable for Mainland China
corporate income tax, Mainland China land appreciation tax and
Mainland China withholding income tax.
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25 SHARE CAPITAL 25 B

Number of

ordinary
shares Par value
TEREB HE
000 HK$'000
T FET
At 1st January 2013 R—_ZE—=%—H—H 1,736,003 173,600
Issue of shares TR D 523,247 52,325
Repurchase of own shares AR (13,884) (1,388)

At 31st December 2013 and R-_E—=%+-_HA=+—"HBRK

1st January 2014 —E—mFE—H—H 2,245,366 224,537
Repurchase of own shares BEEAR S &G (1,450) (145)
At 31st December 2014 R-ZE—NME+=-_HA=+—H 2,243,916 224,392

The total authorised number of ordinary shares is 3,000,000,000

E A A% 42 2 4 3,000,000,0000% (= =

shares (2013: 3,000,000,000 shares), with a par value of HK$0.1
per share (2013: HK$0.1 per share). All issued shares are fully paid.

During the year ended 31st December 2014, the Company
repurchased 1,450,000 shares (2013: 13,884,000 shares) for
approximately HK$10,786,000 (2013: HK$128,976,000). These
shares were subsequently cancelled.

— =4 : 3,000,000,000 % ) & f% E &0.1 78
T(ZE—=F: FREMBEC1EIL) 2K
BeFTBEEERTROHEBRERIK -

HE-_Z-—-NF+=-_A=+—HLHF
[ AN A B B 1\1,450,0000% % 45 ( =
T — = £ :13,884,000/% A% 19 ) K B
43 £10,786,000%8 o( = & — = &
128,976,000 L) - 2 EWR M E R E & FF

BRERIRE
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26 RESERVES 26 f#E
Group
&
Assets  Currency
Share  Statutory revaluation translation  Retained
premium  reserve () reserve (i) differences earnings Total
BEEMM EWER
RPEE EERED 1o 48 (i) E8  REEA @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FTHET FTHET FTHET TAEL FTAEL
For the year ended BE-E-Dmf
31st December 2014 T-A=T—-HLEE
Balance at 1st January 2014 RZZ—NF
—HA—Bz#&#% 15,941,244 161,117 1,072,634 6,904,380 28,442,067 52,521,442
Profit for the year FE R = = — — 2,947,301 2,947,301
Currency translation differences ERERZS - - - (291,969 - (291,969)
Repurchase of own shares BEA T KRR (10,146) - - - (495)  (10,641)
Fair value gain on available-for-sale [t HEBBEE 2
financial assets NFEYE - - 686,941 - = 686,941
Realised upon disposal of properties & % /£ 1 & 1) £ &
held for sale 3] - - (583,301) - - (583,301)
Deferred tax REREA - - 106,201 - - 106,201
Balance at 31st December 2014 ~ R ZZ—F
+ZRA=+—HBZ#% |15931,098 161,117 1,282,475 6,612,411 31,388,873 55,375,974
For the year ended HZ-8-=
31st December 2013 +t-A=+-HLEE
Balance at 1st January 2013 RZE—=
—R—B2&% 10,696,915 161,117 1,153,863 5,375,390 24,626,904 42,014,189
Profit for the year EEHEF = = - — 3,852,073 3,852,073
Currency translation differences EHIE N T - - — 1,528,990 — 1,528,990
Repurchase of own shares FBEAZ KR (90,678) - = = (36,910)  (127,588)
Issue of shares TIIRG 5,335,007 - - - — 5,335,007
Fair value loss on available-for-sale A ft & BT & E 2
financial assets AEEEE = —  (101,435) = —  (101,435)
Realised upon disposal of properties & ¥ £ 1 & ¥ E §
held for sale b — — (9,843) — — (9,843)
Deferred tax ELERHE - — 30,049 — = 30,049
Balance at 31st December 2013 R =ZE—=F
+tZA=+—Hz&H 15941244 161,117 1,072,634 6,904,380 28,442,067 52,521,442
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26 RESERVES (Continued)

26 f# 4 @

Company
AF
(Accumulated
Currency losses)/
Share translation retained
premium differences earnings Total
EMER (RiTER)
% 17 53 B =8 RE & F ot
HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000
FAT FAT FHTT FAT
For the year ended BE-Z—N0N&E
31st December 2014 +ZA=+—BLEE
Balance at st January 2014 R =ZF— 4
— A — Bz & 15,941,244 2,295,116 (349,856) 17,886,504
Loss for the year FEBE = = (552,804) (552,804)
Currency translation differences & ¥ [& i, = %8 - (59,648) = (59,648)
Repurchase of own shares A E RN (10,146) - (495) (10,641)
Balance at RZE—HF
31st December 2014 +ZA=+—B2z#&% | 15931,098 2,235,468 (903,155) 17,263,411
For the year ended BEz-—2—=
31st December 2013 +=-—BA=1+—HLFE
Balance at 1st January 2018 R Z-ZZE—=4%F
—A—Bz#&& 10,696,915 1,831,311 122,903 12,651,129
Loss for the year FEBAE = = (435,849) (435,849)
Currency translation differences & ¥ [& 5, = %8 — 463,805 — 463,805
Repurchase of own shares ANy (90,678) - (36,910) (127,588)
Issue of shares BTG 5,335,007 — — 5,335,007
Balance at R-E—=%F
31st December 2013 +TZA=+—RHZz&% 15941244 2,295,116 (349,856) 17,886,504
Notes: Bt ez -

(i) As stipulated by regulations in Mainland China, the Company’s
subsidiaries established and operated in Mainland China are required to
appropriate a portion of their after-tax profit (after offsetting prior year
losses) to the statutory reserves and enterprise expansion fund, at rates
determined by their respective boards of directors. The statutory reserves
can be utilised to offset prior year losses or be utilised for the issuance of
bonus shares, whilst the enterprise expansion fund can be utilised for the
development of business operations. When the statutory reserves reaches
an amount equal to 50% of the registered capital of the respective
subsidiaries, further appropriation needs not be made.

0

BRPBEKREERMAETNA  NRARHE
REKRZREEZHMEARRSEBRB%
mAM GRS BT FEERR) P — %
DEAERBREXERES XA
REERET AEMBIRAFEEHBE
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SRR BIERRER - BEAERBEDE
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26 RESERVES (Continued) 26 ﬁ"ﬁ(ﬁfé)

Notes: (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Assets revaluation reserve represents revaluation reserve of available-for-
sale financial assets, and the balance of fair value gain in respect of the
69.5% interest in Guangzhou Zhujiang Qiaodu Real Estate Limited
(“GZQREL”) (see (iii) below).

Upon completion of the acquisition of Guangzhou Nonggongshang
Construction and Development Company Limited in 2007, GZQREL
became a subsidiary of the Group. The fair value gain in respect of the
69.5% interest in GZQREL previously held by the Group (as a joint
venture) of approximately HK$2,180,096,000, net of tax, was credited to
an asset revaluation reserve directly in equity.

Subsequent sales of the properties developed by GZQREL are regarded
as partial disposal of the business of GZQREL and accordingly the related
portion of the asset revaluation reserve is released to the consolidated
income statement. As at 31st December 2014, the asset revaluation
reserve relating to GZQREL amounted to approximately
HK$1,060,781,000 (2013: HK$1,366,146,000).

Wi

(i

(i)

(%)

EEEHFEEREIHEEVEEEZE
HEE REMNKIGBEFSHLEEFR AR
([E#5])69.5% s A FEW S BT 2 S
(2 51 i) ©

RZZETZLtFEZRRBEMNTREIASE
ERELAEAREK BEXALEEZH
BAR - AKBEANBERBE(EAE—M
& & ARl BE95%HE = 2 A T B M &= 4
2,180,096,000% L (E B IE) EHE &
R ABESGHHE-

TREEHBHERAEZDERALER
WD XK BEEEGHREBEZBEBILS
AhBAGAEERR R —WF +
—A=t+-—B EHBHNEEEMRFHE
& #1,060,781,0007%8 L( = & — = F:
1,366,146,00058 7T) °

27 OTHER INCOME/GAINS, NET 27 Htplg A "Wz - B
2014 2013
—E-NmF —E—=%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FB T
Dividend income from f& B WA K B
— available-for-sale financial assets — AR EMBEE
(unlisted securities) (GE E &%) 179,528 138,213
— financial assets at fair value through profit —BAFEBBIERIEZ
or loss (listed securities) BB EE(EMES) 422 463
Government grants BT #5 B 1,482 9,667
Fair value gain/(loss) on financial assets at fair ERAVTEEBRERYERY
value through profit or loss WMBEEZATFE
Wz (E18) 1,462 (1,414)
Net exchange (loss)/gain PE X (B518) Wz F 58 (45,572) 136,919
137,322 283,848
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28 EXPENSES BY NATURE 28 BMEE S ZHX

X BREEXNA - HEMRTEHERE

Expenses included in cost of sales, selling and marketing expenses

and general and administrative expenses are analysed as follows: A UAR—RETHRER: 28T :
2014 2013
—g-mE Z—T=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FE T THT
Advertising and promotion costs EERHEERX 175,892 327,529
Amortisation of land costs + b Ak AN 2 Y 51,299 43,864
Auditor’s remuneration % EEN BN & 6,055 5,955
Cost of completed properties sold & BRI 2 AR 10,566,578 8,642,108
Depreciation of properties and equipment MENKREITE 159,023 152,812
Direct operating expenses arising from AT ENEEEZ
investment properties that HEELERE
— generate rental income —EAES KA 75,513 67,717
— did not generate rental income —WEELERS KA 14,440 30,353
Employees’ benefits costs (including EBERAXNAN(BREEEHE)

Directors’ emoluments) (Note 29) (KtiE29) 1,030,881 877,040
LLoss on disposals of properties and equipment HEMENKREERE 2,971 366
Operating lease rental in respect of premises MEZKEHERS 44,499 42160
Provision for impairment of accounts receivable & Uk BE 57 30 18 5 17,038 22,128

29 EMPLOYEES’ BENEFITS COSTS 29 {& B8 A R A
(INCLUDING DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS) (BEEEMHS)
2014 2013
—E-mF —E—=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHT
Salaries and allowances e MoERL 758,018 599,788
Sales commission and bonus HEME RIEA 115,516 158,673
Pension costs S NN
— Defined contribution plans — FREMHFEE 157,371 118,549
— (Write back of provision for)/provision for — EHRE S (B#), #E
long-service payment (24) 30
1,030,881 877,040
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29 EMPLOYEES’ BENEFITS COSTS 29 E B/ A KA

(INCLUDING DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS)

(Continued)

(@) Pensions — Defined contribution plans

The Group has arranged its Hong Kong employees to join the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“the MPF Scheme”), a defined
contribution scheme managed by an independent trustee. Under
the MPF scheme, each of the Group (the employer) and its
employees make monthly contributions to the scheme at 5% of the
employees’ earnings as defined under the Mandatory Provident
Fund legislation. The monthly contributions of each of the employer
and employees are subject to a cap of HK$1,250 from 1st June
2012 to 31st May 2014 and HK$1,500 from 1st June 2014 to 31st
December 2014, and thereafter contributions are voluntary.

As stipulated by rules and regulations in Mainland China, the Group
contributes to state-sponsored retirement plans for its employees
in Mainland China. The Group’s employees make monthly
contributions to the plans at approximately 8% of the income
(comprising salaries, allowances and bonus), while the Group
contributes 12% to 22% of such income and has no further
obligations for the actual payment of pensions beyond the
contributions. The state-sponsored retirement plans are responsible
for the entire pension obligations payable to retired employees.

200 Hopson Development Holdings Limited Annual Report 2014

(BREENE)
()

(a) Bk — ERHEKFE

AEBERERERELHRE —THA
—(UBYEREAETE 2 FREERE A
anlEABeFE([RESATED - RE
wESE  AKE(EE)REEESH
BIEBFHIMELABEEMNIRA TS BEZ
EEBWAZS%MZAEEEAHR. &
FREESEMEZBAHERZ ERRK
—E-—_—FAA—HE-_Z—NWEHA
=+—HBA12508 L ME=-Z—WF
ANA—BE_Z—mOF+-_A=+—H
Al 21,5008 0 2R ER 2 HRAE A
FAMEE o

BIRPBREZRAUNEERARE A&
BRERPEAEZREREREE —(HhE
REPZENRGFE - AEEREEARE
WA(BREH T 2R RIEA) X18% % 5t
EERET AREURZFERA12%E
22%VEH R - BRELE TN AEEY
BHEMHERERARSNRET BEXEY
ZERAEBEAEXNERRBE ZZHER
(NG



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

fk 11 B 955 e 7 B R ()

29 EMPLOYEES’ BENEFITS COSTS 29 & & & A R A&
(INCLUDING DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS) (BREEEMS)
(

(Continued)

(b) Directors’ emoluments b) EXEME
The remuneration of each director for the year ended 31st HE-_ZEZE-—-WNWE+-_A=+—H8BI1=F
December 2014 is set out below: E-2EHE2MEeEHYOT :
Employer’s
contribution
Salaries and to pension
Name of director EEHA Fees allowances scheme Total
EBxY
EREFE
e Hek=EHK Z MR st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET
Executive directors BTES
Mr. Au Wai Kin ENREEE - 240 12 252
Mr. Bao Wenge (i) ) STI J% A () - 205 8 213
Ms. Chu Kut Yung KiEwmi L — 2,482 17 2,499
Mr. Chu Mang Yee RAMKEE - = = -
Mr. Liao Ruo Qing BEBTE — 3,774 17 3,791
Mr. Xie Bao Xin HEERLE — 1,416 100 1,516
Mr. Zheng Shao Hui (i) & /0 1 5 A (i) — 1,051 52 1,103
— 9,168 206 9,374

Independent non-executive B FEHITES

directors
Mr. Lee Tsung Hei, David THEESLE 290 - - 290
Mr. Wong Shing Kay, Oliver HAEAHESLE 290 — — 290
Mr. Tan Leng Cheng, Aaron PR BE)S T £ 290 - - 290

870 - - 870
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29 EMPLOYEES’ BENEFITS COSTS
(INCLUDING DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS)

(Continued)
(b) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

The remuneration of each director for the year ended 31st
December 2013 is set out below:

(b) E=EM<E @

HE_2—=F+-_A=+—8BLtHF
B SEEFEzMeHIET :

Employer’s
contribution
Salaries and to pension
Name of director BEEHE Fees allowances scheme Total
2 = 4
RIKE T E
e HeRER 2 R wEt
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET FAET FET
Executive directors HITESE
Mr. Au Wai Kin BEREE — 240 12 252
Ms. Chu Kut Yung KERLZ L — 1,844 15 1,859
Mr. Chu Mang Yee KBRS E — = = -
Mr. Liao Ruo Qing BEERE — 3,787 15 3,802
Mr. Xiang Bin (i) T8 XE, 5 A (i) — 2,700 — 2,700
Mr. Zhang Yi (iv) ok B 7t A (iv) — 2,643 9 2,652
Mr. Xie Bao Xin (v) HHESZEEWV) — 710 23 733
Mr. Zheng Shao Hui (i) & /) 18 5 A (i) — 953 25 978
— 12,877 99 12,976
Independent BIAFHITES
non-executive directors
Mr. Lee Tsung Hei, David TEESLE 290 — — 290
Mr. Wong Shing Kay, Oliver =ARESLE 290 — — 290
Mr. Tan Leng Cheng, Aaron PR BE)S £ 290 — — 290
870 — — 870

During the year, Mr. Chu Mang Yee waived emoluments of
HK$240,000 (2013: HK$240,000).

Notes:
(i) Mr. Bao Wenge was appointed on 18th November 2014.

(i) Mr. Zheng Shao Hui was appointed on 28th March 2013, and resigned
on 18th November 2014.

(iii) Mr. Xiang Bin resigned on 28th March 2013.

(iv) Mr. Zhang Yi resigned on 11th July 2013.

V) Mr. Xie Bao Xin was appointed on 11th July 2013.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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29 EMPLOYEES’ BENEFITS COSTS 20 EERA ﬁJZZF
(INCLUDING DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS) (@ﬁﬁ%@ﬂ )
(Continued) (#&)
(c) Five highest paid individuals (c) ABmEEHF AL
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the AREEAERREEaFTATEEME
Group for the year include two (2013: three) directors, whose (ZE—=F:ZR)ESF HEZ2HEE
emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented above. The RENHE3zoTRIE - HEA =L (=
emoluments for the remaining three (2013: two) individual are as Z—=F WMEB)ENALZHMSHT :
follows:
2014 2013
—F-HmE —F-=
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHE T THT
Salaries and allowances e kERL 7,943 4,202
Employer’s contribution to pension scheme EEXHRAKSEE 2 MR 87 15
8,030 4,217
The emoluments fell within the following band: B 70 F- LA TS 48 Bl -
2014 2013
—F-MF —EF—=F
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
AE A
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 % 7T & 2,000,0007% 7T 1 1
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7% 7T & 2,500,000% 7T - 1
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 7 7T & 3,000,0007% 7T 1 —
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 3,500,001 7 7T = 4,000,000 7% 7T 1 —

BRERIRE
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30 FINANCE INCOME AND COSTS 30 B A R B A
2014 2013
—E-OF —E—=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FBT
Interest expense and other borrowing costs: F) BB % % E A B KA
— loans from banks and financial institutions —BRAFRNBEHEEREZ
wholly repayable within five years RIT RS B 3,129,453 2,668,479
— loans from banks and financial institutions not — N ERAERNBHEE 2
wholly repayable within five years R1T R IS B 20,058 17,079
— senior notes wholly repayable within five years — ZBER A E NBEHEE 2
BEER 525,157 505,868
Total borrowing costs incurred Fr & 4 2 BIE B KA 3,674,668 3,191,426
Less: Amount capitalised as part of the cost of B BTIERBRBWEZ
properties under development B 10 B AN 2 B (3,674,668) (3,191,426)
Interest income from banks HRITFE M A (65,267) (31,069)
Net finance income B W A F R (65,267) (31,069

The weighted average interest rate of borrowing costs capitalised
during the year ended 31st December 2014 was approximately 7.9%
(20183: 8.7%) per annum.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

fk 11 B 955 e 7 B R ()

31 TAXATION 31 Hiig

2014 2013
—E-mF —F—=%
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET F# T

Current tax 7N B R 18
Hong Kong profits tax (Note (a)) EBFEH (K iF@E) 376 =
Mainland China corporate income tax (Note (b)) ™1 Bl A B 1b 2 P 15 B¢ (47 5% (b)) 672,862 839,065
Mainland China land appreciation tax (Note (c)) B K BE £ 3R E B (K 2 (o) 1,199,782 1,466,023
Mainland China withholding income tax (Note (d)) ™1 B A BE & 30 P 15 % (4 7% (0)) 105,090 130,499
1,978,110 2,435,587

Deferred tax R SE T 18
Mainland China corporate income tax (Note (b)) R K B 1 ZEFT IS R (M 2 (b)) 190,123 56,753
Mainland China land appreciation tax (Note (c)) AR B K B £ 3B A B (M 2 (o) (102,796) (17,153)
Mainland China withholding income tax (Note ()  #1 B8 A BE T8 1 it 15 B¢ (7 5% (0)) 1,820 —
89,147 39,600
Taxation (Note (e)) I (Kt () 2,067,257 2,475,187

The Company is exempted from taxation in Bermuda until March

2035.

Subsidiaries in the British Virgin Islands are incorporated

under the International Business Companies Act (now the BVI
Business Companies Act, 2004) of the British Virgin Islands, or the
BVI Business Companies Act, 2004 of the British Virgin Islands,
and are not liable to any form of taxation in the British Virgin Islands.

Notes:

Hong Kong profits tax

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at 16.5% on the estimated
assessable profit for the year ended 31st December 2014. No Hong Kong
profits tax was provided for the year ended 31st December 2013.

Mainland China corporate income tax

Subsidiaries established and operated in Mainland China are subject to
Mainland China corporate income tax at the rate of 25% for the year
ended 31st December 2014 (2013: 25%).

Mainland China land appreciation tax

Mainland China land appreciation tax is levied at progressive rates ranging
from 30% to 60% on the appreciation of land value, being the proceeds
of sales of properties less deductible expenditures including costs of land
and development and construction expenditures.

AAREREBHERENE BEE_F
SHFZAL-RBRAXBEESHERQA
DREBERBEAFESBEEBERTER
RRBRELEERHERBIE2004) KR
BRZEECRBRELXHERERAE
20045EM AR S - BMBASX N EMFE A Z
RBELEENE-

B et -

@ ABNEH
HE-_Z-—WNFEF+_A=1+—HILEEE"
EREFNESHERFANGBTERBE RS2
16.5%H IR - MERBE_T—=F+
ZA=1+T—"BLFEZEBNEHTIRE
&

() HFEAECEMRSH
HE-_Z-—WNE+_A=+—HILEE "
R B ARERY REEZKHBARAR
5% 2 EBMPRARELEMBH(=ZF
— = :25%) °

(€  HEIARELHIEER
B R RE i R E R LG E IS
B E AT A SRR B R F X (B8 i
RANREERAS RBERAN)  BRER
R 30% Z 60% UK o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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31 TAXATION (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(d) Mainland China withholding income tax ()
Dividend distribution made by Mainland China subsidiaries and joint
ventures to shareholders outside of Mainland China in respect of their
profits earned after 1st January 2008 is subject to withholding income tax
at rates ranging from 5% to 10%.

(e) The tax on the Group’s profit before taxation differs from the theoretical (e)
amount that would arise using the weighted average tax rate applicable to
profits of the group companies as follows:

31 HIE @

Kzt - (%)

B K EFRM S
REAKEME AR LA ERARERF
RERSIBEREBER_—_FZNFE—A
—HERRRZEFPAELZREDIKRAR
5% ZE10% Z Bt K F M FA1F L

AN £ (B R B A& A £ 4% PR &= B 2 /) 0 AE P
BERGEMNREAEZEREBZIERN
T~

32

2014 2013
—E-IF —E—=%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT F& T
Profit before taxation R B4 Al A 4,995,193 6,309,673
Less: Share of (profit)/loss of associates B o hE A A E CEF), BB (564) 1,226
Less: Share of profit of joint ventures B DIEE S R A (91,023) (1,428,387)
4,903,606 4,887,512
Tax calculated at domestic tax rates applicable BEREME 2 A ERARR
to profits in the respective regions MEFTE ZTRIE 1,233,298 1,211,520
Income not subject to tax NEE YN (132,155) (87,567)
Expenses not deductible for tax AT 2 9,100 3,359
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses PRABEABRTEER (15,419) (1,185)
Deferred tax asset not recognised RERELERIBEE 42,783 61,328
Land appreciation tax deductible for calculation ABIERTEMBHAR 2
of income tax purposes + M 3E (B R (274,246) (362,218)
Withholding tax on dividend income and FEREARIRGERATZ
undistributed profits of PRC subsidiaries and iR B A KR 5 R & 2
joint ventures TEMH 106,910 201,080
970,271 1,026,317
Land appreciation tax + i 3 (E L 1,096,986 1,448,870
Taxation FiIE 2,067,257 2,475,187

The weighted average applicable tax rate was approximately 25% (2013: 25%).

MEFHERREL B25%(Z T — =4 : 25%) °

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY 32 RPEIREFE AEMLRF

HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The profit attributable to equity holders of the Company is dealt
with in the financial statements of the Company to the extent of a
loss of HK$552,804,000 (2013: loss of HK$435,849,000).

AKRNBIRERFE AEMLRF -
16552,804,0008 T(—ZE —=F : FH1#E
435,849,000 70) E R AR R B S R &K K

R BR o
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33 EARNINGS PER SHARE 33 BREF
Basic =N
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit FREXREBINTIEEBEARAATKREZREEG A
attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted B RNMBRAFADETEREK 2 INE
average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year. EHEEE -
2014 2013
—E-mF —Zz—=
Profit attributable to equity holders of RAaRERE A
the Company (HK$’000) FEAE = A (T 7T) 2,947,301 3,852,073
Weighted average number of ordinary BETEEKRZ
shares in issue ('000) INAE 39 8 (F 1) 2,244,126 1,834,045
Basic earnings per share (HK$ per share) R ERNEBF (5 ET) 1.31 2.10
Diluted s
Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the weighted SEERESANE  EHBTEINEAE
average number of ordinary shares outstanding to assume Iz Mg BEHFAE - AMBREMRMER
conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares. Since there was BEBH o EBREZHER AREE
no dilutive potential ordinary shares during the years ended 31st TEWERZE—=FTZA=1+—
December 2014 and 2013, diluted earnings per share is equal to BIEFEWREE#EE N 2Bk -
basic earnings per share. hERESREFNEGRERNZFER -
34 DIVIDEND 34 KRE
The Board of Directors did not recommend the payment of any EFEelTEEMEE-_ZE—OF+=A
interim and final dividend in respect of the year ended 31st =+ — B 1IEFE IR EM A B XK R
December 2014 (2013: nil). B(ZE—Z=F:8)-

BRERIRE
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35 NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH 35 RERERERMT
FLOW STATEMENT
Cash (used in)/generated from operations rE (), EEzERE
2014 2013
—E-OF —E—=
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET TAT
Profit before taxation I i A A 4,995,193 6,309,673
Adjustments for: EEESE
— Finance income — BB A (65,267) (31,069)
— Dividend income — R BKA (179,950) (138,676)
— Share of profit of joint ventures — DA &R AR (91,023) (1,423,387)
— Share of (profit)/loss of associates — DB A AR CEF), KB (564) 1,226
— Depreciation of properties and equipment —ERKRETE 159,023 152,812
— Loss on disposals of properties and equipment — H & ¥ 2 K& EEE 2,971 366
— Amortisation of land costs — + Hh pK AN B £ 51,299 43,864
— Provision for impairment of — JEUR BR SR (B BB
accounts receivable 17,038 22,128
— Fair value gain on investment properties —KREYMENFEWE (1,222,228) (540,6006)
— Fair value (gain)/loss on financial assets —RATEBRBERIIEZ
at fair value through profit or loss MREEZAFE
(Wz) B8 (1,462) 1,414
— Net exchange loss/(gain) —EXEE (W) FE 45,572 (136,919)
Changes in working capital (excluding the effects &£ E & & & & (TR B WE ~
of acquisition/disposal of subsidiaries HEMB AR ME X =88
and exchange differences on consolidation): HERE2RE)
— Properties under development for sale —AEHEEZERTYER
and completed properties for sale AHHEZBEKYE (212,561) (1,819,053)
— Accounts receivable — U BR 3K 35,343 (68,991)
— Prepayments for acquisition of land — Y +3h > T8 X E (1,935) (1,741)
— Prepayments, deposits and —TENRE ek
other current assets HEA B E E 244,120 410,099
— Accounts payable — EERER 1,045,501 2,392,290
— Land cost payable — FEAE £ b AR AR (443,460) (237,291)
— Deferred revenue — B E YT A (5,211,258) 852,480
— Accruals and other payables — FEET I IE K& H fth B 5k 18 194,323 (3,114)
Cash (used in)/generated from operations KE (TR /EEZ2BR e (639,325) 5,785,505
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36 FINANCIAL GUARANTEES 36 BIHIER

AR BRRPELBRBE B BHERD

Financial guarantees not provided for in the financial statements are

as follows: Ik
Group Company
-3 NE
2014 2013 2014 2013
ZE-MmNE —T-=F ZB-WmE —T—=F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’'000
FER FAT FTHET TAT
Guarantees given to banks for  BtE B AR & FH Y %
mortgage facilities granted to & T B R I2 (L1818
certain buyers of the Group’s & 2 ifi [A] $R 17
properties fEH Z 1R 10,082,539 10,076,659 - —
Guarantees given to banks T B AR ZEIT
for bank borrowings BEEMmmIETT
of subsidiaries B 2 1R — 34,280,791 30,304,455
Guarantees given to a bank o—EEEARIRIT
for bank borrowings of BEEmmEETT
a joint venture EH Z R 2,371,138 906,083 2,371,138 906,083
12,453,677 10,982,742 36,651,929 31,210,538

Guarantees given to banks for mortgage facilities granted to certain
buyers of the Group’s properties represented the guarantees in
respect of mortgage facilities granted by certain banks relating to
the mortgage loans arranged for certain purchasers of the Group’s
properties. Pursuant to the terms of the guarantees, upon default in
mortgage payments by these purchasers, the Group is responsible
to repay the outstanding mortgage principals together with accrued
interest and penalty owed by the defaulted purchasers to the banks
and the Group is entitled to take over the legal title and possession
of the related properties. Such guarantees were to be discharged
upon the earlier of () issuance of the real estate ownership
certificate which are generally available within 1 year after the
purchasers take possession of the relevant properties, and (i) the
full repayment of the mortgage loan by the purchasers of
properties.

The Directors consider that in case of default in payments by the
purchasers, the net realisable value of the related properties can
cover the repayment of the outstanding mortgage principals
together with the accrued interest and penalty (see also Note 3.1(b)).

WREEASRENEZE TERRHKRE
ERmEARTIEL ZERAERE TR
BROZEBREZER DERRAEE
MEZETERLBHZ2EZBENR - RE
ZERNGR MZEERBRZIBN
FoAKRERAAREEENE T RRIET
ZHARERRIBASER B E &
R MASEAERGHBEYE AT
AHENRERE B)ELFEHERBE
BE—RREXEREBYMER -—FAH
H) HZEVWENERCDEFRRBE
RUARPERE)  ZERGEEE -

E=RAR WHRETEXIAROBER
HEMENRAERFERABHEERE
BENEZBEASERRFANERIR(FER
RF 2B M 5E3.1(0)) ©

BRERIRE

i
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37 COMMITMENTS

(a) Capital commitments

Capital expenditures at the balance sheet date but not yet incurred

are as follows:

37 EIE

(a) EAXFRE

REERRAREEZEARFAWT

Group
&=
2014 2013
—E-ImF —ET—=%F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET F#& T
Contracted but not provided for BRI B RBE
— Acquisition of land and equity interests in —WEETHE L HER
certain land holding entities 2 % IR AN R e 3,542,121 3,128,106
— Property construction costs — W FE K AR 2,983,084 2,580,107
— Capital contribution to an associate ——HBE A ZHE 271,629 272,541
— Capital contribution to a joint venture ——HEERRIZHE - 2,438,981
6,796,834 8,419,735
Authorised but not contracted for EERERRTLH
— Acquisition of land and equity interests —WEETRHE THER
in certain land holding entities 7 b KRR AN RE S 30,677 30,780
— Property construction costs e EX= N 2,251,374 1,429,676
2,282,051 1,460,456
9,078,885 9,880,191
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

37 COMMITMENTS (Continued)

(b) Operating lease commitments

The Group has operating lease commitments in respect of
premises under various non-cancellable operating lease
agreements. The future aggregate minimum lease payments under
these leases are as follows:

fk 11 B 955 e 7 B R ()

37 AL @)

(b) R&EFHERIE

AEERZNEEHEEYE 2 T A E
KREHEHZMAEKLEHEAE - RIB
ZEME RBBEZEEENBESEEN
T

Group
-
2014 2013
—¥-mE —F—=
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
Within one year —F R 24,263 28,509
Within two to five years MEZERFR 12,890 14,670
After five years hF& 37,685 37,812
74,838 80,991

The Company has no operating lease commitment as at 31st
December 2014 (2013: nil).

(c) Future minimum rental receivable

The Group leased out certain properties under non-cancellable
operating leases. The future minimum rental receivable under these
leases is as follows:

KRR Z—ZZE—NF+=_A=+—8BI
EREHEAE(CE—Z=ZF 1 &) -

(c) REZKEEKES

AEERBEAURELEHEELEET
ME - KEZFHEZRAREERKES
LN

Group
%
2014 2013
—E-NmF —ET—=
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Within one year —F R 433,429 358,290
Within two to five years MEERLFA 1,091,996 954,391
After five years HF1% 758,996 819,443
2,284,421 2,132,124

The Company has no future rental receivable as at 31st December
2014 (2013: nil).

KRR —_ZE—NE+_A=+—HB
EEMARKERBAL(ZE—=F: &)
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38 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Company is controlled by Mr. Chu Mang Yee, who owns
approximately 54.68% to 54.77% of the Company’s shares during
the year ended 31st December 2014 (2013: 54.68% to 63.42%).
The remaining shares are widely held.

The ultimate holding company is Sounda Properties Limited, a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands.

(@) The following significant transactions

38 FHEALRS

RARIBHRRKEEZS  ERBE=ZT
—NMFE+-_A=+—BItFEREEYD
54.68% E£54.77% (ZF — =14 : 54.68% =
63.42%) AR a5 o 88 T AR {9 B E A
TEZEAR -

REERRARRFEEZERRA  B—
KN RBRELBESEMKINAF -

(@ PIRE-—FHEEALE

were carried out with a related party: TRZEERXS .
Sales of goods and services (o) HEEMERBE w2
2014 2013
—ZT-NF =F—=
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Property management services to a RHET—H@EELAZ
related company WS IR R 3,569 8,889
Property design services to a related company REEF—REBEEAAZ
EE S 8,465 7,541
Shop lease services to a related company REF—HBEQFZ
s E RS 2,475 1,092
14,509 17,522
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38 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 38 BEHE A £ XX ZF @)
(@) The following significant transactions (@ F3AE—ZEEALE
were carried out with a related party: TRREEXRS:
(Continued) (#&)
Purchase of goods and services (ot BEEmERBmw
2014 2013
—E-mF —E-=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FE& T
Property construction services from —AEER AR
a related company W) 3 12 L AR 7% 531,359 351,600
Property construction supervision services —H@EE ARz
from a related company VI EREEE RS 2,948 11,835
Electrical power, low voltage system and —FEfEEA A TET ZE
intelligent building installation works, BERAREREET
budgeting and cost control consultation ZHTRE BEREA
services from a related company 72 ) 558 38 IR 75 146,753 206,556
Office lease services from a related company —EEEAAREEZ
WMAZEHERY 3,633 3,023
Consultancy services in respect of —H@AEARREM ZEA
development planning and sales agency MEBEZERERS R
service for commercial property projects 8 78 AR 7% 2 EE 8 AR 7%
from a related company 37 114
Informatization related services from a —RHBEEQRRE
related company = LB R 7 43,788 34,141
728,518 607,269

Note:

This related company is ultimately owned by the brother-in-law of Mr. Chu Mang
Yee (the controlling shareholder and Chairman of the Board of Directors of the
Company) and uncle of Ms. Chu Kut Yung (Deputy Chairman of the Board of

Directors of the Company).

All the services mentioned above were charged in accordance with

the terms of the underlying agreements.

;gilo

LRIRE

i)

ot P A AR 75 T AR 9% A8 R 1 AR

BRAF

ZHERRIRRAREE(RRAIERKRRFE
ERIRIZHRRAERLLE(ARREZEE
TR ZELREFERZRE -

V15 3
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38 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 38 BEHE A £ XX Z @)
(b) B NEBEEALZFRE
mT

(b) Amounts due from/to related parties
were as follows:

2014 2013
=F-mE 2=

HK$°000 HK$’000

FET FAT

Due from associates JE Wi BS 8 X B 3R IR 223 32,882

Due from related companies (Note) & U 8 5 A B 3R I8 (M 7E) 9,984 6,440

Due to an associate FES —RIB & A R 2 RIE 6,996 7,020

Due to related companies (Note) FEfT R E R R 2 538 (K aE) 88,232 101,939

Due to joint ventures BN &%E AR ZHE 3,112,088 2,368,135

As at 31st December 2014, all outstanding balances with related RZE—NE+-_A=+—H EHEERQ

companies, associates and joint ventures were denominated in A BEARRAEERAIZEIHEHRIT N

Renminbi, unsecured, non-interest bearing and without ARBEE  EEKF 2B RWEFETEE
predetermined repayment terms. RH] o

As at 31st December 2014, the Group also had accounts payable
of approximately HK$ 707,658,000 (2013: HK$726,954,000) due
to certain related companies (Note) in respect of property
construction (Note 21).

Note:

These related companies are owned by the brother and the brother-in-law of Mr.
Chu Mang Yee (the controlling shareholder and Chairman of the Board of
Directors of the Company) and uncles of Ms. Chu Kut Yung (Deputy Chairman of
the Board of Directors of the Company).

(c) Amount due to non-controlling interests

The amount due to non-controlling interests represents
shareholders’ loans to subsidiaries from the non-controlling
interests, which are denominated in Renminbi, unsecured and non-
interest bearing. The amount is not repayable within the next twelve
months.
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38 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 38 FEE A + X F @)

(d) Key management compensation: d TEEEREHRH :
2014 2013
—ZE-0OF —T—=
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FHET
Salaries and allowances e ROER 11,177 16,184
Pension costs RIRE KA 356 166
11,533 16,350
(e) Undertaking provided by Mr. Chu Mang (e) ARREEEXELRAMK
Yee, the Chairman of the Board of REFRWBWBEZEEKRIEM
Directors of the Company, to the Group EERARAMOAEBEEL
in relation to the acquisition of Panyu 2R
Zhujiang Real Estate Limited
In March 2010, the Group completed the acquisition of the entire RZZE—ZFF=H KTEETKM —HHH
interest in Panyu Zhujiang Real Estate Limited (“Panyu Zhujiang”) RERKEEREAERBEENBERAE
from Guangdong Hanjiang Construction Installation Project Limited REITEERETEERAR(®EI]
(“Hanjiang”), a related company ultimately owned by the brother-in- KEEBRISHEER AR (EBLK
law of Mr. Chu Mang Yee. L)z 2 EiEE -
Panyu Zhujiang possesses the right to develop a piece of land in EERIHAPBRARAEEREZEEREAN—
Panyu District, Guangdong, Mainland China. Hanjiang agreed to BN ERE BIREEERELT
perform and complete all necessary demoliton and preparation REDBAEORKREEBEIEUNRES
work and to obtain the land use right at its own expense. In relation THFERAE REEAEEKREERRL
to the Group’s acquisition of Panyu Zhujiang, Mr. Chu Mang Yee ME  KREKELEEERAEBRBZE LN
has undertaken to the Group to guarantee the due and punctual HETEABA L HHNER (e RIEAE
performance by Hanjiang of its obligations in relation to the land A R #3,600,000,0007C) c 1A = F — 0 F
(subject to a maximum amount of RMB3,600 million). As at 31st +=—A=+—H B ITEERFBZLHER
December 2014, Hanjiang was in the process of applying the land E o
use right.
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38 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

() Undertaking provided by Mr. Chu Mang
Yee, the Chairman of the Board of
Directors of the Company, to the Group
in relation to acquisition of Believe Best
Investments Limited

In 2007, the Group completed the acquisition of 80% of the issued
share capital of Believe Best Investments Limited (“Believe Best”)
from Mr. Chu Mang Yee. Believe Best has, through its indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary (the project company), a piece of land for
property development in Chaoyang District, Beijing, Mainland China
(known as the “Jing Run Project”).

In relation to the Group’s interest in the Jing Run Project (through
its 80% interest in Believe Best), Mr. Chu Mang Yee has (i) fully
guaranteed the bank loans which were used by the project
company for the demolition and relocation of the extra public
greenfield site peripheral to the Jing Run Project at the request of
the local government; and (i) undertaken to the Group to be
responsible for the excess amount, if any, being the difference in
the unit cost per square metre (including the demolition and
relocation fees for the extra public greenfield site and the land
transfer fees as compared with the original agreed valuation price
of the Jing Run Project) for the gross floor area to be developed,
payable by the project company in respect of any increase in plot
ratio as the government may approve, less the benefit associated
with the increase in plot ratio. The demoalition and relocation work
on the extra public greenfield is ongoing and related costs of
approximately RMB1,493 million had been incurred by the Group
up to 31st December 2014 (2013: RMB1,491 million). Such
additional costs may be compensated by an increase in plot ratio
for the Jing Run Project, although government approval for an
increase in plot ratio is pending.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

38 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(g) Acquisition of Sun Excel Investments
Limited

On 3rd November 2010, the Group entered into an agreement with
Farrich Investments Limited (“Farrich”), a related company, to
acquire the 100% equity interests in Sun Excel Investments Limited
(“Sun Excel”) at a total consideration of RMB6,605,066,000. The
consideration would be satisfied by (i) cash of RMB2,313,787,000,
and (i) the issuance of 523,247,000 shares of the Company for
RMB4,291,279,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$5,387,332,000), on the basis that the construction will be fully
completed by Farrich at its own cost.

The sole asset of Sun Excel is its 100% interests in Beijing
Chuanghe Fengwei Real Property Development Co. Limited (formerly
known as Beijing Chuanghe Fengwei Technology Investment and
Management Co. Limited) (“Project Co A”) and Beijing
Shengchuang Hengda Real Property Development Co. Limited
(formerly known as Beijing Shengchuang Hengda Technology
Investment and Management Co. Limited) (“Project Co D”). Project
Co A and Project Co D hold the land use rights of a piece of land in
Tongzhou District, Beijing, Mainland China (the “Project”).

The acquisition of Sun Excel was completed in October 2013 and
523,247,000 shares were issued by the Company. As at 31st
December 2014, cash consideration of RMB158,750,000 (2013:
nil) out of the total of RMB2,313,787,000 were paid, representing
the amount of construction work completed by Farrich. The
acquisition costs paid were recognised as investment properties
under development and prepayments for construction work (Note
17(ii)).

fk 11 B 955 e 7 B R ()

38 BEAETXRZ @

() WEHERERRAT

N-_ZTE—ZTFE+—A=H AEHHE—
HEEAREEREERAARTEE))
IS Wk A B R E AR 6,605,066,000
TWERAEREER2AR(RED 2
100% 0 KA #E = K B B LO)E £ A
R #2,313,787,0007C + K ()5t A R ¥
4,291,279,000 7t ( 48 & 1 495,387,332,000
7 7T ) 3 17523,247,000 A% AN A &) B 10 #Y 77
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REE-—NEESERLEREAEHE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Aok 1 B 955 e % B R (4

38 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 38 FEE A + X F @)

(h) Disposals of land use rights to Mr. Chu
Mang Yee, the Chairman of the Board of
Directors of the Company

In May 2012, the Group entered into agreements to dispose of its
land use rights of two pieces of land in Panyu District, Guangdong,
Mainland China and Baodi District, Tianjin, Mainland China to Mr.
Chu Mang Yee, for considerations of RMB29,258,305 and
RMB2,500,000, respectively.

The transactions have not yet been completed as at 31st
December 2014. It is expected that the Group will recognise gain
on disposals, net of tax, of approximately RMB9,834,000 upon
completion of the transactions.

(i) Acquisition of Tianjin Royal Garden Hot
Spring Development Co., Ltd.

In December 2014, the Group entered into an agreement with two
related companies, Beijing Zhujiang Real Estate Development Co.,
Ltd. (“Beijing Zhujiang”) and Guangdong Zhujiang Investment Co.,
Ltd. (“Guangdong Zhujiang”), to acquire 100% equity interest in
Tianjin Royal Garden Hot Spring Development Co., Ltd. (“Tianjin
Royal Garden”) for a total consideration of approximately
RMB440,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$554,400,000).

Beijing Zhujiang and Guangdong Zhujiang are ultimately owned by
Mr. Chu Wai Hong, son of Mr. Chu Mang Yee, the Chairman of the
Board of Directors of the Company, and brother of Ms. Chu Kut
Yung, the Deputy Chairman of the Board of Directors of the
Company. Tianjin Royal Garden owns and operates a hot spring
resort which is located in Baodi District, Tianjin, Mainland China.
The transaction has not yet been completed up to the date of this
report.

218 Hopson Development Holdings Limited Annual Report 2014

R-TE——FHR AEETILBE
2 Bl A A R #29,258,3057T & A R #
2,500,000 T E A RME - AR &KL L H
EEMURTBEAEEREBRLPEKX
B R E B K [ B W 08 b )+ 3 (0 R A o

RZFE—WNF+_A=+—"HB RFIHXK
T o BHIASEE BN S KRR
E e (kB FIEZ) 49 A R 9,834,000
ﬁo

() WIBXEKRIFRBRM
RBERAF

R-ZE-—OF+_A AEEERBEHEE
REALERKIEHEREARAF (I
RRIDEERKIKRERNERAQA
(BRI DATLIHE - AR RRIRT
FTRARMEARAATRRERIT R
BAR])E100% A HE - BRERSOARE
440,000,0007T ( 16 % 7 #)554,400,000 &
TR

ERRIKERKIAARAEETS
FARBRAEEZTFRARREST SR
FRERZETZRARBREERKE
B-RREWITRARBEANEE @
RFPEAREREZTEERRNERER
N-BEERAREAH KHHEATK -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

fk 11 B 955 e 7 B R ()

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31st December

2014

39 DETAILS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Place of incorporation and

operations and

TEMBRRARE:

Percentage of equity

Issued and fully interest attributable to

39 FEMBAAFE

WTAR-_ZE—NF+_A=+—HZ

Name of company kind of legal entity paid capital the Group Principal activities
EE AL R EBTR SEEGRE
AR BB EEMEREAEERER R Aotk FTEEK
Directly Indirectly
HE SEE
Hopson Development British Virgin Islands, US$2,000 100% — Investment holding
International Limited limited liability company 2,00037T AR
AERIRBRERAR EBRELES  AREERF
Sun Excel Investment Limited British Virgin Islands, US$2,600,001 100% — Investment holding
HERERR AR limited liability company 2,600,0013%7T AR
EBRUHES BAREERF
Addup International Limited Hong Kong, HK$1 = 100% Investment holding
XERREHR AR limited liability company 18T AR
HE  AREEAR
Archibald Properties Limited British Virgin Islands, us$2 = 100% Investment holding
BEEXERAR limited liability company ES I AR
EBRLHES  BAREERF
Beijing Chuanghe Fengwei Real Property Mainland China, US$13,666,625 — 100% Property development
Development Co. Limited limited liability company 13,666,625 7T MEER
I RAIEYREHEREERAR REIARE - EREERRA]
Beijing Hopson Beifang Real Estate Mainland China, US$220,580,000 = 100% Property development
Development Limited limited liability company 220,580,0003< 7T E 95
EREE T EHEREAR AR REIKEE - GREEAR
Beijing Hopson Longhui Restaurant Mainland China, RMB3,000,000 — 100% Restaurant management
Management Company Limited limited liability company AR #3,000,0007C BEEIR
IREERERREEBRAR REIARE - EREERRA]
Beijing Hopson Luzhou Real Estate Mainland China, RMB1,793,370,000 = 100% Property development
Development Limited limited liability company AR #1,793,370,0007T MIEEERE
EREEENEHERZEAR AR REIAKE - EREMERR
Beijing Hopson Shiguang Investment Mainland China, RMB3,000,000 — 100% Investment holding
Management Limited limited liability company AER#3,000,0007T AR
ITREERAREEEBRAA REIARE - EREERRA]
Beijing Hopson Wangjing Real Estate Mainland China, RMB364,990,000 = 100% Property development
Development Company Limited limited liability company AR #364,990,0007T b E$ 4

IREEEREMEREERAA

TEIARE - EREEAR

BEAREEERADA
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39 DETAILS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

39 FTEMBEAAFE
(&)
Place of incorporation and

Percentage of equity

operations and Issued and fully interest attributable to

Name of company kind of legal entity paid capital the Group Principal activities
FEM AL R BBTR SEPEL R E
AEERB EEMN R EEERER BRBRAE Aotk FEEK
Directly Indirectly
HiE [CiEE3
Beijing Hopson Xingye Real Estate Mainland China, US$31,600,000 = 100% Property development
Development Limited limited liability company 31,600,000% 7T MIEEERE
IEREEEREFEMEREZEGRAA HEIAKE - EREERA
Beijing Hopson Yujing Real Estate Mainland China, US$165,760,000 = 100% Property development
Development Limited limited liability company 165,760,0003 70 bE 47
IREERREHEREERAR REIARE - EREERA]
Beijing Longjia Runhe Real Estate Mainland China, RMB10,000,000 = 100% Property development
Development Limited limited liability company AR #10,000,0007T L
EtRERHEEHERZEER AR REIREE - GREFEAR
Beijing Longyuan Shunjing Real Estate Mainland China, RMB20,000,000 = 100% Property development
Development Limited limited liability company AE#20,000,0007T MR
IRERIEREHEREERAR FEIKEE - GREEAR
Beijing Shengchuang Hengda Real Mainland China, US$15,366,712 — 100% Property development
Property Development Co., Limited limited liability company 15,366,7123< 7T MEERE
It REEEIEER EREZEFRAA REIAREE - BREEAR
Beijing Shengfenqi Architecture Mainland China, RMB2,000,000 = 100% Architectural design
Consultant Company Limited limited liability company AR #2,000,0007T FRERE
I RREHEERABAERAT REKEE - GREEAR
Beijing Xinjingrun Property Co., Ltd. Mainland China, US$444,540,000 — 80% Property development
R EEERR AR limited liability company 444,540,0003<7T V%R
REIAKE - EREMEARA]
Beijing Yichuang Nuoyi Investment Mainland China, RMB10,000,000 = 100% Investment holding
Management Company Limited limited liability company AR #10,000,0007C REER
IRBRIHEKIREEERRAR REIARE - EREMERA]
Beijing Yihai Yinuo Investment Mainland China, RMB10,000,000 = 100% Investment holding

Management Company Limited limited liability company AE#10,000,0007T REER
Rt EFHIEEEERRAR HEREE - BREEAR
Believe Best Investments Limited British Virgin Islands, Us$200 = 80% Investment holding
FEREBR AR limited liability company 2007 AR

HBELRS  BREMEAT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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39 DETAILS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

39 FEMBL AR
()

Place of incorporation and Percentage of equity

operations and

Issued and fully interest attributable to

Name of company kind of legal entity paid capital the Group Principal activities
AR S R BBITR KBRS R E
AREB EEMI R EEERER BRBRAE Aotk FEEK
Directly Indirectly
HiE i3
Chia Lung Group Company Limited Samoa, US$6,500,000 = 100% Investment holding
EEERARAR limited liability company 6,500,0003< 7T AR
EEEGR R - AREEAA
Dalian Hopson Fubang Real Estate Mainland China, US$32,747,000 — 100% Property development
Development Company Limited limited liability company 32,747,000% 7T YR
RESEEAFHERRERAR REIARE - EREERA]
Dalian Hopson Xingye Real Estate Mainland China, RMB50,000,000 = 100% Property development
Development Company Limited limited liability company AR #50,000,0007T b
NESEEEEMEREAR AR REIREE - BREEAR
Dynawell Investment Limited Hong Kong, HK$10,000 = 100% Investment holding
R EBR AR limited liability company 10,0008 7T B
& AREEAR
Ever New Properties Limited Hong Kong, HK$2 ordinary = 100% Investment holding
B BEEARAR limited liability company HK$3 non-voting and property investment
&% BREEAHA deferred shares (Note) B R ERE
2B Bk
SEBTLERTRE
BT A (K 7%)
Funland Properties Limited British Virgin Islands, US$2 = 100% Investment holding
REEXER AR limited liability company ESI REER
EBRELHEE  BAREERF
Grand Avenue Limited Hong Kong, HK$22,500,000 = 100% Investment holding
e B R AT limited liability company 22,500,000/ 7T &R
B BREEAR
Guangdong Esteem Property Mainland China, HK$5,000,000 — 100% Property management
Services Limited limited liability company 5,000,000 7T YEETR
BERRERMFREERADAF FREIARE - EREERRA]
Guangdong Hopson Dijing Mainland China, US$37,500,000 — 100% Property development

Real Estate Co. Ltd.
BREEFREHEGR AR

limited liability company
REIAKE - EREMERR

37,500,000% 7T

EEERAF

YRR

“E-NEFEFH 221



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Aok 1 B 955 e % B R (4

39 DETAILS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

Place of incorporation and

operations and

(&)

Percentage of equity

Issued and fully interest attributable to

39 FEMBAAFE

Name of company kind of legal entity paid capital the Group Principal activities
FEM AL R BBTR SEPEL R E
AEERB EEMN R EEERER BRBRAE Aotk FEEK
Directly Indirectly
HiE [CiEE3
Guangdong Hopson Hongjing Mainland China, RMB200,280,000 = 100% Property development
Real Estate Company Limited limited liability company AR #200,280,0007T MIEEERE
BR&ERFEERRAR HEIAKE - EREERA
Guangdong Hopson Lejing Mainland China, RMB44,500,000 — 100% Property development
Real Estate Co. Limited limited liability company AR #44,500,0007T MEEERE
BRAELREERRAR] REIARE - EREERA]
Guangdong Hopson Minghui Mainland China, RMB41,500,000 = 90% Property development
Real Estate Limited limited liability company A K #41,500,0007C LE$d=3
BREEREFEMEFRAR REIREE - GREFEAR
Guangdong Hopson Yuehua Mainland China, RMB41,500,000 = 100% Property development
Real Estate Limited limited liability company AR #41,500,0007T MR
BERAEBEREERRA R FEIKEE - GREEAR
Guangdong Huajing New City Mainland China, RMB93,500,018 — 100% Property development
Real Estate Limited limited liability company AR #93,500,0187T bE 4
BRESNMEMERRAR REIAREE - BREEAR
Guangdong Huanan New City Mainland China, RMB464,750,000 = 100% Property development
Real Estate Limited limited liability company AR #464,750,0007T YIEEEE
BRERNMEERR AR REIARE - EREMERF]
Guangdong Huanan Real Estate Limited Mainland China, RMB48,074,420 — 70% Property development
ERERFEMEGRAR limited liability company AR ¥48,074,4207T V%R
REIKREE - BREERAR
Guangdong Jinan Real Estate Limited Mainland China, RMB65,084,340 = 90% Property development
EREREESGR AR limited liability company AR#65,084,3407C YRR
REIARE - EREMERA]
Guangdong New Tai An Real Estate Mainland China, RMB19,100,000 — 100% Property development
Limited limited liability company AR #19,100,0007T MEEER
ERMELEMERRAA REIKEE - BREEAR
Guangzhou Chuangda Investment Mainland China, RMB100,000,000 = 100% Property development
Development Company Limited limited liability company AR #100,000,0007T VLR

BEMEERERRERAR
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39 DETAILS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 39 FEfBLAAFE
(Continued) (4®)

Place of incorporation and Percentage of equity

operations and Issued and fully interest attributable to

Name of company kind of legal entity paid capital the Group Principal activities
FEM AL R BBITR KBRS R E
AREB EEMI R EEERER BRBRAE Aotk FEEK
Directly Indirectly
HiE i3
Guangzhou Hechuang Construction Mainland China, RMB200,000,000 = 100% Provision of construction
Company Limited limited liability company AR #200,000,0007T service
BMNEa ITRREEBERAR REIARE - EREMERA RHZERS
Guangzhou Hopson Cuijing Mainland China, RMB53,550,000 — 97% Property development
Real Estate Limited limited liability company AR #53,550,0007C MR
BMNEERSEMERRAR REIARE - EREERA]
Guangzhou Hopson Dongyu Mainland China, RMB42,500,000 = 100% Property development
Real Estate Limited limited liability company AR #42,500,0007T LE$ 3=
BMNEERFEHEGR AR REIAKE - EREMERA
Guangzhou Hopson Junjing Mainland China, RMB221,619,440 = 95% Property development
Real Estate Limited limited liability company AR ¥221,619,4407T MR
BMNEERRFEERRAR REIARE - EREERA]
Guangzhou Hopson Keji Garden Mainland China, RMB133,340,000 = 95% Property development
Real Estate Limited limited liability company AR ¥5133,340,0007C MR
BMNEERREREERRAR REIARE - EREMERA]
Guangzhou Hopson Qinghui Mainland China, RMB42,287,624 = 100% Property development
Real Estate Limited limited liability company AE#42,287,6247C %R
BMNEEEREEMESRAR REIARE - EREERRA]
Guangzhou Hopson Qingyuan Mainland China, RMB3,000,000 = 100% Water supply
Water Supply Limited limited liability company AR #3,000,0007T fit K
BMNEEERFKERADE] REIKEE - GREFEAR
Guangzhou Hopson Xingjing Mainland China, RMB500,000 — 100% Provision of clubhouse and
Business Services Limited limited liability company AR #500,0007T residential services
BMNEEESHBEERDR REIKEE - BREEAR TRt e P R E RS
Guangzhou Hopson Yihui Mainland China, RMB131,420,019 = 100% Property development
Real Estate Limited limited liability company AR ¥131,420,0197T YEER
BIMNE LR EERRA R REIARE - EREMERA]
Guangzhou Hopson Yijing Mainland China, RMB82,040,000 — 99.5% Property development

Real Estate Limited
BMNEERsFEERRAR

limited liability company
REIARE - EREERRA]

AR #82,040,0007T

EEERAF

YRR
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39 DETAILS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

39 FEMBAAFE
()

Place of incorporation and

operations and

Percentage of equity

Issued and fully interest attributable to

Name of company kind of legal entity paid capital the Group Principal activities
AR S K BBTR KBRS R E
AEER EEMN R EEERER BRBRA a1 FEEK
Directly Indirectly
HiE CiEE2

Guangzhou Hopson Yujing Real Mainland China, RMB47,250,000 = 70% Property development
Estate Limited limited liability company AR #47,250,0007C VLR

BMNEEmRFEEGRAR REIARE - EREMERA]

Guangzhou Huayue Longting Mainland China, RMB3,000,000 — 100% Restaurant management
Restaurant Limited limited liability company AR #3,000,0007T BEREE

BN R AR A A REIARE - EREERRA]

Guangzhou Jiannan Property Mainland China, US$12,000,000 = 100% Property development
Development Limited limited liability company 12,000,000% 7T E

BMNERmEEERERAF REIAREE - GREEAR

Guangzhou Kengding Architecture Mainland China, RMB?2,000,000 = 100% Architectural design
Design Consultant Company Limited limited liability company AR ¥2,000,0007C BERET

BN REER T AABRAR REIARE - EREERA]

Guangzhou Nonggongshang Mainland China, RMB2,170,243 — 100% Property development
Construction and Development limited liability company AR#2,170,2437T Y% R
Company Limited REIARE - AREMEAHA

BMNmRImEEERMEDR

Guangzhou Sanlian Huagiao Estate Mainland China, RMB30,000,000 — 67% Property development
Company Limited limited liability company AR #30,000,0007C YEERE

BMN=HEEEEGR A REIARE - EREMERA]

Guangzhou Wanxiangying Mainland China, RMB1,000,000 — 100% Property development
Real Estate Company Limited limited liability company AR #1,000,0005T %R

BMNmERERERBRAR] REIKEE - BREEAR

Guangzhou Xinchangjiang Mainland China, RMB60,000,000 — 95.5% Property development
Development Limited limited liability company AR #60,000,0007C MEER

BMNRTIZRMABERRAR REIARE - EREERRA]

Guangzhou Yihui Real Estate Mainland China, RMB37,000,000 = 100% Property development
Development Limited limited liability company AR #37,000,0007C VLR

BN E tEMRE AR AR REIARE - EREMERA]

Guangzhou Yijing Arts and Culture Mainland China, RMB500,000 — 100% Investment holding
Company Limited limited liability company AR #500,0007T AR

BMES X EMERBRAR

TEAEE - BRAEEAR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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Place of incorporation and

operations and

Percentage of equity

Issued and fully interest attributable to

39 FEMBL AR
()

Name of company kind of legal entity paid capital the Group Principal activities
AR S R BBITR KBRS R E
AREB EEMI R EEERER BRBRAE Aotk FEEK
Directly Indirectly
HiE i3
Guangzhou Yiming Real Estate Mainland China, RMB43,800,000 = 100% Property development
Development Company Limited limited liability company AR #43,800,0007C E 3
EMNEAEMERZE AR AR REIKEE - GREEAA
Guangzhou Yisheng Real Estate Mainland China, RMB52,500,000 — 100% Property development
Development Limited limited liability company AR #52,500,0007T MEERE
BN BB EFRE AR AR REIARE - EREERA]
Guangzhou Zhujiang Qiaodu Mainland China, RMB535,500,000 — 99.5% Property development
Real Estate Limited limited liability company AR #535,500,0007T LE$ 3=
BN IEHEHERRAR REIREE - BREEAA
Guangzhou Ziyun Village Real Estate Mainland China, US$2,000,000 — 100% Property development
Company Limited limited liability company 2,000,000t MEBRE
BMNEEIEEERRAR REIKEE - BREFEAR
Hopeson Holdings Limited Hong Kong, HK$2 ordinary — 100% Investment holding
EEEBARAR limited liability company HK$10,000 non-voting B
BA - BREMEAA deferred shares (Note)
2B E R
10,0007 7T fE 1% R 1
BT A (KM 7%)
Hopson (Guangzhou) Industries Mainland China, US$4,830,000 — 100% Property development
Limited limited liability company 4,830,000 7T WEERE
AE(BEMEBEERAR REIARE - EREERRA]
Hopson Development (Consultants) British Virgin Islands, us$2 = 100% Provision of property design
Limited limited liability company 2% and advisory services
AHERIRE (BRE) R QA REBRELHSE  AREERAT TRUL Y3 2R ET I B R AR 7S
Hopson Development (Properties) Hong Kong, HK$10,000 = 100% Property investment
Limited limited liability company 10,0007 7T MERE
EHEEIR(BXE)ERDA B AREEAR
Hopson Properties (China) Limited British Virgin Islands, Us$1 — 100% Investment holding
EEFBEHEGRAR limited liability company IESH AR

REBERLES  BREMEAT

BEAREEERADA
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39 DETAILS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 39 X EK B A 15
(Continued) (%)

Place of incorporation and Percentage of equity

operations and Issued and fully interest attributable to

Name of company kind of legal entity paid capital the Group Principal activities
FEM AL R BBTR SEPEL R E
AEERB EEMN R EEERER BRBRAE Aotk FEEK
Directly Indirectly
HiE [CiEE3
Huizhou Daya Bay New Coastal Mainland China, RMB100,000,000 = 60% Property investment
City Development and Investment Co. limited liability company AR #100,000,0007T VIR E
Ltd. REIARE - EREMERA]
BINAREEEFE F M ERIRE
BRATA]
Huizhou Haolong Industrial Development Mainland China, RMB10,000,000 = 100% Property investment
Company Limited limited liability company AR ¥10,000,0007T MERE
BMNTRREXERARAR] REIARE - EREERA]
Huizhou Hopson Xinneng Mainland China, HK$50,000,000 = 100% Property development
Properties Limited limited liability company 50,000,000/ 7T YE
BNTEEGREEARAR REIAKE - EREMERA
Huizhou Yapai Real Estate Mainland China, RMB250,000,000 — 100% Property development
Company Limited limited liability company AR #250,000,0007T YRR
BN EREESRA A REIARE - EREERRA]
Huizhou Yaxin Real Estate Mainland China, RMB119,000,000 = 100% Property development
Company Limited limited liability company AR #119,000,0007T YIEERE
BINTRFEHERR AR REIKEE - GREFEAR
Ji Run Property Investments Limited Hong Kong, HK$1,000,000 = 80% Investment holding
THEFKRERR AR limited liability company 1,000,000/ 7T REER
HE  AREEAR
Karworld Holdings Limited Hong Kong, HK$10,000 = 100% Investment holding
=MEBEBRAR limited liability company 10,0007 7T AR
B ARAEEAR
Kunshan Hopson Property Development  Mainland China, RMB200,000,000 — 100% Property development
Company Limited limited liability company AR #200,000,0007T MR
BIIEEFEERZEARAR REIARE - EREERR]
Malaysian Teoghew Industrial Estate Mainland China, HK$25,000,000 = 55% Property development
Development (Guangzhou) Ltd. limited liability company 25,000,000/ 7T %R
BMNEHIENERERAR REIAKE - EREMERR
Max Clear Investments Limited Hong Kong, HK$1 = 100% Investment holding
SEEREBRAR] limited liability company 1747T AR

a8 AREERR
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DETAILS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

Place of incorporation and

operations and

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

fk 11 B 955 e 7 B R ()

(7&)

Percentage of equity

Issued and fully interest attributable to

39 FEMBAAFE

Name of company kind of legal entity paid capital the Group Principal activities
FEM AL R BBITR KBRS R E
AREB EEMI R EEERER BRBRAE Bk FEEK
Directly Indirectly
HiE i3
Nambour Properties Limited British Virgin Islands, US$2 = 100% Investment holding
AR EXERAR] limited liability company ES I AR
RBRUHES  BREERF
Ningbo Hopson Ci City Leisure Mainland China, US$10,000,000 - 100% Property development
Sports Company Limited limited liability company 10,000,000 7T YR
ERAF MRS EE REIARE - EREERRA]
BIRAR
Ningbo Hopson Kam City Real Mainland China, RMB150,000,000 = 100% Property development
Estate Company Limited limited liability company AR #150,000,0007T YIEERE
ERESERMEESRAR REIARE - EREMERR
Ningbo Hopson Ming City Real Mainland China, RMB10,000,000 = 100% Property development
Estate Company Limited limited liability company AR #10,000,0007C MEERRE
EREEEBHEERR AR REIARE - EREERRA]
Ningbo Hopson Real Estate Mainland China, RMB220,000,000 = 100% Property development
Company Limited limited liability company AR #220,000,0007T VLR
BEREEEREEGRRAR REIKEE - BREFEAR
Outward Expanse Investments British Virgin Islands, Us$2 — 100% Investment holding
Limited limited liability company EI AR
BARREGRAR EBRELES  BAREERF
Panyu Zhujiang Real Estate Mainland China, RMB100,000,000 = 100% Property development
Company Limited limited liability company AR #100,000,0007T YIEERE
EBWIEHEGRAR REIKEE - GREFEAR
Plaza Royale Water Palace Mainland China, RMB72,000,000 = 70% Hotel operation
Convention Hotel Tianjin limited liability company AR #72,000,0007T EE R
Co. Limited HEREE - BREEAR
REBRBRRBEGRAA
Pomeroy Properties Limited British Virgin Islands, US$2 = 100% Investment holding
HEEEBR AR limited liability company ES I AR
EBRLHES AREERF
Prestige Dragon Development Hong Kong, HK$10,000 = 100% Investment holding
Limited limited liability company 10,0008 7T AR

BRERARAT

F AREBEMEAT
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39 DETAILS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 39 X Z/ B A A5

(Continued)

Place of incorporation and

operations and

(&)

Percentage of equity

Issued and fully interest attributable to

Name of company kind of legal entity paid capital the Group Principal activities
FEM AL R BBTR SEPEL R E
AEERB EEMN R EEERER BRBRAE BAL FEEK
Directly Indirectly
HiE [CiEE3
Right Strong International Limited Hong Kong, HK$1 = 100% Investment holding
SEEBIR AR A A limited liability company 1A7T AR
B BEREERR
Shanghai Anxu Warehousing Mainland China, RMB500,000 = 100% Warehouse
Company Limited limited liability company AR #500,0007T A
LERBERERAR REIARE - EREERRA]
Shanghai Dazhan Investment Mainland China, RMB3,050,000,000 = 100% Property development
Management Company Limited limited liability company A K #3,050,000,0007% YRR
PERRIEEERBRAT REIARE - EREMERA
Shanghai Fanmei Architecture Mainland China, RMB?2,000,000 = 100% Architectural design
Design Company Limited limited liability company AR #2,000,0007T ARGt
BRRRER BRI REIARE - EREERRA]
Shanghai Hechuang Linhai Property Mainland China, RMB900,000,000 = 100% Property development
Development Company Limited limited liability company AR ¥900,000,0007T YEERE
HEERREFERZARAR REIARE - EREMERA]
Shanghai Hopson Jinting Real Estate Mainland China, RMB50,000,000 — 100% Property development
Development Limited limited liability company AR #50,000,0007C MEERRE
PR ERERMERBEERAR REIARE - EREERRA]
Shanghai Hopson Property Development Mainland China, US$59,900,000 = 100% Property development
Company Limited limited liability company 59,900,0003 7T VLR
PEaERMEREBEERARF REIARE - EREMERA
Shanghai Hopson Sanlin Real Estate Mainland China, RMB50,000,000 — 100% Property development
Development Limited limited liability company AR #50,000,0007C MEERE
LEEE=BFMEREZFRAR REIARE - EREERA]
Shanghai Longjia Properties Limited Mainland China, RMB20,000,000 = 100% Property development
LEEEEEXARAR limited liability company AR #20,000,0007T E 9
REIAKE - EREMERA
Shanghai Longmeng Real Estate Mainland China, US$44,370,000 = 100% Property development
Development Company Limited limited liability company 44,370,0003 7T bE 47

LEREBRFEREARAR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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39 DETAILS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Place of incorporation and

operations and

(7&)

Percentage of equity

Issued and fully interest attributable to

39 FEMBAAFE

Name of company kind of legal entity paid capital the Group Principal activities
AR S R BBITR KBRS R E
AREB EEMI R EEERER BRBRAE Aotk FEEK
Directly Indirectly
HiE i3
Shanghai Sanxiang Real Estate Mainland China, US$8,000,000 = 100% Property development
Development Company Limited limited liability company 8,000,0003 7T E 3
PE=REEERBERAA REIKEE - GREEAA
Shanghai Shangshi Haiyun Properties Mainland China, RMB800,000,000 = 100% Property development
Company Limited limited liability company AR #800,000,0007T MEERE
B FEEEEEGRAF REIKEE - BREFEAR
Shanghai Tongzhen Investment and Mainland China, RMB5,000,000 = 100% Property development
Consultant Company Limited limited liability company A K #5,000,0007T LE$ 3=
EBRIRIREEABR AR REIREE - BREEAA
Shanghai Yutai Real Estate Development Mainland China, RMB400,000,000 — 100% Property development
Company Limited limited liability company AR #400,000,0007T bYJE 323
PEHREHEZERARAR] REIKEE - BREFEAR
Shanghai Zeyu Properties Limited Mainland China, RMB50,000,000 - 100% Property development
EEEFEEARAR limited liability company AR #50,000,0007T %R
REIAKE - BREMERA]
Shanghai Zhengze Real Estate Mainland China, RMB50,000,000 = 100% Property development
Development Company Limited limited liability company AR #50,000,0007C MEERE
EBIEEEERR AR REIKEE - GREFEAR
Shanxi Hopson Dijing Construction Mainland China, RMB956,865,000 — 100% Property development
Company Limited limited liability company AR #956,865,0007T LE$ 3
IS AT RERARAF REIREE - BREEAR
Shanxi Hopson Jiashi Investment Mainland China, RMB30,000,000 = 100% Property development
Company Limited limited liability company A R #30,000,0007C MR
IWAEEEZERERRAR REIKEE - BREFEAR
Shine Wealth Consultants Limited British Virgin Islands, Us$1 - 100% Provision of consultancy
SEEREMERAR limited liability company 1£7T TR BRI RS
RERLHSE AREEAA
Size Up Investments Limited Hong Kong, HK$1 = 100% Investment holding
BEMREBRAF] limited liability company 18T REZER
B AREEAR
Solawide Properties Limited British Virgin Islands, Us$2 — 100% Investment holding
FEEXEBR AR limited liability company 2%TT AR

RBREZES  AREMERA

BEAREEERADA
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39 DETAILS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

39 FEMBAAFE
()

Place of incorporation and

operations and

Percentage of equity

Issued and fully interest attributable to

Name of company kind of legal entity paid capital the Group Principal activities
FEM AL R BBTR SEPEL R E
AEERB EEMN R EEERER BRBRAE Aotk FEEK
Directly Indirectly
HiE [CiEE3

Suizhong Haisheng Tourism Mainland China, RMB10,000,000 = 51% Property development
Development Corporation limited liability company AR #10,000,0007C VLR

ZHBRIREE XERBRAR HEIAKE - EREERA

Sun Advance Investments Limited British Virgin Islands, Us$1 = 100% Investment holding

HEREBRAR limited liability company IE AR

EBELES  BREERF
Sun Yick Properties Limited British Virgin Islands, us$2 = 100% Investment holding
T=BEXERAR limited liability company e AR
RBRUHES  BREMERF
Suzhou Ruiyin Properties Limited Mainland China, RMB480,000,000 = 100% Property development
BNIHIREBEEBR AR limited liability company AR #480,000,0007T MR
REIARE - EREERA]

Tianjin Babo Real Estate Development Mainland China, RMB30,000,000 = 100% Property development
Company Limited limited liability company AR #30,000,0007T %R

REMEBEEMEREBR AR REIREE - GREEAR

Tianjin Hopson Binhai Real Estate Mainland China, RMB375,826,000 = 98.9% Property development
Development Company limited liability company AR #375,826,0007T YRR

REGEBEEHERZARAR REIARE - EREERA]

Tianjin Hopson Environmental Protection  Mainland China, US$500,000 — 75% Research and development
and Energy Saving Technology limited liability company 500,000 7T of environmental
Development Company Limited REIARE - AREMEAHR technology and product

REESERREERMAERR AR T B B B R AR B %

Emn

Tianjin Hopson Zhujiang Real Estate Mainland China, RMB280,000,000 — 92.3% Property development
Development Limited limited liability company AR #280,000,0007T %R

RESEFRTIEHERZEERAR REIREE - BREEAR

Tianjin Jade Buddha Temple Museum Mainland China, RMB200,000 — 100% Museum operation
Management Company Limited limited liability company AR #200,0007T B L TR

REMEEREHSENRELEERE
BRAR

TEAEE - BRAEAR
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39 DETAILS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 39 FEMBARFE

(Continued)

Place of incorporation and

operations and

(7&)

Percentage of equity

Issued and fully interest attributable to

Name of company kind of legal entity paid capital the Group Principal activities
FE AL R BBITR KBRS R E
AREB EEM R EEERER BRBRAE BAL FEEK
Directly Indirectly
HiE i3
Tianjin Meixin Architectural Design Mainland China, RMB3,000,000 = 100% Architectural Design
Company Limited limited liability company AR #3,000,0007T BEERET
RAEEFRERTERAF REIAKE - EREMERA
Tianjin Ruiwan Investment and Mainland China, RMB115,000,000 = 90% Property development
Development Company Limited limited liability company AR ¥115,000,0007T MR
REHEREERBR LA REIARE - EREERA]
Tumen Properties Limited British Virgin Islands, us$2 = 100% Investment holding
HREBEAR AR limited liability company 2% AR
RBRUES  BREMERF
Trisum Investment Limited Hong Kong, HK$5,000,000 — 100% Investment holding
BRI ERR AR limited liability company 5,000,000/ 7T B
B - EREERR]
Value-Added Guangzhou Limited Mainland China, RMB8,000,000 = 70% Property development
BEMmINEARA R limited liability company AR #8,000,0007T LU
REIAKE - EREMERR
Zhejiang Kehua Digital Plaza Mainland China, RMB10,000,000 = 95% Property development
Company Limited limited liability company AR #10,000,0007C MEER
ANIRIZEBISE S B R AR REIARE - EREERRA]
Zhongshan Hopson Haojing Real Estate  Mainland China, RMB10,000,000 = 100% Property development
Company Limited limited liability company AR #10,000,00070 VIEERE
RILTEERREESRAR REIARE - EREMERA]
Zhongshan Hopson Hongjing Real Estate Mainland China, RMB10,000,000 = 100% Property development
Company Limited limited liability company AR #10,000,0007C MEERRE
R EERREHERRAR REIARE - EREERRA]
Zhongshan Hopson Xijing Real Estate Mainland China, RMB10,000,000 = 100% Property development
Company Limited limited liability company AR #10,000,0007C YIEERE

PR ERSEHREER AR

REAR - ERAEAR
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39 DETAILS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

40

(Continued)

Place of incorporation and

operations and

Percentage of equity

Issued and fully interest attributable to

39 FEMBAAFE
()

Name of company kind of legal entity paid capital the Group Principal activities
FEM AL R BBTR SEPEL R E
AEERB EEMN R EEERER BRBRAE Aotk FEEK
Directly Indirectly
HiE [CiEE3
Zhongxian International Mainland China, RMB2,250,000,000 = 100% Property development
Company Limited limited liability company AR #2,250,000,0007T YIEERE
H BB R A R REIKEE - GREFEAR
Note: B &t -

The non-voting deferred shares have no voting rights and are not entitled to any
dividend or distributions upon winding up unless a sum of
HK$100,000,000,000,000 has been distributed to the holders of the ordinary
shares and thereafter one-half of the assets are distributable to holders of the
non-voting deferred shares.

(RSN

BEZRECERMIEERZE &% KR
TRAREXEREREBRREEZAE DK KIE
100,000,000,000,000 T E Dk F X BERF H
A BEBEE —H¥ADRKRTEREEELTR

DETAILS OF ASSOCIATES 40 BEQTFR
Particulars of issued Place of
Name shares held incorporation Principle activities Interest held %
=E FEERTROFE SEMEIHHE ITEXK s %
Beijing BHL Logistics Limited Registered capital of Mainland China  Property 25
ERREYREFERAA US$20,000,000 FR B A e development
FEA AR MR
20,000,000%E 7T
Guangdong Huasheng Cultural Registered capital of Mainland China  Operation of school 40
Development Company Limited RMB5,000,000 AR B K e EIRER
BREAHELBERBERAT MR
AR #5,000,0007T
Tianjing Jingjin Financial and Registered capital of Mainland China  Property 30
Property Investment RMB300,000,000 R B AR development
Company Limited FEAR AN VISR
RERECREFREE AR #300,000,0007T

BRAA
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41 DETAILS OF JOINT VENTURES

Particulars of issued

41

Place of

A\ &L —
SELQ

el
11

(=}

Name shares held incorporation Principle activities Interest held %
=E: FREZRTROFE SRR LHH FEEK s %
Beijing Dongfangwenhua Registered capital of Mainland China  Property 60.98
International Properties US$47,890,000 AR B A e development (Note())
Company Limited AR and property (HTaE()
IERR G XERREXBRAA 47,890,000 7T investment
MEERER
MERE
Guangzhou Diyi Dyeing Factory Registered capital of Mainland China  Property 65
Company Limited RMB82,991,973 REipN development (Note(ii)
BINE —RERB R AT RIS MEER (Kt &£ (i)
AR#82,991,9737T
Guangzhou Dongtai Textile Registered capital of Mainland China  Property 65
Company Limited RMB28,570,000 alEipN development (Note(ii)
BINREGBEEERAA FET AR AR MEER (Bt & (i)
AR ¥28,570,0007T

Notes: Hiat -
(i) The Group is entitled to 57.14% of the voting power in the Board of (i)
Directors of the joint venture while ordinary resolutions of the joint venture
require 75% of the voting of the Board of Directors.

AEBEHEBARERNASNI4NBEETSRE
B MEEARZERRZREESS
T5% R EHE o

(i) The Group is entitled to 57.14% of the voting power in the Board of (i)
Directors of the joint ventures while ordinary resolutions of the joint
ventures require 66.7% of the voting of the Board of Directors.

AEBEHRAEARELASTI4%NEETSRE
B MEERRIZERAZREESS
66.7% 1% Z 1 °

42 EVENT AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET 42 FERHREE

DATE

R-ZE—RAF-_A+HHE NEBZKA
—ZEB A ReBRE (XL L)) (90%)
M —25E =75 10%) Wi E R P & E
HEBRAB(ERFE]) 2100% %
T R EH AR S53500,0007T (18 &
R #167,945,000/8 L) - KX L B AR A
EESIFEAGZREENRE  TAEAA
REECEEFEAERZLINGM - ER
FENEZEEEAMATEAMERSE
BNTREDEREN — BRI ZX5
BR-ZE—RAFEARBEEAR-

On 15th February 2015, the Group completed the acquisition of
100% equity interest in Guangdong Zhongfu Real Estate Investment
Co., Ltd. (“Guangdong Zhongfu”) from Ms. Chu Kam Lai (“Ms.
Chu”), a related party (90%), and a third party (10%) for a total
consideration of approximately RMB53,500,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$67,945,000). Ms. Chu is a sister of Mr. Chu
Mang Yee, the Chairman of the Board of Directors of the Company
and an aunt of Ms. Chu Kut Yung, the Deputy Chairman of the
Board of Directors of the Company. The major asset of Guangdong
Zhongfu is a lot of land for property development in Huizhou City,
Guangdong Province, Mainland China, and the transaction will be
accounted for as the acquisition of assets in 2015.
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Summary of Financial Information

St B & it 22

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS MEEEBER
2010 2011 2012 20183 2014
—E-%F ZF——§ T ZT—=F ZE-DOF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
FHT FAT FHT FAT TERT
ASSETS g
Non-current assets E(RBEE
Land costs T AN AR 622,193 714,967 1,528,998 1,928,700 1,869,029
Prepayments for acquisition of land U B8 + b 38 < TR IE 209,795 131,221 131,197 135,305 134,852
Prepayments for construction work BERIBZENZIE — — — 1,340,636 1,480,246
Properties and equipment I EYSET 3,199,845 3,264,839 3,435,475 4,105,363 4,060,382
Investment properties REME 15,405,498 16,637,473 16,535,733 22,515,040 | 25,474,413
Goodwill RS 124,837 41,245 41,237 42,528 42,386
Investments in associates ‘EAH?P‘ EBARZRE 43,433 151,685 154,659 158,257 158,290
Investments in joint ventures REENFZIRE 1,512,923 1,753,004 4,027,439 5,599,225 8,102,176
Available-for-sale financial assets —H HEMBEE 3,316,388 5,203,335 2,684,836 2,665,885 3,342,755
Deposit for proposed investment BERiREzEkSe 560,210 = = = —
Deferred tax assets REFHIBEE 167,541 220,240 299,334 295,185 341,466
25,162,663 28,118,009 28,838,908 38,786,124 | 45,005,995
Current assets REBEE
Prepayments for acquisition of land W g L T FRIR 18,053,335 13,508,836 11,006,809 10,273,666 | 10,241,218
Properties under development AEHEZERF
for sale LS 31,967,756 49,064,535 54,314,252 55,122,056 | 50,742,439
Completed properties for sale At HE 2B
LS 10,487,033 11,640,241 14,407,957 21,412,298 | 28,277,161
Financial assets at fair value through RATEEBER
profit or loss SRR IS B E 11,693 11,456 13,552 12,146 13,607
Accounts receivable JiE U5 BR 3K 171,958 232,940 347,695 406,179 385,076
Prepayments, deposits and other BERE -Ze Rk
current assets Hith e & F 2,565,026 3,634,376 2,924,163 2,553,024 | 2,300,768
Due from associates i RN ] 30,382 31,890 31,884 32,882 223
Due from related companies JENERERR T I 13,644 6,188 6,361 6,440 9,984
Pledged/charged bank deposits B R IRT
73 123,671 1,030,093 1,232,929 1,189,562 1,223,534
Cash and cash equivalents HeLES2EEY 2,573,604 2,618,161 4,356,241 5,389,295 5,486,993
65,998,097 81,778,716 88,641,843 96,397,548 | 98,681,003
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Summary of Financial Information (continued)

S %5 & Bk 22 (4

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS (continued) SREEBEEBEEBR @)
2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
—2—%F —2——F - —T-—=F ZE-0OF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FHET FHBT FET FHBT FTERx
LIABILITIES afE
Current liabilities REaE
Accounts payable & BRI 5645612 5,120,006 5,137,933 7,728,568 | 8,746,455
Land cost payable JRE 1<t + 3 B AR 264,271 602,612 750,732 533,335 88,832
Borrowings BE 3,671,919 13,629,307 15,520,648 9,472,831 | 12,638,362
Deferred revenue FEIEUA 5544615 9,679,048 14,233,334 15,544,864 | 10,290,304
Accruals and other payables FEETFRIE K E A
&1 3038 2196200 2,962,465 2,762,720 2,990,449 | 3,184,658
Due to an associate e — R AR 2
B 6,486 6,808 6,807 7,020 6,996
Due to related companies ENEENRZHRIE 344,057 81,704 265,210 101,939 88,232
Due to joint ventures ENEA& AR ZHEA 1,709,345 1,574,135 2,145,551 2,368,135 | 3,112,088
Current tax liabilities RERIBEEE 4,643,003 4,117,827 4228820 5,025,763 | 4,364,813
24,025,508 37,773,912 45,051,755 43,772,904 | 42,520,740
Net current assets mEEEFE 41,972,589 44,004,804 43,590,088 52,624,644 | 56,160,263
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRDAE 67,135,252 72,122,813 72,428,996 91,410,768 | 101,166,258
Non-current liabilities *kAREBER
Land cost payable JE {5 £ 3 B AR 111,178 81,481 59,651 61,418 61,212
Borrowings sy 20,047,524 21,718,581 21,270,578 29,900,660 | 36,747,468
Due to non-controlling interests JIE <F IF 22 I 15 4 25
Z KA 432,323 439,841 556,080 573,493 571,574
Deferred tax liabilities ELEHIBAE 5551,128 5,816,801 5,548,087 5,718,011 5,800,566
26,142,153 28,056,704 27,434,396 36,253,582 | 43,180,820
Net assets EEFE 40,993,099 44,066,109 44,994,600 55,157,186 | 57,985,438
EQUITY B
Capital and reserves attributable RATIRERE A
to the Company’s equity holders AR IR 7R & 7 5
Share capital f& A 175,237 173,600 173,600 204 537 224,392
Reserves & 38,011,918 40,910,852 42,014,189 52,521,442 | 55,375,974
38,187,155 41,084,452 42,187,789 52,745,979 | 55,600,366
Non-controling interests FEVE R 2,805,944 2,981,657 2,806,811 2,411,207 | 2,385,072
Total equity e 40,993,099 44,066,109 44,994,600 55,157,186 | 57,985,438

BRERIRE

i

BRAF

—ET-NFFH 235




Summary of Financial Information (continued)

S 85 & Bk 22 (4

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENTS mEBEER
2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
—E-%F ¥ ¥ —T-=f —T-QHOF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FAT FAT FHT FATT THER
Revenues Yz 14,379,253 8,007,537 9,926,605 15,648,207 | 17,044,862
Cost of sales 3 B AR (8,692,021) (4,329,161) (5,683,720)  (9,660,856) | (11,793,197)
Gross profit E7 5,687,232 3,678,376 4242885  5987,351 | 5,251,665
Fair value gain on investment BEMERNFE R
properties 3,795,624 107,397 214,622 540,606 | 1,222,228
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale & 7] fit H €81 15 & E
financial assets g 28 — — 1,770,414 — —
Other income/gains, net Hig AWz %55 1,206,665 361,764 58,957 283,848 137,322
Selling and marketing expenses HERMSGHEEER (410,225)  (466,549)  (508,766) (544,241) (383,522)
General and administrative expenses ~ — & M 1T E FH (1,200,324) (1,271,430) (1,357,088) (1,411,121) | (1,389,354)
Finance income B IS A 17,039 29,098 35,807 31,069 65,267
Finance costs E7J LI (253,307) (238,539) (215,829) - -
Share of profit/(loss) of associates DG A A
A, (B 18) 1,071 351 3,003 (1,226) 564
Share of (loss)/profit of joint ventures 2 {54 & A Al
(E18) / i %I (666) (3,284) (154) 1,423,387 91,023
Profit before taxation B 10 B v A 8,843,109 2,197,184 4248851 6,309,673 | 4,995,193
Taxation RiTE (2,550,097)  (788,773) (1,360,748)  (2,475,187)| (2,067,257)
Profit for the year F 2 % A 6,293,012 1,408,411 2,888,103 3,834,486 | 2,927,936
Attributable to: FE1h -
Equity holders of the Company RARRERFAE A 5,889,412 1,430,031 2,982,790 3,852,073 2,947,301
Non-controlling interests JE4R ) 1 e 2 408,600 (21,620 (94,687) (17,587) (19,365)
6,293,012 1,408,411 2,888,103 3,834,486 | 2,927,936
Dividends % 2 300,531 — — — —
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